Stock Code R 13 X 5%: 726 ANNUAL
g REPORT

ﬂlm 4R

DIT Group Limited

EREERNFEEBERRATA

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(MRBEREAMRLZ2BRAF)

A LEADING INTEGRATED SERVICE
PROVIDER IN SMART BUILDING

R EREREERE L RRSE



DIT Group Limited ~ 2020 Annual Report
\ FEREENREBBRAR © —ETFEFR

" Contents H§E

CORPORATE INFORMATION

ARBH
CORPORATE PROFILE

AR

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EEREE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

HBEE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERENARS A

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

ESREREEASBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFRRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

B B

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CEVEEE

.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meRERkAMEEREE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
mE MM R K

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
EQUITY

mEREEBR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETMER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

REMBRERMEE

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T FPBHE

13

14

28

34

52

75

84

86

88

89

91

212



DIT Group Limited 22 2020 Annual Report

N
N

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Weixing (Chairman)
(appointed on 21 August 2020)
Mr. WU Po Sum
(resigned on 21 August 2020)
Mr. GUO Weigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. WANG Jing
(appointed on 21 August 2020)
Mr. YANG Hongwei
(resigned on 8 May 2020)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. WU Wallis (alias Li Hua)
Mr. WANG Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. JIANG Hongging
Mr. LEE Chi Ming
Mr. MA Lishan

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. LEE Chi Ming (Chairman)
Mr. JJANG Hongging

Mr. MA Lishan

Nomination Committee
Mr. LIU Weixing (Chairman)
(appointed on 21 August 2020)
Mr. WU Po Sum
(resigned on 21 August 2020)
Mr. JIANG Hongging
Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Remuneration Committee
Mr. JIANG Hongging (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Weixing

(appointed on 21 August 2020)
Mr. WU Po Sum

(resigned on 21 August 2020)
Mr. LEE Chi Ming

EET

HITESE

RIEE Rt (EE)
(RZZ=—=FN\A=+—HEZM)
HEREE

(R=ZZ-_=F N\A=-+—H&IT)
AR (TTHAREL)

T Bzt
(RZZ=ZFN\A=+—HEZMT)
BRERE
(R=ZZ=_Z=FRA/\BET)

FHITES
F Ht
T Ex&E

BAUFHTES
EHELLE
FERAKE
Bz kL

EFEERS

BEREES
FERARE(ZE)
ERERLE
Bk E

I3

REEES

EELE(EE)
(R_ZE_ZFN\A-_+—HEZD)
R AE
(R=ZZ2=_ZFN\A=-+—HED)
EHERE

TEALEE

FMHEES

EREBRE(X/E)

BImERE
(R=_ZF_ZFFN\A-+—HEZE)
R IEE
(R=Z_FF/\A=-+—HEE)
FEHRALE



SRBENHEMERAR O S-BEER

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. TSANG Ho Pong

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. GUO Weigiang
Mr. TSANG Ho Pong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

10 Zhongshi Road, Changsha City
Hunan Province, the PRC

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 7707-7708

77th Floor, International Commerce Centre
1 Austin Road West

Kowloon, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke, HMO8

Bermuda

CORPORATE INFORMATION
DAER

DEWE
BEHLE
RERAR

9 E s
A

AEfE R

Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

PEEERERME

HPEAEA
Y WEARE 1057

BREEREBIESEMR

EBNE
- mE P 158
RIB SRS T771E
7707-7708 %=

38 57 #% BURT

#EFOKBERTAERET
HEDAD
AR Tz & Rz AT

FEERBRT

FELBESBRITERAR
hEIRTT(FE)BRAA
PRI RRERTT (M) RO BRAE

FERBELCRBFETE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke, HM08

Bermuda

h



DIT Group Limited 22 2020 Annual Report

N
N

CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEER

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://dit.aconnect.com.hk

SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION
Share listing
The Company'’s Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Ordinary Share (as at 31 December 2020)

Shares outstanding: 2,802,400,730 shares
Nominal value: HK$0.40 per share
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2020 annual results announcement:
29 March 2021

Book closure period (for determining shareholders’ eligibility to

attend and vote at the annual general meeting (the “2021 AGM"):

21 May 2021 to 26 May 2021 (both days inclusive)

2021 AGM:
26 May 2021

FEEROECRBFETRE

BB RES
BB ET
ERRER 18357
AR LT7E
1712 & 1716 554

FERARA

Hguk
http://dit.aconnect.com.hk
IRRER

igvlist)
RRBRBRONEEMERIAARIF LR LT

ERRM-_E-_TF+_HA=1+—H)

BEITRG 2,802,400,730 f&

1A : FHL0.407%8 7T
BB
TECEFRFEBENGHE

—E-—F®=A-+ANH

iR iB s &L R (AR E IR MR
BEAG(—Z-_—FERBFAG)ENE L
BRENER) :

T E - FRA-+—HE-ZE-ZHFHA
:‘f’/\E(@?E%):I?ﬁE)

—E-FREBAFRD:
—E-—FHRA-+/H



EREDENEEBERLF © B BFFR

N

Architecture Science Institute
BRI

DIT Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively, “the Group”) (stock
code: 726HK) is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group positions itself as a leading integrated service provider
in smart building, as well as an innovative high-tech enterprise
that specializes in business throughout the entire value chain of
prefabricated construction (“PC"). We are the first listed company
in the prefabricated construction industry. The main business of
the Group covers smart prefabricated manufacturing,
landscaping services and decoration. The Group has already set
up several smart PC plants nationwide. It runs 15 self-operated
PC plants and several plants owned and operated by franchisees.
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The Group provides green buildings and one-stop home solutions
as our key mission and is dedicated to the strategic presence
nationwide to seize the opportunities form construction
industrialization in China during the 10-year golden era, and
achieve such industrialization, informationalization and
technologicalization of the construction industry with the
application of technology collaborations among various parties.
We aim to transform traditional construction from “on-site” to
“precast components+on-site assembly” mode, bringing
unprecedented change to the construction industry.

“Developing Brilliant Living” is our corporate value and we aim to
facilitate the upgrade and transformation of the modernization of
the construction industry. With our commitment to the creation
of the largest modernized operating platform of the construction
industry in China, we strive to give shape to the new construction
industry which is environmentally friendly, highly efficient and at
top quality by the process of informationalization with the
seamless combination between technology and building. The
Group has set up several smart PC plants nationwide, and is the
industry leading enterprise in terms of the number of smart
production lines. The Group's technologies and products receive
wide recognition from our clients. The Group currently provides
its service for projects under construction with site area of 6
million square metres in China.
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With the consistent adherence to its development strategy of
“driving development with leading technology”, the Group is
equipped with the five most advanced core technology systems
specific to the industry of prefabrication construction in the world
with the Group’s possession of a plenitude of core technologies
ranging from BIM in the context of intelligent construction, the
Internet of Things, Big Data to artificial intelligence. The number
of the Group’s patents has been continuously ranking first in the
prefabricated construction industry. The Group has the one and
only R&D center at provincial level in the industry, as well as the
pilot smart manufacturing R&D platform.

The Group is dedicated to provide safer, more comfortable and
smarter living experience through its continuing technological
innovation.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company, | am pleased
to report the consolidated results of the Group and present a
business review for the year ended 31 December 2020.

As COVID-19 has driven the global economy into hiatus in 2020,
A number of countries maintained a relatively loose monetary
policy. The uncertainty of the trade policies of the world’s major
economies has had a negative impact on global investments and
exports, and the international situation has entered a period of
change and turbulence. Under the strong leadership of the
central government, China, as the world’s second largest
economy, saw its annual GDP reach RMB101.5986 trillion, a year-
on-year increase of 2.3% at comparable prices. This stands in
sharp contrast to the global economic contraction.
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In terms of the prefabricated construction industry, prefabricated
buildings should account for more than 15% of the new
construction nationwide by 2020 as required by the action plan
for prefabricated construction during the 13th Five-Year Plan
Period. The penetration rate should exceed 20% in key regions. In
2020, a number of national ministries and commissions rolled out
policies to support the development of the prefabricated
construction industry. In response to the call of “clear waters and
green mountains are as valuable as mountains of gold and
silver”, China has further strengthened controls on environmental
protection in the construction industry, highlighting the
advantages of environmental friendliness of the prefabricated
construction industry. All these provide a good macro
environment for the healthy and rapid development of the
prefabricated construction industry.

The COVID-19 pandemic had a certain impact on the operation of
the Company in early 2020. Due to strict social distancing
measures and lockdowns, it was more difficult for a large number
of employees and industrial workers to return to work. Based on
the prediction and analysis of the industry environment and
economic situation, the Company quickly entered into “wartime”
mode at the beginning of work resumption, making full use of the
intelligence and high efficiency of prefabricated construction. The
Company actively communicated with local governments, setting
a good example for the pandemic prevention and control and the
resumption of production in regions. The green building science
park in Jiaozuo ensured the supply of building materials for two
provincial-level projects in Henan, which was reported by Xinwen
Lianbo, a daily news programme of China Central Television.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHES
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In 2020, the Company fully leveraged the advantages the whole
industry chain business model and the synergy with various
business segments of Central China Group. The Company
adopted a customer-centric approach and continuously improved
the quality, in order to actively expand the market and drive the
rapid growth in sales revenue and profitability. The Company
reported a remarkable full-year results. Sales revenue reached
approximately HK$1.089 billion, a year-on-year increase of
approximately 56.5%. Net profit attributable to shareholders
stood at approximately HK$159 million, a year-on-year growth of
approximately 43.4%. The Company was awarded the Best
Industrial Manufacturing Company at the 5th Golden Hong Kong
Stocks" Annual Awards Ceremony. The rapid rise in earnings was
attributable to, on one hand, the strengthening market demand,
and on the other hand, the expanding scale of business. The
Company has launched five green building science parks and put
Six such science parks into production in 2020, increasing the
number of factories that have come into production to 15. The
full-year production and sales volumes of prefabricated
construction components rose significantly. Sales revenue of
prefabricated components rose 57.8% on a year-on-year basis to
HK$915.3 million, with its business scale continuously expanding
nationwide.

While the operation of self-owned plants have been improving,
the Company continued expanding its franchised plants, asset-
light plants, decoration and landscaping services. It signed
contracts on one franchised plant and seven asset-light plants.
The expansion of its asset-light plants and franchised plants is a
strong indication that companies in the industry trust the
Company'’s technology and management ability, while the
development of the decoration and landscaping services have
further improved its business system based on the entire
prefabricated construction industry chain. All these will help the
Company promote the technology platform of the whole industry
chain to other companies in the industry, and provide a good
foundation for the promotion of asset-light business and
technology platform business in the future.
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Based on its mission and industry development trend of
“Developing Brilliant Living”, the parent company of the
Company, DIT Group, officially unveiled its “Smart Home"strategy
at the Zhengzhou Prefabricated Building and Green Building
Technology Products Expo in July 2020. The focus of the strategy
is industrialisation and digitalisation. Relying on the technological
innovation and integration of the key parts of the whole
construction industry chain (design, manufacturing, construction,
operation and maintenance), and relying on technology
connection of BIM technology, Internet of Things, cloud
computing, big data and other digital platforms, the Company
achieved specialization, industrialised manufacturing and fine
decoration in prefabricated format, along its major business lines
in construction, decoration and landscape services. This has
resulted in the upgrading of quality, the shortening of
construction time and the improvement of cost management.

Relying on its “Smart Home" strategy, the Company kept
exploring cutting-edge technologies in 2020 to help improve its
business with innovative technologies. It has built two
demonstration production lines for four national key research
and development projects during the 13th Five-Year Plan Period.
China’s first automatic cleaning device for prefabricated
construction mould and the industry’s first deep learning-based
automatic moulding production line of intelligent wallboard steel
skeleton were successfully launched at the production line. A
number of technical achievements have been recognised by the
government and industry. The Company won the Hunan Science
and Technology Progress Award for its prestressed composite
slab production line. The subsidiary company in the equipment
manufacturing business was recognized and approved as a small
and medium-sized high-tech company, which received approval
for launching "Postgraduate Training Base for Smart Equipment
between Central South University and DIT Group”.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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China's prefabricated construction industry will maintain rapid
growth in the future, with the deepening of the demand-side
reform, stricter environmental regulation, and policies for
industry development. With China’s dissipating demographic
dividend and the application of 5G and other new technologies,
the core competitiveness of China’s prefabricated construction
industry will transform itself around science and technology and
business scale. The Company will insist on its positioning as a
provider of integrated smart building solutions and mission of
“Developing Brilliant Living”. With “Smart Home" strategy as a
core focus, the Company will seek breakthrough on R&D,
scientific investment, cost optimisation and organisational
efficiency to set up a digital and smart business platform, explore
asset-light development models and provide the industry and
society with more cost-effective integrated smart building
solutions, so that more people can enjoy the better life brought
by the progress of construction technology.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to the staff for their hard work and
dedication in the past year. | would also like to express our
gratitude to all shareholders, investors and other business
partners for their continuing support and trust to the Company.

By order of the Board of
DIT Group Limited

Liu Weixing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
CUE P HES

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT #ZAia3$&kilE

OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December

BE1+-_A=1+—HIFE

2020 2019 Changes
—EDEE ZENF )
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (F#ET) 1,089,284 695,901 56.5%
Gross profit (HK$'000) EH(FET) 345,204 177,775 94.2%
Gross profit margin ViR 31.7% 25.5% 6.2*
Net profit (HK$'000) sw A (FET) 169,966 113,617 49.6%
Net profit margin Vo ) 26 15.8% 16.3% -0.5*
Profit attributable to equity shareholders W21 AR ST
(HK$'000) (F#T) 158,833 110,749 43.4%
Basic earnings per share (HK$ cents)® SRERRFCEWL)® 5.67 3.95 43.5%
Diluted earnings per share (HK$ cents)® SREERF CEW)® 5.67 3.95 43.5%
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT #HSZ&HERKREKBE
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December RI+ZA=+—H
2020 2019 Changes
—B-8F —_ThF 25
Total cash (including cash and cash R (BERER
equivalents and restricted bank deposit) REFEEBB AR
(HK$'000) BRGIFEF)(FET) 663,495 206,786 220.9%
Total assets (HK$'000) BE®E(FET) 5,213,352 3,466,997 50.4%
Total liabilities (HK$'000) BERE(TET) 2,391,768 1,047,954 128.2%
Total equity (including non-controlling S 4R EE (B FEFRIEAR
interest) (HK$'000) ) (FAET) 2,821,584 2,419,043 16.6%
Total debt (HK$'000) B85 (F&T) 1,425,301 488,701 191.7%
Current ratio @ B R O 147 .1% 112.7% 34.4*
Net gearing ratio @ FEELERO 30.2% 12.1% 18.1%
Net asset value per share (HK$)© BREEFEETL)® 1.01 0.86 17.4%
Equity attributable to equity shareholders S E AN
per share (HK$)® EiktE=CET)® 0.77 0.65 18.5%
Notes: * Change in percentage points fyeE: > BSOS
0) Calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total (1) RRBEERNARD AR
current liabilities
) FEBREFE2RENRE

S

Calculated as set out on page 25

&

Calculation were stated after taking into account the effect of the )

share consolidation in October 2020, every 4 ordinary shares of par
value HK$0.10 each being consolidated into 1 share of par value
HK$0.40. Comparative figures have been retrospectively adjusted
on the assumption that the above share consolidation had been

effective in prior year.

AEDFRR-ZZ-_TFE+ AERNBROAHNEE
BTUEY ZBROEFRTIREELR0IEITH
‘AN RIKREER0AETHRD - LBREFE
AR A FEAEFREEEERNRRMET o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

0

14

Business Review

2020 is the first fiscal year since DIT Group joined the big
family of Central China, during which the Group achieved
substantial business expansion and entered a period of
explosive profit growth. As a leading provider of overall
smart building solutions, the Group has been adhering to
the “technology-led” development strategy, thereby
pushing forward its business and greatly improving its
operating efficiency: For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group recorded sales revenue of HK$1.089 billion,
a year-on-year increase of 56.5%, and net profit attributable
to the parent company was HK$159 million, a year-on-year
increase of 43.4%. With a view of the above, the outbreak
of COVID-19 had minimal impact on the Group's business
and operations during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Skyrocketing of annual sales by 72% and signing of
several strategic agreements

The Group's business expanded rapidly during the period,
benefiting from the strengthening market demand driven
by accelerated implementation of policies supporting the
prefabricated construction industry across China and the
completion and commissioning of six green building
technology parks.

In 2020, the prefabricated construction business grew
rapidly. The annual production reached 307,000 cubic
metres, an increase of 66% from 185,000 cubic metres in
2019; and shipment volume amounted to 314,000 cubic
metres, an increase of 72% from 183,000 cubic metres in
2019.

In 2020, the Group signed strategic cooperation
agreements with many reputable companies including JD
Group, Jinke Property Group, Sunriver Holding Group and
Jujiang Construction Group to create synergy, further
expand business segments, and deepen its presence in
China so as to consolidate business advantages of the
entire industry chain and lay a steady foundation of
purchase orders pipeline for business in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Accelerated deployment in industrial parks and
great improvement in the production capacity and
operating efficiency of plants

In 2020, six green building technology parks were built and
put into production in Zhoukou City and Tongxu County in
Henan Province, Jiaozhou City in Shandong Province,
Huai'an City and Nantong City in Jiangsu Province, and Yuxi
City in Yunnan Province; and the Group expanded its
presence to five green building technology parks in
Dengfeng City, Zhumadian City, Luoyang City and Tongxu
County in Henan Province and Ding’an County in Hainan
Province.

Currently, the Group has put into operation 15 industrial
parks nationwide, making it a leading player in the industry
in terms of industrial layout. As of the end of 2020, the
Group's overall production capacity was approximately 1.1
million cubic metres (including wholly owned, franchised,
and asset-light plants). The utilisation rate of production
capacity increased from 29% in 2019 to 46% in 2020. Newly
added production capacity in Zhoukou City, Henan Province
and Jiaozhou City, Shandong Province had been
accelerated for operation during the year, contributing to
the overall business; and production capacity in Yuxi City,
Yunnan Province, Huai‘an City and Nantong City in Jiangsu
Province and Tongxu County in Henan Province will be
gradually released in 2021. In addition, the Group continues
to focus on product standardisation and equipment
automation to help plants quickly increase production
capacity.

The Group has a strong brand awareness and its product
quality is widely recognised by downstream customers,
which helps the Group to further expand its franchised and
asset-light business. During the year, the Group’s
exploration for asset-light business achieved initial results.
Revenue from technology licensing and consulting services
increased by 151.5% year-on-year to HK$94.92 million
throughout the year.
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The Group has achieved initial results in cost reduction
through standardised production products, digitalisation,
and intelligent upgrading. In 2020, the actual cost for
prefabricated construction was RMB2,115 cubic metres, a
year-on-year decrease of 8.7%. The Group has built an
EMPC system for cost control throughout the process from
scratch and established three-level management and
control standards with “Target Costs” as the core, building
up a cost control system. The Group launched an intelligent
mould placement robot in some smart prefabricated
construction plants. This robot is the first intelligent robot in
China that can support complex components with
reinforcing bars and reduce mould placement labour by
75% and increase mould placement efficiency by 2.5 times.
Meanwhile, an environmental-friendly automatic cleaning
device for prefabricated construction mould, the first of its
kind in China, was successfully launched at the production
line. This device worked with the intelligent mould
placement robot to further advance the automation of the
mould placement and disassembly process in smart
prefabricated construction plants. In terms of digitisation,
the Group is currently building a digital middle platform
system. The new middle platform system will not only
connect various systems together through cloud
computing, big data, Internet of Things, Al and 5G, but also
achieve intelligent design, manufacturing and operation
and maintenance based on building information modelling
(BIM) data generated during design.

Expansion of business across the entire industry
chain and initial results of synergistic efforts with
Central China Group

In the fiercely competitive prefabricated construction
market, the Group adopts a new business model covering
the entire industry chain to create differentiated
competitive advantages. The Group has been long
committed to improving the quality of buildings, reducing
the cost of prefabricated buildings, and exploring a faster
and better industrial development path for prefabricated
buildings. It firmly believes that the vertically integrated
business model can help reduce costs in all aspects and
further exploit cost advantages. During the year, the Group
has created a business layout covering prefabricated
construction components, decoration, landscape, and
equipment, and the newly added smart landscaping
services and smart decoration businesses will soon
become the Group'’s profit growth drivers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Relying on the positive branding of Central China Group
deeply rooted in Henan Province, DIT Group has made a lot
of explorations with various sectors of its subsidiaries.
Guided by the vision of “Developing Brilliant Living”, DIT
Group is positioned as a leading provider of overall smart
building solutions. It has support from Central China Real
Estate and Central China Management Company who rank
among the top ten in China in terms of construction area
and house delivery and sees a large number of potential
home improvement opportunities brought by Central China
New Life whose property management area exceeds 100
million square metres. With the support of Central China
Group, DIT Group has spared no effort to expand its
production capacity in Henan Province. In 2020, it has
successfully deployed five green building technology parks
in Henan Province.

Strong alignment of interests between the Group
and its shareholders

In July 2020, the Group received an investment of
approximately HK$303 million from controlling shareholder
Mr. Wu Po Sum for increased shareholding. In December,
the Group received more than HK$1.6 million from Mr. Liu
Weixing, the chairman of the board of directors and
executive director of the Company, and Mr. Guo Weigiang,
executive director and chief executive officer for increased
shareholding and share purchases. In addition, the Group
adopted a share option scheme in July, granting a total of
approximately 202 million share options to its executives
and others. This move will promote the alignment of the
interests of employees with the overall interests of the
Company and shareholders, arouse the enthusiasm of
grantees, and effectively retain and motivate core talent,
thereby advancing the long-term, steady development of
DIT Group.
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Business Outlook

As a leading provider of overall smart building solutions,
the Group's operating performance will enter a phase of
unprecedented growth in the next few years. As the
construction industry is still facing increasingly severe
labour shortages and environmental protection challenges
and local governments encourage the spread of
prefabricated construction to improve efficiency and
protect the environment, the market size of the
prefabricated construction industry will continue to grow
rapidly. The Group will continue to strengthen its presence
across the entire industry chain in key markets and
intensify its efforts in creating industrial synergy with
Central China Group, cutting costs and improving efficiency
to drive overall profits.

Deepening business layout and expanding the
market size

Since 2020, China’s Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development (MOHURD), National Development and
Reform Commission (NDRC), Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology (MIIT) and other ministries have
rolled out a number of relevant supportive policies.
Meanwhile, Shanghai, Henan, Anhui, Jiangsu, Zhejiang and
other provinces and municipalities have also released
relevant supportive policies in terms of prefabricated
construction development goals, land use, plot ratio
incentives, financial subsidies and guidance on
consumption. Policies at various levels all support the
vigorous development of prefabricated buildings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As the country vigorously promotes the modernisation
process of the construction industry, the rapid growth of
the prefabricated construction market has become an
industry consensus. Therefore, the market demand for
prefabricated construction components will continue to
increase. According to the latest notification from MOHURD
on the development of prefabricated buildings nationwide
in 2020, the newly constructed prefabricated buildings
nationwide reached 630 million square meters in 2020, an
increase of 50% as compared with 2019, accounting for
approximately 20.5% of the area of newly built buildings.
More than 15% of the target set in the 13th Five-Year Plan
had been accomplished, which was much lower than the
government’s penetration rate target of 30% for 2025. It is
expected that, with the support of policies, the
prefabricated construction industry will maintain rapid
growth within three to five years, and the future market
potential is enormous. Prefabricated construction will soon
usher in a period of rapid development. In the future, the
Group will increase its presence in key areas such as the
Greater Bay Area, Yangtze River Delta, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
and Henan Province, seize industry development
opportunities, and strive to provide consumers with a safer,
more comfortable and smarter living experience, so as to
contribute to the modernisation of China’s new
urbanisation and construction industry.

Creating a new business model covering the entire
industry chain

DIT Group is committed to becoming a leading provider of
overall smart building solutions. In 2020, it announced a
new “Smart Home" strategy to create an innovative
industry chain-wide collaboration model. It is committed to
making technological innovation in the entire industry chain
such as smart houses to help promote the development of
the prefabricated construction industry.
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Professional abilities across the entire industry chain are
the core advantages of the Group. The Group has the
world’s leading six core technology systems, strong R&D
and innovation capabilities, and extensive experience in
external technical cooperation, covering the fields of smart
buildings including BIM, Internet of Things, big data and
artificial intelligence. With technological advantages of the
whole industry chain, the Group has gradually expanded its
business to include landscaping services and decoration
businesses. In the future, the Group plans to develop a
business model covering the entire industry chain into a
“turnkey” business model. The business will cover the
entire life cycle of prefabricated construction including
design, smart prefabricated manufacturing, landscaping
services and decoration.

Collaborating with Central China Group to focus on
Great Central China and create synergy

The Group will actively coordinate with various business
sectors of Central China Group. Under the overall
coordination of Central China Group’s Great Central China’s
strategy**, we will focus on the Great Central China*, and
leverage the advantages of Central China Group in the
wider industrial chain, create synergy, and build a new win-
win model. In terms of Central China Real Estate, we will
implement the “industry + real estate” model, promote the
development of commercial and residential land, and
reduce plant investment costs by acquiring related
commercial and residential land. As for Central China
Management Company, we will explore the “industry + real
estate” cooperation model outside Henan Province and
reach a cooperation agreement with Central China
Management Company to promote business in asset-light
projects. The Group also cooperates with Central China
New Life based on the “Smart Home” strategy to develop
businesses such as home improvement and construction
of data middle platform to provide in-depth services for
products such as smart communities, smart buildings, and
smart homes. The Group will work with the education
sector of Central China Group to deliver training to
industrial workers through cooperation. In the next three
years, DIT Group will train 100,000 industrial workers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the future, the Group will develop collaborative projects
with Central China Group. In addition, we will also focus on
expanding cooperation with third-party customers,
including our major customers such as real estate
developers and builders. We will continue to work with
Central China Group for business, regional, industrial chain,
and design collaboration to accelerate the national
business buildout, explore new projects, and achieve new
business growth.

* Great Central China: Centring on Zhengzhou, the Great Central
Plains region with a radius of 500 kilometres covers 8 provinces
(Henan, Hubei, Shandong, Anhui, Shanxi, Shaanxi, Hebei and
Jiangsu), including 83 provincially administered cities and 7
provincial capitals.

*x Central China Group's ‘Great Central China” strategy: It aims to
become the promoter of the urbanisation and overall social
progress in Central Plains. Central China Group will implement
the "Great Central Plains’ strategy under the belief of “Expanding
base areas and serving the Central Plains”. Measures will be
taken to further stimulate social investment, improve the quality
and level of supply, strengthen the management on the demand
side, and promote the security and stability of innovation,
industrial and supply chains in the region, in a bid to give back to
the Great Central Plains region and make it a pilot region and a
model region to create a new development pattern of dual
circulation.

Developing a technological foundation and
empowering the Group with innovation and
technology

The Group will consolidate its technological foundation,
bring down its costs with leading R&D and design, and
promote BIM data through a digital middle platform for
smart design, manufacturing and operation and
maintenance. It will also implement the strategy of “Smart
Home"” to create an innovative industry chain-wide
collaboration model, improve the quality of buildings,
reduce the cost of prefabricated buildings, and explore a
faster and better industrial development path for
prefabricated buildings.
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The building of the digital middle platform will allow DIT
Group to quickly develop different solutions to meet
customer needs and figure out corresponding costs during
bidding and make adjustment based on customer needs.
This will make market development much easier, visualise
costs and bring them under control. As the number of
projects undertaken increases, data in our data middle
platform continues to accumulate and diversify. More and
more new businesses will keep emerging in the future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Results

The Group was principally engaged in the production and sale of
prefabricated construction units and equipments, and granting
licensing in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 56.5%
from approximately HK$695.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$1,089.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The significant increase in revenue
were mainly attributable to (i) the increase in the operation for
the manufacture and sale of prefabricated components and the
continuous increase in the production capacity utilized by
technology parks during the year; and (ii) a significant increase in
the income of licenses from the third parties. As a result, the
Group recorded sales revenue for year ended 31 December 2020
of prefabricated construction units of approximately HK$915.3
million (2019: approximately HK$579.9 million), granting licenses
of approximately HK$67.7 million (2019: approximately HK$36.4
million), decoration and landscaping services of approximately
HK$37.4 million (2019: nil), prefabricated construction equipments
of approximately HK$28.0 million (2019: approximately HK$65.0
million), consulting services of approximately HK$27.2 million
(2019: approximately HK$1.3 million) and rental income of
approximately HK$13.7 million (2019: approximately HK$13.3
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of approximately HK$744.1
million (2019: approximately HK$518.1 million) for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in sales of prefabricated construction components,
while the corresponding cost of sales also increased at the same
time; as the additional plants which have been in its initial
operation were in low production volume, the increase in each
fixed expense therefore resulted in the increase of cost.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately
HK$167.4 million from approximately HK$177.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$345.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The gross profit margin
increase to 31.7% in 2020 from 25.5% in 2019. The income
achieved by granting licenses for the year increased by 85.9%
when compared with last year, and the actual gross profit of
prefabricated construction components increased by around
86.2% when compared with the corresponding period of last
year.

Other income

The other income of the Group increased by approximately
HK$5.9 million from approximately HK$5.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$11.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Other income mainly
comprised of interest income from a related party of
approximately HK$7.9 million and interest income arose from
bank deposits of approximately HK$3.1 million.

Other gains — net

For the year ended 31 December 2020, other gains — net
amounting to approximately HK$2.7 million mainly comprised of
(i) gains on transferring licenses of approximately HK$5.0 million;
(i) gains on disposal of equipments of approximately HK$0.5
million; (i) gains on fair value from investment properties of
approximately HK$0.3 million; and (iv) net exchange losses of
approximately HK$0.2 million.
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Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately
HK$69.9 million (2019: approximately HK$55.4 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The increase in expense was primarily
attributable to the organizational structure adjustment to the
Group, the increase in regional salesforce, the increase in salary
and the number of plants in operation and growth of income with
the moderate growth in transportation fees for product sales.

Administrative expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the administrative
expenses increased by 12.9% to approximately HK$132.5 million
from approximately HK$117.3 million in 2019, which was mainly
attributable to the staff expenses increased by approximately
HK$7.5 million in 2020, while the remaining increase was
attributable to the increment of other general administrative
expenses, such as rental expenses, professional fee,
entertainment, travelling expenses and office expenses etc.

Finance costs

Finance costs of approximately HK$32.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 represented (i) the interest expenses
of approximately HK$38.6 million for the borrowings; (ii) the
finance charges of approximately HK$1.5 million on the lease
liabilities; and (iii) capitalisation interest of approximately HK$7.1
million in plant under development for prefabricated construction
business for the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$443.9 million (2019:
approximately HK$82.4 million) and the current ratio of the Group
is 1.5 (2019: 1.1).

As at 31 December 2020, the borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,380.0 million (31 December 2019:
HK$474.7 million) and the net gearing ratio, calculated as net
debt divided by total equity, is 30.2% (2019: 12.1%).

Capital Structure

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 25 July 1991. The capital structure of the
Group comprised issued share capital and reserves. Details of
the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Structure of Borrowings and Deposits

ERBENREEERAT « 2T FFR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group continued to adopt a prudent principle on financial
management and centralise our funding and financial

EEE WD

EERFHER
AEBEBRSEEEYRA - £HESMUB
B ARBUERSSRESRFEL - URERE

management. Therefore, we maintained a high proportion of A&AEBHEEKF RZZE_TF+_A=+—H"
cash with a reasonable level of borrowing. As at 31 December ARNEERITERLRBEGENERFEMOT -
2020, the repayment schedule of the Group’s bank loans and
lease liabilities was as follows:
As at As at
Repayment Schedule BNEH 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
R-B-ZF RZZ—-N%F
+=ZA=t+—H +-A=+—H
HK’000 HK'000
FET FET
Bank borrowings RITEN
Within one year —FR 386,999 351,649
More than one year, but not exceeding two years —4E LA FERFBAMRE 375,895 78,702
More than two year, but not exceeding five years ~ WA FEARBBTE 545,839 44,375
More than five years HBpAF 71,289 -
1,380,022 474,726
Lease Liabilities HERE
Within one year —FR 13,735 10,968
More than one year, but not exceeding two years  —4ELA_H{BRFBBME 7,784 2,770
More than two year, but not exceeding five years ~ MEIA F{ERBBRE 11,184 237
More than five years BBRF 12,576 =
45,279 13,975
Total debt BB L 1,425,301 488,701
Interest payable FERF & 600 58
Less: restricted cash for borrowings B BREIRSEE (130,000) (114,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalents R MRS EEER (443,882) (82,415)
Net debt FER 852,019 292,344
Total equity RS 2,821,584 2,419,043
Net gearing ratio FERLE 30.2% 12.1%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Foreign exchange risk

Our business mainly operates in the PRC with most of our
transactions settled in Renminbi, and our financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars. Renminbi is not a freely
convertible currency. The State Administration of Foreign
Exchange, under the authority of the People’s Bank of China,
controls the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies. The
value of Renminbi is subject to changes in central government
policies and to international economic and political developments
affecting supply and demand in the China Foreign Exchange
Trading System market. We do not believe that we currently have
any significant direct foreign exchange risk and have not used
any derivative financial instruments to hedge our exposure to
such risk.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group is profitable and
without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, among others, the operating results, cash
flow, financial condition and capital requirements of the Group
and the interests of the shareholders of the Company.
Declaration of dividend by the Company is also subject to the
Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific periods.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Business
Overview” above, the Group does not have any future plans for
material investments or capital assets as at the date of this
annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS

As of 31 December 2020, there were no significant investments
held by the Company, nor were there any material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during
the year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 848 (2019: 630)
employees excluding the Directors. 843 (2019: 627) of them
worked in Mainland China and 5 (2019: 3) of them worked in
Hong Kong, China.

Employees are basically remunerated based on the nature of
their job and their performance as well as the prevailing market
trend. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident
fund, medical benefits and year end discretionary bonus.
Following a people-oriented approach, we implement a
systematic recruitment, training and incentive platform, providing
internal fuel for the growth of the Company. In doing so, we
create a desirable workplace for our employees to develop and
flourish.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant assets
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities and bank
loan granted to the Group, except for the one as disclosed in the
Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation threatened against the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Weixing ("Mr. Liu"), aged 61, was appointed as an
executive Director on 21 August 2020. Mr. Liu is currently the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Liu has over 37 years of experience in
banking and finance.

Mr. Liu held positions of officer and vice division chief responsible
for industrial and commercial credit facilities in Luoyang Region
Center Branch of People’s Bank of China from 1979 to 1984. Mr.
Liu held several positions in Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China from 1985 to August 2016, including the vice president of
Luoyang Region Center Branch, the vice president of Sanmenxia
City Branch, an officer of Henan Province Branch, assistant to the
president of Henan Province Branch, the vice president of Henan
Province Branch, the president of Anhui Province Branch, the
president of Chongging City Branch, the president of Henan
Province Branch and the head of Internal Audit Department of
Main Branch.

Mr. Liu obtained a certificate of graduation in banking
management from Henan Banking College* (7 & iF 17 £ 4%) in
1979, a certificate of graduation in financial management from
Zhengzhou University in 1983, a master degree in economics
from Henan University in 1998 and a certificate of graduation in
law from Tsinghua University in 2005.

Mr. Guo Weiqiang (“Mr. Guo”), aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 September 2019. Mr. Guo is currently
the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Guo joined the CCRE Group in 2001 and has held various
positions in the CCRE Group since then. Throughout the 18 years
in the CCRE Group, Mr. Guo worked as the manager of the
treasury department, the assistant general manager of the
finance center and the deputy director of the office of the board
of directors of the CCRE Group. Mr. Guo also served as the
executive deputy general manager of the CCRE Group's office in
Nanyang City, the executive general manager of the CCRE
Group'’s office in Xinxiang City, the general manager of the CCRE
Group's regional head office in Xinxiang and the assistant
president and vice president of CCRE. Mr. Guo was also the
secretary of the party committee of CCRE in 2018.
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Mr. Guo obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Real Estate Operation
and Management from Henan University of Economics and Law
in 2001. He obtained a Master’s Degree in Engineering from
Wuhan University in 2009 and a Postgraduate Diploma in
Professional Accounting from The University of Hong Kong in
2011.

Mr. Guo obtained the qualification of Senior Accountant in Henan
in 2009 and was qualified as a Senior International Finance
Manager by the International Financial Management Association
2011. Mr. Guo has been a Certified Practising Accountant of the
CPA Australia since 2012.

Mr. Guo served as the representative of the 13th and 14th
National People’'s Congress of Honggi District, Xinxiang City, as
well as the representative of the 13th National People’s Congress
of Xinxiang City.

Ms. Wang Jing (“Ms. Wang"), aged 50, was appointed as an
executive Director on 21 August 2020. Ms. Wang is currently the
vice president of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Limited* (S8 R B ERH R EXEEBR A

Ms. Wang has 29 years of extensive working experience. She was
a technician of the Research Institute of Zhongyuan
Pharmaceutical Factory* (# JR &L &2 ERE 9T A7) from 1991 to 1997.
She joined the CCRE Group in 1997 until April 2020 and held
several positions there. During her 23 years in the CCRE Group,
Ms. Wang served as the vice president of Central China Real Estate
Group (China) Company Limited* G2 EELE () BRAA])
(“Central China Real Estate”), including the general manager of
the design management center, the assistant president and the
general manager of the Forest Peninsula Project* Gr#rEIER),
the general manager of Zhengzhou Metropolitan Area, the
director of the product management center, the general manager
of the Zhengzhou-Kaifeng Region and the general manager of
Henan Central China Commercial Real Estate Management
Company Limited* (B @2 X B X MERKLEERBR A A
during which she was also charged with managing Henan Central
China Modern Agricultural Investment Company* (Al R 2R £
Z 8 E 2 7)) and the Window of Jianye Project* (¥ 2 &8 H).
She was also a member of the implementation committee of
Central China Real Estate.
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Ms. Wang graduated from Zhengzhou Air Defense Force
Academy in 1991, majoring in mechatronics, and obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from
National University of Singapore in 2012.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wu Wallis (“Ms. Wu"), alias Li Hua, aged 39, was appointed
as a non-executive Director on 17 September 2019. Ms. WU is
currently a non-executive director of CCRE.

Ms. Wu obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Architecture from the
University of New South Wales in Australia in 2006, and a
Master's Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University in
2007. Before joining the CCRE Group in 2006, she worked in
Woodhead International (Beijing) and Banatex Architects Pty Ltd
in Sydney Australia in 2005. Ms. Wu is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jun ("Mr. Wang"), aged 40, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 17 September 2019. He has over 17 years
of experience in the real estate industry and capital market.

From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Wang served in PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company with the latest position as a
senior associate; from 2007 to 2011, he served as the head of
investor relations and a senior manager of the finance
department in Country Garden Holdings Company Limited; and
from 2011 to June 2018, he served in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
with the latest position as an executive director. Mr. Wang has
served as Central China Real Estate Limited's executive director
since August 2018. Mr. Wang has served as Central China New
Life Limited’s executive director and chairman since October
2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in 2002 and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Hongqing (“Mr. Jiang"), aged 54, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 2 February 2015. Mr.
Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural
Design and Theory from South China University of Technology.
He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in
Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang also studied in Ecole d’
Architecture Parisla-Seine in Paris, France. He is a Professorate
Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Jiang presided over and participated in a
number of major engineering technology or research projects at
national, provincial and ministerial level; and he has a certain
extent of study in Xiongan New Area, China’s Hainan Free Trade
Zone, Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macau — Bay Area, urban and
rural development, urban renewal and health (pension) industry.
Mr. Jiang was an executive director of the Hong Kong Life
Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock Code: 8085)
from 1 December 2012 to 29 September 2017. Mr. Jiang was also
an executive director of Birmingham International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2309) from 30 August 2011 to 20 January
2012.

Mr. Lee Chi Ming (“Mr. Lee"), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 December 2014. He is
a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (“ACCA") and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA"). Mr. Lee graduated from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He also holds a LLB degree from University of
London and a master degree in Business Administration from
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee has over 25 years' experience
in the fields of accounting, regulations and asset management.
He held various senior positions with the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC"), Hong Kong since 1995, as director of
Licensing, director of Corporate Planning and director of Finance
and Administration. Mr. Lee retired from SFC in July 2014, and he
is the director and managing partner of Benington Capital Partner
Ltd. Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive director of Huatai
Securities Company Limited (stock code: 6886) which is listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ma Lishan ("Mr. Ma"), aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 June 2016. He has
extensive experience in operation and management of modern
large-scale corporations and listed companies. Mr. Ma graduated
from Beijing Foreign Studies University in the PRC in 1975. Mr. Ma
served in various positions such as chairman, executive director,
general manager in certain large-scale joint ventures under China
Oil & Foodstuff Corporation. From January 1996 to June 2003, Mr.
Ma served as an executive director of China Foods Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 506). From
May 1997 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as an executive director
and the managing director of China Foods Limited. From June
2000 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as the deputy general manager
of China Foods Import and Export (Group) Co., Ltd. From June
2008 to January 2009, Mr. Ma was an executive director of Sino
Resources Group Limited (now known as Elife Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 223). From
March 2008 to present, he is an independent non-executive
director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 886). From 2 August 2009 to
present, he is an independent non-executive director of Sunac
China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1918). From September 2010 to August 2012, he was
also the executive director, managing director and chairman of
Hao Tian Resources Group Limited (now known as Hao Tian
Development Group Limited), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 474). He was the senior consultant in Hao
Tian Development Group Limited from August 2012 to August
2016. From March 2016 to present, he is also an independent
non-executive director of SRE Group Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1207). From August 2016 to
present, he is an independent non-executive director of Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 993).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Dayou (“Mr. Yu"), aged 59, was appointed as chief
technology officer of the Company on 1 May 2016. Mr. Yu has
over 30 years of experience in architectural design and property
industry. He has held technical management positions as Deputy
General Manager of Hunan Office of China Poly Property* (4
RFHE MR A A]) and General Manager of Hunan Architectural
Design Institute. Mr. Yu graduated from architectural profession
university in 1989. He has led or involved in formulating
numerous local standards and has personally owned more than
40 patent rights. He also received 3 Elite Awards in Science
Technology* (1 Im Bt £ #% 1i7 #%). Mr. Yu is a Senior Engineer,
Certified Level-one Architect, an expert of Hunan Province
Committee of Experts of Engineering Construction
Standardisation* (#if & TIEEZR M HTIZELEREZE ) and
an expert of Committee of Information Management of National
Construction Enterprise CIO Development Union* (BIZ s 2
COERBBEEAMEEEZER)

Mr. Davin Wu ("Mr. Wu"), aged 36, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer of the Group in November 2020. Mr. Wu has
more than 15 years of extensive experience in corporate finance,
investment, and capital markets, having work experience in
multinational investment banks, Hong Kong listed companies and
Big Four accounting firm. Before joining the company, Mr. Wu
held various positions in a number of multinational firms
including Digital China Holdings, Credit Suisse AG, Bank of
America Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific), Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.,
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr. Wu holds a bachelor’'s degree in
accounting and finance from the University of Hong Kong and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices as the Board considers that
good and effective corporate governance is essential for
enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to the
investing public and other stakeholders. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange, except for the followings:

(@)

34

Code provision A.6.7 provides that independent non-
executive Directors and non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to their
respective business engagements and travel restrictions as
a result of COVID-19, Ms. Wu Wallis, Mr. Wang Jun and Mr.
Jiang Hongging were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2020 and the
special general meetings of the Company held on 17 July
2020 and 30 September 2020; and

Code provision E.1.2 provides that the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. Due to his
other engagements and travel restrictions as a result of
COVID-19, Mr. Wu Po Sum (the former chairman of the
Board and an executive Director who resigned on 21
August 2020) was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2020.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. In response
to the specific enquiry made to all Directors by the Company, all
the Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are high caliber executives with diversified
industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and experience
to the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, whose
biographies are set out on pages 28 to 33 of this annual report.
Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and
Senior Management Biography”, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between Board
members, and in particular, between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board maintained
a high level of independence, with more than one-third of the
Board comprised of independent non-executive Directors, who
had exercised independent judgement. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications whenever the names of Directors are disclosed.
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Meetings 23
The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in = B ZE - -_EF+-_A=-+—HIFEHNES2
the general meeting and the Board meetings during the year ;ijz;%ﬁA&f);‘z: EESE TN &
ended 31 December 2020 are as follows: fEREERIATS ¢
Number of meetings
attended/held during the
respective tenure
REBEBBBEHE
BITHEBRRY
General Board
meetings meetings
BRAE EZEZgE3
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Liu Weixing (Chairman) REESRE(EE) 0/1 11
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZEZZFNAZ+—HEZME)
Mr. Wu Po Sum HHER LA 072 4/4
(appointed on 17 September 2019, resigned (ﬁ":%*ﬂiﬂﬂ +EtBERT
on 21 August 2020) RZZZZFN\AZ+—HEHT)
Mr. Guo Weigiang (Chief Executive Officer) SPEIR A (FTEAEE) 1/3 5/5
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (R—ZE—NFALAT+LEBEERT)
Ms. Wang Jing B %‘%ﬁi 0/1 11
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZZEZZEFNAZT+—HEZME)
Mr. Yang Hongwei (appointed on 1 July 2018, 15 RE k4 (EAfT\ NFEA—HE 0/2 3/3
resigned on 8 May 2020) ZE - RNZZE-ZFHA//\HET)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) = f#Ext 0/3 5/5
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (RZEBE—NFNLA +tHEZE)
Mr. Wang Jun F &AL 0/3 5/5
(appointed on 17 September 2019) (R=ZZE—NFhA ++-HEEZFE)
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Jiang Hongging ZHESE 0/3 4/5
(appointed on 2 February 2015) (R—ZE—RAF-_A-—HEZMT)
Mr. Lee Chi Ming EERSLLE 3/3 4/5
(appointed on 30 December 2014) (RA—ZT—ME+_A=1+BEZE)
Mr. Ma Lishan B e 3/3 5/5
(appointed on 28 June 2016) (R=E—XRFEXA-+\BEZT)
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Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board has delegated the supervision of the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive
Directors. However, the Directors are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by guiding and
monitoring the Company to achieve its strategic objectives. The
Board's primary functions are to set corporate policy and overall
strategy for the Group and to oversee the management’s
performance. Accordingly, the Board approves strategic plans,
major disposals and acquisitions, connected transactions and
other significant operational issues. Furthermore, Board meetings
may be held on occasions when a Board level decision on a
particular matter is required, otherwise daily operational
decisions as well as the implementation of the Board’s policies
and strategies are delegated to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To ensure their contributions to the Board remain informed and
relevant, all the Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skill.

During the year, all the Directors were provided with regular
updates and presentations on changes and developments of the
Group’s business and the latest developments in laws, rules and
regulations relating to director’s duties and responsibilities.

The Company organised one in-house seminar conducted by an
international law firm in August 2020. Most of the Directors and
certain senior management of the Company attended this
seminar accordingly. For the year ended 31 December 2020, all
of the Directors confirmed that they have obtained sufficient
continuous professional development training.
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Throughout the Report Period, the Directors have participated in
continuous professional training as follows:

EEREHE  EFC2NHEEEXREIE

zzw :

Type of
continuous professional

development training M@

Name of directors Expns FEEXRREIER W
Mr. Liu Weixing %J’%Eﬁ‘ii
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZZEZZEFNA+—HEZE) A&B
Mr. Wu Po Sum AR EE
(resigned on 21 August 2020) (RZZZZFNAZ+—AFT) A&B
Mr. Guo Weigiang PT84 A&B
Ms. Wang Jing T BXT
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZZEZZFN\AZ+T—REZE) A&B
Mr. Yang Hongwei BRERE
(resigned on 8 May 2020) (RZZE=ZFH A/ \BEMT) A&B
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) F Mt A&B
Mr. Wang Jun T &L A&B
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHERE A&B
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREE A&B
Mr. Ma Lishan B kA A&B
Notes: Mt -
(1) A: Attending seminar(s), conference(s), forum(s) and/or training (1) AHERTE - S wERSEIIRRE
course(s)
) B: Reading materials provided by external parties or by the Company  (2) B:BEMINBALHARRREOME - BEFEETRR
including but not limited to updates relating to the Company’s business BANREBRESTRELEBE  CEEANEEER -
or directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and TR R EER AR T AN ER

regulatory update, Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-executive
director should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election.
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At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. As such,
the Company considers that such provision is sufficient to meet
the underlying objective of this code provision.

According to the bye-laws of the Company (the "Bye-laws”),
Directors appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting and can be eligible for re-
appointment at that time.

Insurance of the Directors and Officers

The Company has bought liability insurance for Directors and
officers in respect of legal action against the Directors and
officers which is in compliance with Code provision A.1.8 of the
Code.

Board Diversity Policy

Under code provision A.5.6 of the Code, the nomination
committee (or the board) should have a policy concerning
diversity of board member, and should disclose the policy in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 4 July 2014. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board and endeavors to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company'’s
business. In determining the optimum composition of the Board,
diversity of Board members will be considered from a number of
factors in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience and knowledge on the Board. The
Company will also take into account its own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

The Board currently consists of two female directors and six male
directors and Directors are at ages ranging from late-30s to 70
years old, serving on the Board for different tenures. The Board
will take opportunity to increase the proportion of female
members over time when selecting and making recommendation
on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The Board would
ensure that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved
with reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and
local recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of
bringing the Board to gender parity.
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Board Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals of
high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their
chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and
skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group and
its Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability to
exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board and the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as it
deems appropriate given the then-current and anticipated future
needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications
at a minimum to be required of any Board members in
recommending to the Board potential new board members, or
the continued service of existing members:

— reputation for integrity

— accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company

— commitment in respect of available time

— merit and potential contributions that such candidate could
bring to the Board with reference to the Company'’s Board
Diversity Policy (as adopted and amended by the Board
from time to time), including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, independence, skills, knowledge and length of
service

— in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
director of the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of
such candidate with reference to, among other things, the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules; and (i) the guidance and requirements relating to
independent non-executive directors as set out in Code
Provision A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and in
the "Guidance for Boards and Directors” published by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

— board succession planning considerations and the long-
term needs of the Company
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The position of Chairman is held by Mr. Liu Weixing, and the
position of Chief Executive Officer is held by Mr. Guo Weigiang.
These two separate positions have clear distinction in
responsibilities.

Mr. Liu Weixing, being the Chairman, is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions for the Group, to
ensure that adequate, complete and reliable information is
provided to all Directors in a timely manner, and to ensure that
the issues raised at the Board meetings are explained
appropriately.

Mr. Guo Weigiang, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Group and the
implementation of business policies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board, and is accountable to the
Board for the overall operation of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has set up an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The primary role and
function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
providing an independent review of the Group's financial
reporting and risk management and internal control systems as
well as the internal and external audit functions.

The Audit Committee currently comprises all of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging,
Mr. Lee Chi Ming and Mr. Ma Lishan. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lee Chi Ming is an
independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional accounting qualification as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
held three meetings to review with the management the Group's
adopted accounting principles and practices, internal controls
and financial reporting matters in conjunction with the external
auditors, including reviews of the half-year and annual financial
results and reports. The Audit Committee has also discussed on
the financial, operational and compliance controls in particular
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Audit Committee has
not taken a different view from the Board regarding the selection
and re-appointment of the external auditors. The attendance of
each member of the Audit Committee is set out below:

HE_TZ_ZF+_A=+—HILFE BFEKZ
BgRTZRed HEEERIINEZBMAR

HHAEEMEAN G RAIRER - AEPEE
LM BEREEE  ERREEMNYFEREF
MBEERRE BRZEGNHUE EER
BRETIELFH  BFRRAERESF KUK
ERee T EMER BEIERELREHREREH
URBIFEINEIRERAHEERERE
EREZESUENEREEINEZEM T EEES
EWEAANERSIE SBEZEZESNENLE
EERAAT

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REHZHE HESERE
Mr. Lee Chi Ming (Chairman) TEREE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Jiang Hongging EREBLAE 3/3
Mr. Ma Lishan Bl 3/3

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management and the independent auditor of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
has discussed the auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the annual results and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
which clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board on a regular basis (including
the skills, knowledge and experience), to recommend to the
Board on the selection of suitable candidates for directorships
and on the succession planning for the Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Liu Weixing; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the structure and
composition and the succession plan of the Board, and to
evaluate and make recommendations on individuals nominated
for directorship. The attendance of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

ERERWSE

ETEF_A=+—HLFE - ?%%
REH NEREZSNHRE

REZEZ

ZEERT-REE

ﬁ&%&ﬁﬂ I & ?%%%Lﬁﬁﬁ&kﬁ
c BIRBEEEKEMLERENT ¢

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

RERE HESERE
Mr. Liu Weixing (Chairman) %Jﬁ}%ﬁ%i( FE) N/A
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZZZZFNAZ+—AEZT) T EA
Mr. Wu Po Sum HHRAR ST 1”1
(resigned on 21 August 2020) (RZZEZEFNAZ+—HEE)
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHELE 1
Mr. Lee Chi Ming ZEREE 1
Remuneration Committee FMEEE
The Company has set up a remuneration committee (the ZAABEKIHFWEE S ((HFWMEEL]) I E
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of K ESSEEPEESHIIHEEHILRBE §EM§§
reference which clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The EMTERSEAF AN EEEINSREEA
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make B #y B 88 & Bl Bk K 225 - ’E%#@ﬁﬁﬂm R

recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, and
ensure no Director or any of his associates may be involved in
any decisions as to his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Liu Weixing; and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi
Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management,
consider and approve the renewal of the Company’s service
agreements with its executive Directors and matters relating to
the early termination of such agreements upon change of Board
composition of the Company. The attendance of each member of
the Remuneration Committee is set out below:

BE—_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HBILFE  FMHE
BERT-REE UBRBTEELSAER
ABWMFHGEA LR B RIERNARRHRTT
EZETOREHSE  URARARREEFSK
BEEPMBRFRULABHENER - SFHZ
BEgXEMBETHENT

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REE]E HESERE
Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Chairman) EHERLE (TE) 11
Mr. Liu Weixing 2FELE N/A
(appointed on 21 August 2020) (RZZE_ZFNA=+—RHEZE) A
Mr. Wu Po Sum AR E A
(resigned on 21 August 2020) (R=E_ZTFNA=-+—HEHMT) 11
Mr. Lee Chi Ming TEREE 11

The existing Remuneration Committee will continue to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management of
the Group, and to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors
are entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances, benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension
scheme on behalf of our Directors) or discretionary bonuses,
which are determined by the Board having regard to the Group's
performance and the prevailing market conditions and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company. Details of
Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of five highest paid
individuals of the Company (including senior management of the
Group) are set out in Notes 11 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company's assets. The Board has
the responsibility to evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and to ensure the Company establish and
maintain appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or 10ss.

The audit committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group conducts
an annual review on whether there is a need for an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s simple operating structure, as
opposed to a separate internal audit department, the Board is
directly responsible for internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. It formulates the annual internal audit
plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews on
the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities
and risks, develops action plans and recommendations to
address the identified risks.

The Board conducts a review on the risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an annual basis and has
the responsibility to maintain an effective risk management and
internal control system. The review involves all material
monitoring aspects, including but not limited to finance,
operation, compliance and risk management. The Board also
reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate. The Group's internal control
system is comprised of a system of controlled management
wherein various authoritative limits are placed to ensure that the
Group is able to supervise, control and assess various functions
within Group. The system further permits the Group to safeguard
its accounting records to minimise material errors in order to
provide financial information as accurately as possible.
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The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries. Meanwhile, the Company handles and disseminates
the inside information according to the related policy to ensure
that the inside information is kept confidential before being
approved for dissemination and the relevant information will be
released effectively and conformably.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company engaged
an external independent consultant to conduct a review on the
internal control system of the Group in order to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The Board has also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company'’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function. Based on the
above, the Board is of the view that the Company has established
a proper risk management and internal control system which is
effective and adequate.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company for the financial year under review is
PricewaterhouseCoopers. During the year ended 31 December
2020, remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor of the Company to the Group was
approximately HK$2,033,000 and HK$0 respectively.

DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020. The auditor of the Company acknowledges its
reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the financial
statement during the year. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
going concern. The statement made by the auditor of the
Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to 83 of this annual report.

46

ARBHEELRBERE  BARAEE T8
SREEBREBEERREREER BERA
FHREE KB IE Rt —&R$E3| - R - A2 A
BRARMHBARREERZMAREE - LERA
FHEERESEMEN —BERE  YBERBRR
—BUNERMHERER -

BE-_Z-_ZFF+__A=1+—HLEFE £ARF
LB HNBREEER RSB A EESE -
HREEKTNEEER EFGNERAARRF
25 AREZRVEERBE A ENER - 8
TEFERKE BIRELEHEEESTRE °
BIELN  EEEREARACELLZLERRKRE
BREMBBEENAIETSE

288 B B 4% BURT N =

ARFRB BN B EE RS AR RRAES
HETEMA - RE-T-TF+-A=t+—AL
AR EBE AR R BRI
PRS0 BS540 52,033, 00078 7T R OFBTE «

ESERZBEMARAFHRROFE

EERRERREARAEE-_ZS-ZEF+=A
ST+ —BUEFEMBREOEL - AR FZHAD
RSB EPERERFAVBRERBRENE
FoBEFUTMNBERMNEHXBRANEKRNTH
AREEIREHARARNIFECEENELEEAS
Mo RARIZEMBEEEGAVBERROBRER
R RPFH N AT RE 755 83 BB X HAHH

HA o



EREENEEEERAR « —E-ZFFH N

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Ho Pong was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 14 June 2017. He
is full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters and facilitating communication
between Board members, the Shareholders and management of
the Company. For the year under review, the company secretary
has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Rights to convene special general meetings

(1) Under the Company'’s bye-laws
Pursuant to Bye-law 62 of the Company’s bye-laws, a
special general meeting (“SGM") shall be convened on
requisition by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”, or individually the “Shareholder”), as
provided by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Companies Act”), or, in default, may be
convened by the requisitionists.

(2) Under the Companies Act

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act, a
Shareholder or Shareholders holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may requisition the Directors to forthwith
proceed duly to convene a SGM by depositing a written
requisition at the registered office of the Company.
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The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at the
meeting), signed by the requisitionists, deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Rights to put forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act as follows:

Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act allow certain
Shareholder(s) to requisition the Company to give notice to
the Shareholders in respect of any resolution which is
intended to be moved at an annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM") or circulate a statement in respect of
any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a
general meeting of the Company.
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Under Section 79 of the Companies Act, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
it shall be the duty of the Company on the requisition in
writing by such number of Shareholders:

(@) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting.

(b)  to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The number of Shareholders necessary to make the above
requisitions to the Company shall be:

(@aa) either any number of Shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or

(bb) not less than one hundred Shareholders. Notice of
any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each
such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service
of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such
resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by
giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in
any manner permitted for giving him notice of
meetings of the Company, provided that the copy
shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the
same manner and, so far as practicable, at the same
time as notice of the meeting and, where it is not
practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it
shall be served or given as soon as practicable
thereafter.
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Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to
be met before the Company is bound to give notice of any
resolution or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to
Section 80 of the Companies Act, the Company shall not be
bound under Section 79 to give notice of any resolution or
to circulate any statement unless:

(@ acopy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists,
or two or more copies which between contain the
signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited at the
registered office of the Company:

() inthe case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the
meeting; and

(i) in the case of any other requisition, not less
than one week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expense in giving effect thereto;

provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered
office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the abovementioned time shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Rights to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and be sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 7707-
7708, 77th Floor, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also make
enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

To manage its relationship with its Shareholders and the
investment community, the Company communicates through
publication of announcements, circulars and annual and interim
reports. Such information is disseminated through the Stock
Exchange at its designated website (http://www.hkexnews.hk),
and can also be accessed via the Company’s website
(http://dit.aconnect.com.hk). The Directors, company secretary
and other appropriate members of the senior management will
also respond to inquiries from the Shareholders and the
investment community put to the Company in the manner as
mentioned under the heading “Shareholders’ Rights” in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to the
memorandum of association of the Company and Bye-laws, the
current versions of which are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, design, manufacture and sale of assembled
building prefabricated units, licensing and property investment in
the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group'’s revenue is derived primarily from business activities
conducted in Hong Kong and China Mainland.

A fair review of the Group's business, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the company, the
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of 2020 and the likely future developments, is set out in
the Business Review and Prospects and Financial Review
sections of this Annual Report.

Disclosure related to the Group's environmental policies and

performance and relationships with major stakeholders are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the state of affairs of the Group and the

Company at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 84 to 211.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 21
May 2021 to 26 May 2021, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered,
for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all
transfers of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and appropriate transfer forms must be lodged
for registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20
May 2021.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the annual general meeting of the Company
will be held on 26 May 2021. Notice of the annual general
meeting will be published and dispatched to the shareholders of
the Company in due course.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years/period is set out on
page 212.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group revalued its investment
properties by using the combinations of an income capitalisation
approach and a direct comparison approach. The increase in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$260,000 (31 December
2019: fair value gain of HK$631,000) has been credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
statement of changes in equity on page 88 and Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. LIU Weixing (Chairman)
(appointed on 21 August 2020)
Mr. WU Po Sum
(resigned on 21 August 2020)
Mr. GUO Weigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. WANG Jing
(appointed on 21 August 2020)
Mr. YANG Hongwei
(resigned on 8 May 2020)

Non-executive Director:
Ms. WU Wallis (alias Li Hua)
Mr. WANG Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. JJANG Hongging

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Mr. MA Lishan

The Company has received from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and Officers Liability Insurance undertaken by the
Company provides an indemnity to all the directors of the
Company under which every director will be indemnified by the
Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities incurred by him in the execution and discharge of his
duties or in relation thereto. Such insurance has been in force
during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and as of the
date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Liu Weixing has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which Mr. Liu Weixing agreed to act as
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 21
August 2020.

Mr. Guo Weigiang has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as an executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from 17 September
2019. Ms. Wang Jing has entered into a service contract with the
Company pursuant to which Ms. Wang Jing agreed to act as
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 21
August 2020.

Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) has signed a letter of appointment
dated 17 September 2019 with the company pursuant to which
she agreed to act as non-executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 17 September 2019. Mr. Wang Jun has
signed a letter of appointment dated 17 September 2019 with the
company pursuant to which he agreed to act as non-executive
Director for a term of three years with effect from 17 September
2019.

Mr. Ma Lishan has signed a letter of appointment dated 21
August 2020 with the Company pursuant to which he agreed to
act as independent non-executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 21 August 2020. Mr. Lee Chi Ming has
signed a letter of appointment dated 21 August 2020 with the
Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as independent
non-executive Director for a term of three years with effect from
21 August 2020. Mr. Jiang Hongging has signed a letter of
appointment dated 30 June 2019 with the Company pursuant to
which he agreed to act as independent non-executive Director
for a term of three years with effect from 30 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emolument of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals
with highest remuneration are set out in Notes 11 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) pursuant to the MPF Schemes Ordinance for its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. Our employees are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to this retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the following Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which
(i) have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) have been entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code to
the Listing Rules.

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
the Company

EERRG - HEARGREFNES

Rixk=

RZZBEZZEF+A=+—H " THESEKAEAR
AR T BB ER AR A Sk A 8 A B
(EERBEBEPIBS7IEFFRBEGD ([FFH
KERE M) BXVE) Bikn - MHERN RES
PHEASEARERES () BREFES REEGHIEXV
B 7 k87 EBE A AN A 7] Se Bk A2 P 004 21 So oAk
B (BEREELFLAERIIBEBEESEREIE
SRBEENERIAE) (N REBHFRPE
A ERGKEHARAGFENETMAOER
Kogg - iniRiE EmRAIRESTAIE Z1TAE
RNA R M R TR OR R

RARBROREABROPFENGE A

Percentage
Name of Director or Number of Number of of the Issued
chief executive Capacity Share Options held Shares held Share Capital
LB E&1T
EESESTHRAB®E 5S4 BEBEREZAR BERGEAE BAEAEDH
(note 2) (note 1)
(Kt:z2) (KtaE1)
Mr. Liu Weixing Director 28,000,000 3,290,000 1.12%
RmELE BF
Mr. Guo Weigiang Director 21,000,000 1,000,000 0.79%
2L &R A 2%
Ms. Wang Jing Director 8,000,000 - 0.29%
T Hat 5%
Note: Bt
i It was based on 2,802,400,730 Shares as at 31 December 2020. 1 BN T =_TF+=H=+—H2802400,730 &7 5T
2. Such interest in the Shares is held pursuant to the share options 2. BERMER DREERET S (EER T XORENE

granted under the Share Option Scheme (as defined below), the details
of which are disclosed on pages 62 to 64.
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Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, as at 31 December 2020, so far as is
known to any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
none of the Directors nor the chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract, transaction or arrangement of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any Director or an entity connected with any Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2020.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
all or any substantial part of the Group’s business was entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT
TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, as far as known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had the
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
the Company

EERRNIRGREFARGIESR

)

RZEZZEF+A=+—H BEFHERQF
BRIBABAM  THAB(BESEHARRES
TTERABBRIN) RAR TR, KB O FEER
BEE LSRG BEXVERE 2 K30 S IE B M
RRRBRBENRIEEF R BB EHIE 336 AR
RIATRENZEMAARENERIOAR

RAERXTRORAEABROFFENER

Percentage of

Number of the Issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital

HEBT

RERERE 514 BERGEE BEBD L

(note 1)

(Bt 1)

Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)  Beneficial owner 1,470,110,000 52.46%
R (B IREBRAB ([FIR]) BEmEAA

Jiamin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 80,000,000 2.85%
BREER)IEEFRAA EnHEBA

Jianuo (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 77,500,000 2.77%
Tk (BB REBR AR BEHEAA

Jiaxin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 68,500,000 2.44%
=iz (BER)RERR AR EnEE A

Jiaheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 67,250,000 2.40%
FH(ER)REERAF EmBEAA

Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 16,250,000 0.58%
EH(ZER)REBR AR EmBEAA

Jialing (International) Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 309,500,000 11.04%

FR(EF)REBR AT REN RS
Jiayao Interest of controlled corporation 309,500,000 11.04%
7 AR
Jiaye Summit Global Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 63.50%

5l (B R E AR AT
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Percentage of

Number of the Issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital
HE 81T
RREH 54 BERMHE BEABD K
(note 1)
(Btat1)
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 63.50%
Industry Group Limited RN
EREENFEXEBRERA
Henan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 63.50%
Technology Industry Group Limited SR AVNCIL £
(formerly known as Tianjin Drawin
Technology Limited)
EAEREEMREXERGRR
(AUTE - RRERE %ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁéﬂj)
Henan Hongdao Business Information Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 63.50%
Consultancy Company Limited SR NEIL: 3
ArESLBRBEERERERA
Henan Jianye Business Information Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 63.50%
Consultancy Company Limited ZENEER
FERERBEEERERA
Construction Development (H.K) Company Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 63.50%
Limited RIERN AR
BEER(BEE)BRAR
Construction Housing Group Company interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 63.50%
Limited RN RS
BEAEZEEBRAFA
Jianye Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,779,610,000 63.50%
SR LN (note 2)
(Ktzt2)
Joy Bright Investments Limited Beneficial owner 245,567,425 8.77%
BB EER QA EmlEa A (note 2)
(HtaE2)
Notes: ftaE -
1, It was based on 2,802,400,730 Shares as at 31 December 2020. 1. BRZF-_TF+ZA=+—H#92,802,400,730 i i {7

-

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Joy Bright 2. H#&#R % £ 8 BIEK & H R 2 7 Klianye Holdings

Investments Limited and Jianye Holdings Limited.

Limited K9 2 0 2 B£1TAR AR ©
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Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2020, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7 August
2013 (the “0Old Scheme”) was terminated pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 17 July
2020. A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) in place
of the Old Scheme was adopted pursuant to such resolution with
effect from 17 July 2020 which has a term of 10 years.

uUnder the New Scheme, the employees of the Group (including
the executive Directors) and such other persons as the Board
may consider appropriate may be granted options which entitle
them to subscribe for Shares representing, when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other scheme(s) of the Company,
up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue of the Company
as at 17 July 2020, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval
from the Shareholders to renew the limit as described below or
the Shareholders specifically approve the grant.

The total number of Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of
the total number of Shares in issue from time to time. The
amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of the
option is HK$1.00 (or its equivalent in RMB or any other currency
acceptable to the Company).

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted pursuant
to the New Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company to each participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of options
which would result in the number of the Shares issued as
aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting at which such participant and
his or her associates must abstain from voting.

62

B EXEREN RZZEZTF+_A=1+—0H "

EEVTNBATMAAL(ESERARTZSITH
ANBBRIN) IR s AR (0 P B IRIEE 5 R BB
EIEPIEXVEE 2R3N AT HEXRIRIEES
MEREEHI E 336 AR T ATFRIFNELMAT
SERE RSO E o

BB ERT 8

ARBR T —=F \A L ARANEBE S
(& B DERBEARRBERR _F_FF LA
TERBBN - BEBRRBRTAKL - NAF]
EAREZRBRRA A ERAERT 8 ([FE18)
UBREFE - BT -TF LA +HREBER
RETE -

BRIEAR AR BB RAEEH T RERE R
REFRIER LB AE - REME - AEER
B(BRHTES) NESERR/ENEMAL
AR B I DA R R B0 B AR IR AN R RHE T E
st BT MERRD AT I EEEAR - -F
FLA+TERARREEHTRHEE 10% -

RIFAR DRI FT A IR M 8 RITE R RE X
RETERRITREBMBITORMD AR - TEEBE
ARRBTE BTN AEEI30% ° AR ARE
TR BN AN EEA1.00/8 7T (HFE
WARBR AR BEANEAEMER)

RABFT A 8 AR R RHEAT E B B iR 81 - OB
EREEERLARN(BRER) EHEFT @A
iR - ME2EHE RN LR DO BEREEITE
RBRITMBRETHNRDEARE - TEEEE%
TTRAD ) 1% o M — 23R B0 RE AR A 3R
FRBEETROBEEB 1% LR - AIBERRE
BRRARE Lit/E Mx2EEREBEAZERS
ERBRERSE -



EREENEEEERAR « —E-ZFFH N

Any grant of share options to a participant who is a Director,
chief executive, or substantial Shareholder or any of their
respective associate must be approved by the independent
nonexecutive Directors, excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is the grantee of the share options.

The exercise periods of the share options may be specified by
the Company at the time of the grant, and the share options shall
expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of the grant.
As at 31 December 2020, share options to subscribe for
201,850,000 Shares (representing approximately 7.20% of the
issued share capital of the Company as of 31 December 2020 (i.e.
2,801,400,730 shares)) remained outstanding.

The subscription price for the Shares under the New Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to a participant, provided that such price shall be at least
and the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of a
share option which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share (whichever is the highest).

The New Scheme will expire on 16 July 2030.

No shares option have been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Old Scheme.
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Movement of share options granted by the Company under the
New Scheme for the year from 17 July 2020 to 31 December 2020

RE-_Z-_EF+A++HHBRE T -_TF+ =
B=+—HItFERN  "RAAIBEFTERHE

was as follows: etz EEhanT -
Exercise  Exercise As at Granted  Exercised Lapsed As at
Name or category of price period 17 July during during during 31 December
participants Date of grant per Share (Notes) 2020 the year the year the year 2020
R=B=%F
Cag:d- R-B-EE +=A
SHEENARER RiiAE BRITEE (W) tAt+tR ERRL ERTR EREN =t-8
Directors
Bz
Mr. Liu Weixing 30 November 2020 HK$1.09  6years - 28,000,000 - - 28,000,000
ABELSE ZTIEET-AZTH 1098T 6%
Mr. Guo Weigiang 30 November 2020 HK$1.09  10years - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
DL “EoRET-A=TH 1098 10F
Ms. Wang Jing 30 November 2020 HK$1.09  10years - 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
T Eut “ECEF+-A=+A 10981 10F
Senior management 30 November 2020 HK$1.09  10years - 144,850,000 - (1,950,000 142,900,000
and other employees
of the Group
TEERBERABR ZEZEE+-A=TH 1090%T 0%
Hitg s
- 201,850,000 - (1,950,000) 199,900,000

Additional information in relation to the Share Option Scheme is
set out in Note 28 to the financial statements of this annual

report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

EPC Service Arrangement and Park Design Services
Arrangement, Supply arrangement and PC Design
Service arrangement and Property leasing agreement
On 11 May 2020, (i) the Company and Drawin Construction
Technology Group Company Limited (formerly known as China
Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology Group Company
Limited) (“Drawin Construction Technology”) entered into the
Framework Agreement | in relation to (a) the EPC Service
Arrangement and (b) the Supply Arrangement; (i) the Company
and Drawin Construction Design Company Limited (formerly
known as China Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Company
Limited) (“Drawin Construction Design”) entered into the
Framework Agreement Il in relation to (a) the Park Design Service
Arrangement and (b) the PC Design Service Arrangement; and (iii)
Changsha Drawin Intelligent Technology Company Limited
(formerly known as Changsha China Minsheng Drawin Intelligent
Technology Company Limited) (“Drawin Changsha”), an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture Technology Industry Limited (formerly
known as China Minsheng Drawin Technology Industry Limited)
("Drawin Intelligent Manufacture”) entered into the Property
Leasing Agreement pursuant to which Drawin Changsha shall
lease to the Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Group the properties
within the Changsha technology park for the purpose of usage as
office premises, staff dormitories, finished production
warehouses, test plants and prefabricated components
manufacturing plants and provide to the Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture Group certain ancillary services.

Pursuant to the EPC Service Arrangement, the contract price for
EPC general contracting services to be provided by the Drawin
Construction Technology Group to the Group should be
determined with reference to the estimated costs of a
construction project plus a profit margin and management fee of
not more than 5% of the construction costs and should not
exceed RMB2,600 per square metre (inclusive of tax) in principle.
As disclosed in the announcement dated 11 May 2020, the
Company estimated that the maximum value of the transactions
under the EPC Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement | may reach RMB160 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$175.24 million).
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Pursuant to the Supply Arrangement, the integrated unit price of
the prefabricated construction components and products to be
supplied by the Group to the Drawin Construction Technology
Group should be the prevailing market price of each unit. In
principle, the provisional unit price should not exceed RMB3,200
per cubic metre (inclusive of tax). Subject to the actual volume of
the unit supplied, the final unit price may be adjusted. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 11 May 2020, the Company
is required under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual
cap over the term of the Framework Agreement I. Accordingly,
such Proposed Supply Arrangement Annual Cap over the term of
the Framework Agreement | has been determined to be RMB200
million (equivalent to approximately HK$219.05 million).

Pursuant to the Park Design Service Arrangement, the contract
price for the design services to be provided by Drawin
Construction Design Group to the Group should be determined
with reference to the estimated costs of the design services plus
a profit margin and management fee of not more than 5% of the
design costs and the provisional contract price should not exceed
RMB25 per square metre (inclusive of tax) in principle.

Pursuant to the PC Design Service Arrangement, the contract
price for the design services in respect of the prefabricated
construction components and products to be sold by the Group
to third parties should be determined with reference to the
estimated costs of the design services plus a profit margin and
management fee of not more than 5% of the design costs and
the provisional contract price should not exceed RMB70 per
cubic metre (inclusive of tax) in principle.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 11 May 2020, the
Company estimates that the maximum value of the transactions
under the Park Design Service Arrangement over the term of the
Framework Agreement Il may reach RMB2.50 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2.74 million). The Company is required
under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual cap over
the term of the Framework Agreement Il. Accordingly, such
Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap has been
determined to be RMB2.20 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2.41 million).
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Pursuant to the Property Leasing Agreement, Drawin Changsha
agreed to (i) lease to the relevant Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
Group Entity the office premises, staff dormitories, finished
production warehouses, test plants and prefabricated
components manufacturing plants, and (i) provide to the same
the ancillary services including the supply of heating, hot water
and the provision of technology park maintenance services
(“Leasing and Ancillary Services Arrangement”). The rentals and
service fees under the Property Leasing Agreement have been
determined by Drawin Intelligent Manufacture and Drawin
Changsha after arm’s length negotiation with reference to the
prevailing market rates for comparable properties in Changsha.

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture indirectly holds approximately
63.5% of the issued Shares of the Company. Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum,
who is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Therefore,
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Drawin Construction Technology is direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture, and therefore a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, each of the EPC Service
Arrangement and the Supply Arrangement under the Framework
Agreement | constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Drawin Construction Design is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Drawin Intelligent Manufacture, and therefore a
connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, each of the Park Design Service
Arrangement and the PC Design Service Arrangement under the
Framework Agreement Il constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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As the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service
Arrangement are both capital in nature which involve different
aspects in the construction of a technology park and Drawin
Construction Technology and Drawin Construction Design are
either direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Drawin
Intelligent Manufacture, the EPC Service Arrangement and the
Park Design Service Arrangement require aggregation under Rule
14.22 and Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the estimated maximum values of
the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service
Arrangement under the relevant Framework Agreements exceed
5%, the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design Service
Arrangement constitute connected transactions of the Company
which are subject to the reporting, announcement and
Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As the Supply Arrangement is of revenue nature and one or more
of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap exceed 5%, the contemplated
transaction under the Supply Arrangement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is subject to the annual
review, reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further, the highest applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the Proposed PC Design Service Arrangement Annual Cap is
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the contemplated transaction
under the PC Design Service Arrangement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is only subject to the
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements and is
exempted from the independent shareholders’ requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Drawin Intelligent Manufacture indirectly holds approximately
63.5% of the issued Shares of the Company. Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum,
who is controlling shareholder of the Company. Therefore,
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
under the Property Leasing Agreement constitute a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratios in
respect of the continuing connected transactions under the
Property Leasing Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the contemplated transaction under the Property Leasing
Agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction which
is only subject to the annual review, reporting and
announcement requirements and is exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

On 17 July 2020, a special general meeting was held. Under the
ordinary resolution, shareholders are confirmed, approved and
ratify the Framework Agreements dated 11 May 2020 and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Proposed
Supply Arrangement Annual Cap and the estimated transaction
values under the EPC Service Arrangement and the Park Design
Service Arrangement).

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the Supply Arrangement and confirmed that:

(i) the terms and conditions of the Framework Agreement | is
on normal commercial terms which are fair and reasonable;

(i) the Proposed Supply Arrangement Annual Cap is fair and
reasonable; and

(i) the Framework Agreement | and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were entered into and will be
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company and its subsidiaries, and are in the interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (a controlling shareholder of the Company), none of the
Directors has a material interest in the Framework Agreement |,
the Property Leasing Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

Confirmation from auditors

The Company's external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
EPC Service Arrangement, Park Design Service Arrangement, PC
Design Service Arrangement, Property Leasing Agreement and
Supply Arrangement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The external auditor has issued an
unqgualified report containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Main Board Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of
the report to the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2020 under the Framework Agreement |:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
price policies of the Group;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.
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Provision of financial assistance

On 29 November 2019, Xiangtan China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Limited* (#f/&E f R & K BB R A &) (“Xiangtan
Drawin”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into the Mortgage Agreement with the Yuhua Sub-
branch of Changsha Rural Commercial Bank Co. Ltd. (the “Bank”),
pursuant to which Xiangtan Drawin agreed to provide the
mortgage over Xiangtan Drawin’s land use rights of a stated-
owned construction land and six constructions in process
thereon (with a gross floor area of approximately 89,025 square
metres) (the “Mortgage”) in favour of the Bank as security for the
repayment obligations of Drawin Manufacture (an indirect
controlling shareholder of the Company) under the Loan
Agreement in respect of a loan facility of up to RMB40,000,000
granted by the Bank to Drawin Manufacture for on-lending to
China Minsheng Drawin Technology Investment Limited* (£ &
ERRIEE AR A A]) (“Drawin Investment”) (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) on the same terms as the
Loan Agreement (the “Shareholder’s Loan") without receiving any
fee or commission nor any counter-security or guarantee from
Drawin Investment.

On 30 March 2020, Tianjin Drawin (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into the Mortgage
Agreement with the Bank, pursuant to which Tianjin Drawin
agreed to provide the Mortgage in favour of the Bank as security
for the repayment obligations of Drawin Manufacture (an indirect
controlling shareholder of the Company) under the Loan
Agreement in respect of a loan facility of up to RMB15,000,000
granted by the Bank to Drawin Manufacture for on-lending to
Drawin Investment (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) on the same terms as the Loan Agreement.

On 30 November 2020, Xiangtan Drawin agreed to provide the
Mortgage in favour of the Bank as security for the repayment
obligations of Drawin Manufacture (an indirect controlling
shareholder of the Company) under the 2019 Loan Agreement in
respect of the 2019 Loan which has been on-lent to Drawin
Investment (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
on the same terms as the 2019 Loan Agreement. With a view to
extend the 2019 Loan for another year for on-lending the same to
Drawin Investment, on 30 November 2020 (after trading hours),
Drawin Manufacture entered into the Loan Agreement with the
Bank in respect of a loan facility of up to RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$47,133,000), which is the same
principal amount as the 2019 Loan and on the same terms as the
2019 Loan Agreement. Pursuant to the Mortgage Agreement, the
Mortgage will continue to be in force to secure the repayment
obligations of Drawin Manufacture under the Loan Agreement.
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Drawin Intelligent Manufacture indirectly holds approximately
63.5% of the issued Shares of the Company. Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture is also indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum,
who is a controlling shareholder; hence, Drawin Intelligent
Manufacture is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The provision of the Mortgage by Xiangtan Drawin
under the Mortgage Agreement therefore constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the provision of
the Mortgage are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the provision
of the Mortgage is subject to reporting and announcement
reqguirements but exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The on-lending of the loan from Drawin Intelligent Manufacture
to Drawin Investment also constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but is fully
exempted from Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, other than Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li
Hua) (@ non-executive Director) who is the daughter of Mr. Wu Po
Sum (a controlling shareholder of the Company), none of the
Directors has a material interest in the Mortgage Agreement, the
Shareholder’s Loan and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2020, the Company had no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect
to the connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
connected transaction as disclosed above, none of these related
party transactions is required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 December 2020:

()  The Group’'s largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 10.4% and 29.3%
of the Group's total turnover respectively.

(i) The Group's largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 3.7% and 16.8% of the
Group's total purchases.

Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Company
Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company, is a key
customer of 15.2% sales of the Group. The connected
transactions with Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology
Group Company Limited have been approved at the Board
meeting and Shareholders’ meeting (if applicable) of the
company.

Save for this, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any
beneficial interests in these major customers and suppliers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the
shares of the Company under the Company’s byelaws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality products and services to our customers so
as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the New Scheme of the Company as set out in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting .

By Order of the Board of
DIT Group Limited

Liu Weixing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DIT Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of DIT Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages

84 10 211, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 e

December 2020;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other e

comprehensive income for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the e

year then ended;

ERBENREEERAT « 2T FFR
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e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then o  EHEZHIFENGABESRER &

ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which e
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

RAEPBHRKME  BRIZSHEREE -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

BLERKE ST ERAT - BEEPRAFAET —#
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

1. Impairment provision for trade receivables

2. Government grants
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Key Audit Matter 1
BRETEIH

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ET MRS ERETSE

Impairment provision for trade receivables
B 2 ERFIRERERE

Refer to Note 4.1 (Critical accounting estimates —
Impairment of trade receivables) and Note 21 (Trade and
other receivables and prepayments) to the consolidated
financial statements.

2R AV BHRERWT 41 (EESFHEET — B SR
ERE) RE21 (8 5 R E M ERRIBERTBNRIE)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gross trade
receivables amounted to HK$976,295,000, against which
an impairment provision of HK$9,593,000 was provided.

RZZEZZEF+-A=+—H  EEEEBEFRKFIELE
#8/3976,295,000/8 7T, + H UL EHRRIE 9,593,000 7T ©

Our audit work in relation to impairment provision for
trade receivables included:
BMBEHEE S EYGIERERENEST TIERE

e \We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment provision for trade receivables and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

o HMTHEEEHNESEKFIERMERENNIZE
HIAET R AR @A E B T EE A E M E A R
RRE(EFHN T8ME 2 EERHIXERE
RASHGEFZE)NEE - FHE TERERNEB R
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e \We assessed the reasonableness of key input data
and major assumptions adopted in expected credit
losses of trade receivables, including the historical
default loss rates and the adjustments for the
historical default loss rates based on forward looking
macroeconomic data.

o HMATMTEEHAZENSEMURE S EWKIE
BHEEEETPERANEEZERR  BEELENEX
EMERAEE R CESBERLENBRENH
2 o
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Key Audit Matter 1 (Continued)
BRETSE (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB A EYERETEE

Impairment provision for trade receivables
(Continued)
B S REWFERERE(E)

The Group applied the simplified approach as permitted
under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 —
Financial Instruments to measure expected credit losses
which used a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables, grouped by shared credit risk
characteristics by taking into account the days past due.
EEERAERAMBREEREIR— @RI AAFH
B AT ERBEEBE  EFERMBE 2 EKFIE
MEEHREHEERE EEZRARRERBZEZE
ERREENAE -

We focused on this area due to the high degree of
estimation uncertainties and the subjectivity of
judgements involved in determining the impairment
provision for trade receivables.

BPBERZES - THREFTRAEE N EE IR
NpREEE S RWHIEREREN A GO 8L -
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e \We tested the accuracy of the ageing analysis of trade
receivables by tracing items in the ageing analysis, on
a sample basis, to the relevant supporting documents.

o HMMmMBEHKRRIITPNIEE ZFEFERANXYE - X
5 SR B 5 FE R IE BR e D AT O ZE TR o

e We tested the expected credit losses calculation
schedule for mathematical accuracy.
o HRMAFABHEEBEFERHERNSSLEMRE -

e We checked subsequent settlements relating to trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020, on a sample
basis.

o BMUMBEARAKRER_ZE_ZTEF+_A=+—HEHE
SRERFIENEBEELAE -

Based on the work performed, we considered that the
management’s judgements in assessing the impairment
of trade receivables were supported by the evidence we
gathered.

RIBFT#ETHNIE  RMREBEEEETHE S BN
ERES B HE SRR MRENBESE -
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Key Audit Matter 2
BRETEIH2

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMET A EEERETSE

Government grants
BB

Refer to Note 4.2 (Critical accounting judgements —
classification of government grants) and Note 6
(Government grants) to the consolidated financial
statements.

2GR EVBHREMNTI2(BEZEG A B — BRI
D) RBtEE6 (BATH#EED) ©

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded government grants amounting to HK$94,452,000
in the profit or loss, among which HK$84,845,000 were
industry support funds and were recorded as grants
related to income.
REBEZZT-TF+-_A=+—HLEFE " BEEERNIE
5 FP 8515 BUTT # B 94,452,000 78 7T, + E R 84,845,000 7 7T
REXFFES  WARAHEWGEBMHE -

Grants related to assets are government grants whose
primary condition is that an entity qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Grants related to income are government
grants other than those related to assets. The Group’s
management needs to examine the terms of the
respective government grants and apply judgements to
identify the related expenditures that are intended to
compensate for.
HEERBANMPEIZRE RS EARERARE &
REAEM T ARG REAEENBATME - I EE
B 6 B A2 5 B B B EE AR RO BURT Al B 2 SN BT i B o
SEEEETEE T iRE %A 8 B R0 E M B 2851 5
FAENEBRX

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
government grants and the significance of management
judgement applied in classification of those government
grants.
HRBAAENEZEREREREED BZE BN MHER
FRRAEESZ N - RMEFRZES -

Our audit work in relation to government grants included:
BMERENHENEST TERRE ¢

e \We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of the
classification of government grants.

o BT REREHENMEM D BTG MG R

(e

e \We obtained and examined the terms of respective
government grants, including investment agreements,
clarification statements and bank receipts.

o HMEVSWIRESBTHBRER - BERERR &
7B wt B MR T ©

e We conducted interviews with local authorities to
obtain an understanding of what the related
expenditures were intended to compensate for from
local authorities’ perspective, considering the
precondition and purpose of these government grants.

o HMEM T MERMESHNANI T KEEAE T HEEHE
X EEERNIER @ 89 ZEZSBUTMHEIRTIAE
HRAR -

e We sought for confirmations from those local authorities
to corroborate the assessment of the Group's
management.

o HMERZEMAHKEANER  UFE
[ BT o

EEEER

Based on the work we performed, we considered that the
management’s judgements in government grants were
supported by the evidence we gathered.
BEBMFTETHIE  BMRAEEBERNMHENS
E A ES 2R PSR B IR -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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BARMHRAMBERERNES  RANEETE
BIEEMER L AL ERES  EEEMESEE
B S BHRRARMERTBETRTENIE
MEEBAEBAEUTFFEEAHERBANE

WMREREMFIAITHIE  BMRALEHEM
EEFEEAERRL  RMAFEREZXEE -
FETH RFORAEREREHEIE -
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BERABERAAERBETEGFMAGRHNE
BB REERNREB(RREIDRERERE
BEEMPENEEMBRE  YHARRAES
AU BHRORETFEBNREF R MG
MEXRBERFLFAFHAREFES -
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

1837 ¥ BT 4R &
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ZFMBER EHGRAMBEHRABRES T FE
HAMFFRERMEBMNEABRBARGEE
RE THABRUMERNZEEMRS - HM
E2m ETUERBR)REBERE-NN\—F(A
BUE) R0 E - BRUL 2 INARE R EE AL B
B R AR ARENARTRATAEMBALER
FHEBEEAEL EERIBESKEHRSE -
BTRERERREBRTEIETHET X
— B AR TFERARREHIE o $8RBRUL A LA
MEGEFe R RS - MRS ERBAEMEBIE
RERAI B B AWM RMREREKBEAM
MR PR L MAERE - BB BIROSE SR BRR A]
BAREERX ©

ERBEBEFERETRINBRES  BIFE
RTEXRHAE - RET EREREE - BT
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

i Rk ok 38
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-E-ZF BE_Z—NF
+=-—B=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
LEE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bat FET FET
Revenue WA 5 1,089,284 695,901
Cost of sales SHERK AN 9 (744,080) (518,126)
Gross profit EX 345,204 177,775
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HENRB ARk - 134,178
Government grants AT B 6 94,452 23,495
Other income HAb A 7 11,751 5,892
Other gains/(losses) — net Hiblzs (E18) — F58 8 2,741 (5,452)
Selling and distribution expenses HENR DX 9 (69,915) (55,371)
Administrative expenses TEAY 9 (132,472) (117,308)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 4 & &R E BB F5E (9,673) (2,837)
Share of gains of associates /N R gy 5,551 4,491
Operating profit F— il 247,639 164,863
Finance cost RhE B A 10 (32,948) (25,928)
Profit before income tax MREFBH AR 214,691 138,935
Income tax expenses i3 X 12 (44,725) (25,318)
Profit for the year FERA 169,966 113,617
Profit for the year, BUTALFEH
attributable to FERF
— Owners of the Company aal: WNGIE ¥ =N 158,833 110,749
— Non-controlling interests — FEIENRE S 11,133 2,868
169,966 113,617
Earnings per share attributable to RAREBEAFMEER
owners of the Company R 14
(expressed in HK$ cents per share) (ABZRBILES)
— Basic and diluted — HEAREE 5.67 3.95
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —ZE_ZEF+_A=+—RHILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

BE-S-%F RE-T NF
Pk e

LEE HFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
HtaE FET FE&T
Profit for the year FERR 169,966 113,617
Other comprehensive income/(loss), Hft2mEWz (EE) -
which may be reclassified HETREHEHRIEE
subsequently to profit or loss B
— Currency translation differences — NI E =R 168,785 (51,115)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEHEMEERES(E18)
for the year, net of tax HBRBiI8 168,785 (51,115)
Total comprehensive income FEZEWRREE
for the year 338,751 62,502
Total comprehensive income BUTALHHENEE
for the year, attributable to 2HINHATH
— Owners of the Company — RARHEAA 322,967 60,217
— Non-controlling interests — IR 15,784 2,285
338,751 62,502
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other — _Eilt4R& 1828 & E b 2 ) W e 5% 8 B2 BB IO B 5 —

comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the — $fEI:E -
accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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As at 31 December2020 R—E-_EF+_A=+—0H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-E-EF —NF
+=A=+—-H +t=-—A=+—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BiaE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R KRS 15 1,978,312 1,416,328
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 991,017 726,587
Investment properties KEERHE 17 18,298 17,080
Intangible assets mIEE 18 4,567 3,619
Deferred income tax assets EEFTS R EE 30 39,067 44,973
Investments in associates BB E N A 19 222,996 192,883
Financial assets at fair value through WA EE=Z BHEES)
profit or l0ss TABRNSREE 23 46,276 43,480
3,300,533 2,444,950
Current assets REEE
Inventories ﬁ‘b 20 89,456 89,672
Trade and other receivables and B 5 Nk H MW
prepayments KB RIE 21 1,159,868 725,589
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIBEEEER 24 443,882 82,415
Restricted cash BRI 4 25 219,613 124,371
1,912,819 1,022,047
Total assets EEHAE 5,213,352 3,466,997
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of AAREB AL RER
the Company
Share capital (nominal value) AEA (E1E) 26 1,120,960 1,120,960
Reserves & 27 1,029,059 710,485
2,150,019 1,831,445
Non-controlling interests JE 1B R 29 671,565 587,598
Total equity REREE 2,821,584 2,419,043
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As at 31 December 2020 R—E-_EF+_A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-EZEF —NEF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FETT FET
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Amount due to related parties e~ A 75 F10R 35 50,463 -
Deferred income PRIEUA 2,709 1,708
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTISHAE 30 13,613 12,916
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 31,544 3,007
Borrowings E=R 32 993,023 123,077
1,091,352 140,708
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H Ath A 3E 31 835,377 458,112
Contract liabilities XN 17,558 55,341
Current income tax liabilities MEEFEHAE 46,747 31,176
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 13,735 10,968
Borrowings BE 32 386,999 351,649
1,300,416 907,246
Total liabilities BEREE 2,391,768 1,047,954
Total equity and liabilities EakEEAHE 5,213,352 3,466,997

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 212 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and were

signed on its behalf by:

Liu Weixing
ZEE
Director

EF

i ir & B AR 0 3R FE L B 5 — D BOAE -

FEE2RANREMBHREN_-F_—F=A
“thBERESeHE YHAUTEERRES

gRE:

Guo Weiqgiang
SER
Director
EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EORREARE
Contributed Non-
Share Share  Exchange surplus Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests equity
R RGEE  EXRE BARSRE  HbRE  ZHER 4% FEREE SR
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
it AT AT AT TAT A AT AT TAT AT
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZF-nE-A-A
gt 1,120,960 863,347 (26262) 131,166 29439 (347,744) 1,770,906 607,623 2,378,529
Profitfor the year EREH - - - - - 110,749 110,749 2,868 13617
Other comprehensive loss: 2 EFE
Currency translation differences IEFEEE - - (50532) - - - (50532) (583) (51,115)
Total comprehensive loss/income ~ EE2EHE/ KEHE
for the year - - (50532) - - 110,749 60,217 2,285 62502
Transactions with owners: AEEARGNRE
Disposal of ownership interests in HENBAREARER
subsidiaries without loss of control MEX ARG E - - = - - - - 2318 23318
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEAR - - - - - - - (57421) (57421)
Capital inection by ownership REEERTAES
interests - 0 - - - - N - 0
Transactions with NCI: AFERERETNRE
Capital injection by non-controling FERREIAES
sharenolders - - - - - - - 11793 11,793
Total transactions with owners REAAZRAEE - n - - - - n (2310) (21,988)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-1E
tZA=1-A 1,120,960 863,669 (76,794) 131,166 29,439 (236,995 1,831,445 587,598 2,419,043
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZE-2E-f-A
fteh 1,120,960 863,669 (76,794) 131,166 29439 (236995 1,831,445 587,598 2,419,043
Profit for the year ERR - - - - - 158,833 158,833 1,133 169,966
Other comprehensive income: R 2ENE !
Currency translation differences R EEE - - 164,134 - - - 164,134 4,651 168,785
Total comprehensive income FE2ENRAE
for the year - - 164,134 - - 158,833 322,967 15,784 338,751
Transactions with owners: AEEARANRE
Capital injection by ownership RHRERTAES
interests - 236 - - (5,655) > (5419) = (5419)
Share-based compensation R BERREHS - - - - 1,026 - 1,026 - 1,026
Transactions with NCI: AFERERETNRE
Capital injection by non-controling FERREIAES
sharenolders - - - - - - - 68,183 68,183
Total transactions with owners HEBAZRGEE - 236 - - (4,629 - (4,393) 68,183 63,790
At 31 December 2020 R=F=%%
tZA=1-A 1,120,960 863,905 87,340 131,166 24,810 (78,162) 2,150,019 671565 2,821,584
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should & it 45 & 48 %5 B 8h 3% i BRRE BT B 55 — OFBI:E -

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-ZE-Z2F BE_ZT—NHF
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H
LFE IEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hta FET FAT
Operating activities REEH
Cash generated from operations KEMSMNIRE 33 81,180 19,170
Income tax paid BRTEE (21,421) (11,728)
Net cash generated from operating BB ATISHIIR & 558
activities 59,759 7,442
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of properties, plants BEYE  BERRE
and equipments (454,532) (116,019)
Purchase of land use rights BE TR (199.447) (392,062)
Purchase of intangible assets BEERLEAE (873) (1,083)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEBEUAABETEHE
through profit or loss FEHABSNEREE - (12,399)
Acquire additional ownership interest of — Ugis —EEE L A TS TES
an associate et (12,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries B B A R R FTEFIE = 147,450
Proceeds from disposal of equipments HERER TS HIE 1,255 10,442
Proceeds from disposal of HEREEEERNE
investment properties FKIE 246 763
Interest received B FH S 3,123 3,412
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-2F HE-T—NF
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
LFE IEFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kta FET FET
Net cash used in investing activities KEESFTRAMNIR R (662,228) (359,496)
Financing activities RMEES
Interest paid EfTFLE (38,081) (9,670)
(Decrease)/increase in restricted cash BRHIRS G4, (16,000) 16,000
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (365,865) (108,118)
Proceeds from a third party borrowing REE=FEREREIA = 334,904
Proceeds from borrowings BEEMATSKIE 1,182,729 97,122
Payment of lease liabilities HEAEMNRIA (12,923) (18,292)
Amounts due to a related party JE S — & Ba s 75 7R 81,438 -
Capital contributions by IR R EE
non-controlling interests 61,990 11,793
Net cash generated from financing MERESEENRESFEE
activities 893,288 323,739
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRRSEEBEBREM
and cash equivalents O NFE 290,819 (28,315)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRE MNRESEMEIER
beginning of the year 82,415 110,802
Net exchange gains/(losses) on cash and 3R & &IB& S(EHE E X
cash equivalents a2k, (E18) F758 70,648 (72)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of SRNEHEERHAESEEEE
the year 24 443,882 82,415

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read it
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

DIT Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on 28
February 1991 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) starting from 25 July 1991.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is Room 7707 and 7708, 77th Floor, International Commerce
Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) are prefabricated construction work, granting
licenses, sales of equipment, decoration and landscaping
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

As at 31 December 2020, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company is Mr. Wu Po Sum.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements have been
consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets and investment
properties which are carried at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

92

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies.

New and amended standards of HKFRSs
adopted by the Group in 2020

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:

° Definition of Material — amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

° Definition of a Business — amendments to
HKFRS 3

New and amended standards of HKFRSs

adopted by the Group in 2020 (Continued)

o Interest Rate Benchmark Reform-amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

o Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2020 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Group. These standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group in
the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 MEBAT
2.2.1 Consolidation 221 HHEAER

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

(@) Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business

o equity interests issued by the group
o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.

BB 2 R HE AN SR B R B A A
EER(BREBIEER) -
REBER S EERAGH A&
BAXERXZAERN  WeEE
BERENSIEZERBNERLY
N EzERR  RAEEY
ZERAGENE - WEBAFMH
THIREEEAKREEREEE
FEARK - HEHIEHEKILEES
BiELARA AR -

SEARARRS - EHREER
NEER HHARBIE Wam T IAY
o RBHEBEINTIALHE X
FrARHBEEAEEEERE
AItERIGR - M B A R Z & aTBUR
EBERSIELE DN - AERE
ANER B PR AR 2 TSR — 2K e

@ HBEH
Fi B %755 A g &R A B
GFEAR MA®E
ERC KBRS TANE
& E - BLRIBHE 2 A
EEARERRE:

s HEMBEEMATE

o HRWBEBAHEA
AEEMEE

o  ARBEBITHOBARE

S

B

o HAREBLHMAELE
MERIEESL

. RENATERRH
B /2 B #0121 56 A1 R
AR ATE -

93



DIT Group Limited 2 2020 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
e

B IS ERR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

94

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Cconsolidation (Continued)

(@

Business combinations (Continued)
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:

. consideration transferred,

J amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Cconsolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without loss of control

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is
recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the
change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSS.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

96

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

22 MEAT (E)

2.2.1 Cconsolidation (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board of Directors”)
that makes strategic decisions.

The Group is managed centrally and the Directors are
of the view that the whole Group is one single
reporting segment and hence no segment
information is presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

98

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HKS$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedge and qualifying net investment
hedge or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a net basis within “Other gains/(losses) —

"

net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(c)

(@

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

income and expenses for each
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 N¥ BERSEE

100

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs or revalued amounts,
net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements
and certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter
lease term as follows:

— Buildings 30 years
— Computer equipments 3-6 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

— Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
— Equipments 10 years
— Leasehold improvements 3-5years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “Other gains — net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less provision for
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
above.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequently, they are carried at fair value.
Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss
as part of a valuation gain or loss in “Other gains/
(losses) — net”.

Intangible assets

Computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to
five years.
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2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation but are tested annually for impairment
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through OCI, or through
profit or l0ss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

210 EREE (&)
2101 5% (4&)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.10.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.4 Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.4 Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or 10ss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other (losses)/gains — net.
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or l0oss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other
gains in the period in which it arises.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.5 Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.10.6 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For other receivables (excluding value-added
tax recoverable), the Group applies the general
model for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9.

2 EAEHEERBIE@®

210 eREE (&)

2105 REXTH
REBEBRANBETEFRAR
BRAKE - WAKEEREDE
EREMEERAZIBRARE
AR EENE &JEETE C BIRAER
IERERIL R ER - AABEK
m&%?@ﬁf&Tﬁi%ﬁ SIEER
7 o B NG B UER S SR RE 1
VB WERENRBEENE
mARRERBEMUA -

BRAREBEMABRSNEREE
MARBEEINEa AR
U E R (E R ) B b Y s mp
R MRREBEFARMEEK
AFTENBRAKRENRERE
(&Wﬁ)@ﬂ@%&@)T\a,\ AR
BENEMESH M2

2.10.6 W {E
72N 5 (B 2 AT WE M LR BT i B A
BIERARIZAABEGT AEM
2EWANES T EEENTES
EE B o FTERARES AR
RINMEE RS BZEM -

EZREFEMS - AREK
REAMBHREERNF IR
FFEVRMETTR - AR ETRS
S RFBEBES B iR REK
FIRERER ©

A H At FE UK IR (1 B 4 AT K]
BER)ME  AEERBER
RS ERIE O FTAR E VTR
HEEEE —RIER -



ERBENREEERAT « 2T FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.11 Inventories 211 FE&

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the
transfer from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges for purchases of raw materials.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business and related receivable. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less loss
allowance.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. In the consolidated and
Company’s statements of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.16 Borrowings 2.16 & &

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Preference shares, if mandatorily redeemable at a
specific date or redeemable at the option of the
holder, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on
these preference shares are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance
charges in respect of lease liabilities and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that
are an adjustment to interest costs include the
interest rate differential between borrowing costs
that would be incurred if the entity had borrowed
funds in its functional currency, and the borrowing
costs actually incurred on foreign currency
borrowings. Such amounts are estimated based on
interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined for each annual period and are limited
to the difference between the hypothetical interest
amount for the functional currency borrowings and
the actual interest incurred for foreign currency
borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous
years should not be capitalised in subsequent years.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined on a cumulative basis based on the
cumulative amounts of interest expenses that would
have been incurred had the entity borrowed in its
functional currency. The total amount of foreign
exchange differences capitalised cannot exceed the
amount of total net foreign exchange differences
incurred on a cumulative basis at the end of the
reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.18 Income tax 2.18 Fri8%t

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Tax incentives

Companies within the Group may be entitled to
claim special tax deductions in relation to
qualifying expenditure (e.g. the Research and
Development Tax Incentive regime in Oneland).
The Group accounts for such tax incentives as
tax credits, which means that the tax incentives
reduce income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward
as deferred tax assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group has participated in the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for its Hong
Kong staff. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The MPF
Scheme is generally funded by payments from
employees and by the Group. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
as incurred in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, the
Group is required to pay social security
contributions for its PRC staff based on certain
percentage of their salaries to the social
security plan organised by related governmental
bodies (“PRC plan”).

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid to the
MPF Scheme and PRC plan. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and PRC plan
are recognised as employee benefit expense in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when they are
due.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share-based payments

114

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the DIT Group Employee Option Plan.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in
note 28.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme is recognised as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

— including any market performance conditions

— excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions; and

— including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities 221 BERBAREE

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.22 Revenue recognition

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue from sales of prefabricated
construction units

Sales of prefabricated construction units are
recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customers, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
consolidated balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group's performance
and the customer’s payment.

Revenue from granting licenses

Revenue from granting licenses is recognised in
conjunction with related services at one point in
time when the required training of the licensing
is provided to the customers and then the
customer can direct the use of, and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from
alicense.

Revenue from decoration and landscaping
services

Revenue from decoration and landscaping
services is recognised over the service period
when the service are render to the customers
as the customers can benefit simultaneously as
the Group performing.

When the outcome of decoration and
landscaping services contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the
contract is recognised progressively over time
using the output method, i.e. based on the
completion of a physical proportion of the
contract work.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Revenue from decoration and landscaping
services (Continued)

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount
of the consideration under the contract, then a
provision is recognised in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.21.

Revenue from sales of prefabricated
construction equipments

Sales of prefabricated construction equipments
are recognised when the control of the
prefabricated construction equipments has
transferred, being when the prefabricated
construction equipments are delivered to the
customer and accepted by the customer in
accordance with contract.

Revenue from consulting services

Revenue from consulting service is recognised
in conjunction with related services at one point
in time when the required service and related
deliverables are provided to the customers.

Financing components

The Group adjusts the transaction prices for the
time value of money and recognises financing
components in other income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.23 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

2.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of property, plant and
equipment for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.24 Leases (Continued) 224 ¥E (&)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received.

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

120

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

o any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land
and buildings that are presented within property,
plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or 10ss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of
office furniture.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEBREE@®

2.24 Leases (Continued) 2.24 HHE (&)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as
lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS
16.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company's financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to assets are included in
non- current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets. Note 4.2(a)
provides further information on how the group
accounts for government grants.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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2.27 Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

(b)

the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

2.28 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group, if
that person:

(i)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a) has significant
influence over the entity or is @ member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Subsequent events
Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period (“adjusting events”)
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes when material.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

3.1.1 Market risk
(a)  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the
value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The majority of the
Group's transactions and balances are
denominated in HKD and RMB, which are
the functional currencies of the Company
and its non-PRC mainland subsidiaries,
and its PRC mainland companies,
respectively.

The Company and its non-PRC mainland
subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in HKD, except for
certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB and United State
dollars (“USD"). As HKD are pegged to
USD, it is assumed that there would be no
material currency risk exposure between
these two currencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(@

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The PRC mainland companies’ assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB,
except for certain bank balances which
are denominated in HKD. Accordingly,
cash denominated in HKD is subject to
foreign exchange risk.

Fluctuations in the exchange rates of HKD
against RMB will affect the Group's result
of operations. The Group does not have
any formal hedging policies. However,
management closely monitors the foreign
exchange exposure and will take actions
when necessary.

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%, against
HKD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$4,000 (2019: HK$5,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of net foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of
HKD denominated bank deposits. All
borrowings are denominated in RMB.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to the Group's variable
interest generating bank balances and
bank borrowings with variable interest
rates in 2020 while the short term
borrowings with fixed rate exposed the
Group to fair value interest rate risk in
2020.

Except for cash deposits in the bank, the
Group has no other significant interest
bearing assets.

3 HNEEMEERSBMIA@®

3.1

B 7 B (R 3 ()

3.1.1 5 EE (48)

(@)

(b)

JNE R B ()

hE AN BN R EE
EFBBEXTEUAARE
B HETRITERINE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

126

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (Continued)

Management does not anticipate
significant impact to interest-bearing
assets and bank borrowings resulted from
the changes in interest rates, because the
interest rates of bank deposits and
borrowings are not expected to change
significantly.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, if
interest rates on interest-generating bank
deposits and borrowings with floating
rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held

3

HEEREERSHM T A @)

3.1

Bt R & (&)
3.1. 15 EE (&)

(b)

B RBRALBEFE
3¢ §)
EEERAFELHET
Y REERRITEE
BREAYE REAE
HIRTES &Tﬁgéﬁﬂ
BARHREAR

=

R_E_ZFR_T-NF
+:ﬂ =+—8 - e aR
TERME B EGT S8
fE FEFI R EF T BR50
(EESB 0 PG HoAth 2 B 45

constant, the post-tax loss of the Group T REEREZEC
for the years ended 31 December 2020 TZFERZZF-NF+ZA
and 2019 would have changed as follows: =+—RHILEFENTREZEER
HFHIRA T2 E)
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) #i1& % F3&hn,~ O 2>)
— 50 basis points higher — EFAS0EES (1,050) (1,310)
— 50 basis points lower — T8k 50 {EE 2, 1,050 1,310
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3 HNEEMEERSBMIA@®

of their new clients before standard payment
and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEEHE)
3.1.2Credit risk 3.1.2 Fﬁﬂlﬁ%
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's RZBEZEFR-E-NF+=
maximum exposure to credit risk is trade and A=+—8" $%IE’J E=EE
other receivables and bank deposits. [B\Be A B 5 % B A E U ERIA J ER
TER -
Trade receivables B Z IR IE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified REBEHABREWBREERNSE
approach to measuring expected credit losses ORI T AT ETEHEER
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance B AMEESERGIERER
for all trade receivables. As at 31 December EGFEBHANNTESREE K2
2020 and 2019, the loss allowance provision —EERZFTE-NEFE+ A
was determined as follows. —t+—HEEBEDETRT -
Less than 6 months  More than
6 months -1 year 1 year
Current past due past due past due Total
AHSR  BHRER AHZR
b ~MEA E-f —-F M@t
As at 31 December R-Z-ZH
2020 +=A=+-H
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0.2% 2.0% 4.1% 26.6% =
Gross carrying amount  BRE 42 (E 786,329 161,882 12,152 15,932 976,295
Loss allowance BERERE 1,637 3210 502 4,244 9,593
As at 31 Decemher R=-Z—-NF
2019 +=A=1+-H
Expected loss rate BHBEX 0.2% 2.2% 4.2% 7.3% =
Gross carrying amount  BREI42(& 406,884 60,388 16,342 31,984 516,098
Loss allowance EREE 794 1,317 699 2,324 5,134
For credit risk arised from trade receivable B IHEWE Iﬁ?ﬁﬁ%éiﬁ’ﬂ:ﬁ
balances, each local entity is responsible for RBkamE - RN TIRENKKE
managing and analysing the credit risk for each RHER R R4 AT - Xi‘@?ﬁ%ﬁ’%ﬁ%ﬁ

BEEERNSMEBEHEFPNEE
e
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)

Bank Deposits

The credit risk on bank deposits are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit rating assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and are the PRC large state-
controlled banks. As such, no significant credit
risk from bank deposits is anticipated.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The table below
shows the bank deposit balances as at 31

HEEREERSHM T A @)

3.1 B¥RBREEHE)
3.1.21ERk (&)
RITIES
m%*%iﬁi’ﬂ%zglwf,ﬂ
BREL T EEFRNRITR
EPIWF'JIE%E C BURTTIF K
MIEERRAER - Eit - TEEIR

TERXBTEELEAGFEER

4 o
AR

=IEERBRALGEMBIRAR
Wﬂlﬁ BMEEMREE

REXHERNEELEEZRTW
CREE  TREIR_ZE=ZF
FR-_E—AF+-_A=+—H

December 2020 and 2019: KR T R4S
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Counter party REEF FET FET
Deposits with the state-owned banks — FAd BIRITOFER
of the PRC 189,847 11,965
Deposits with other listed banks R B B Aty T ERATHY
of the PRC T 253,250 68,003
Deposits with other banks REMIRITHFR 785 2,447
443,882 82,415
Management does not expect any losses from ERERATERZERSETF

non-performance of these counterparties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3 HNEEMEERSBMIA@®

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 FEERERREZEF)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables

Other receivables mainly comprise receivables
amounts due from related parties, land auction
deposits and receivables relating to disposal of
subsidiaries. The Group closely monitors these
other receivables to ensure actions are taken to
recover these balances in the case of any risk
of default.

The Group uses three categories for other
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each
of those categories. A summary of the
assumptions underpinning the Group's

3.1.21=EmE ()

Hith e hE
E@FW%EIE 2y ek

HFRIE - THERREE R AR
HEM B AR M EUKEIR - K&
B & = ) B YR % 55 H b B R
8 - LARERIE H IR A2 R
R BREFE 8 I [0 1 S R K

ARER B BR A EL A FE MR ) = fE
Bl RREGEERRREES
BRI EEREN L - AEE
B EEBRELERNRRAE
BN

expected credit loss model is as follows:

Basis for recognition of Basis for calculation
Category Group definition of category expected credit loss provision  of interest revenue
Eil SEHERENER BARMCEFRRENER FISWMAGEER
Stage one Customers have a low risk of 12 months expected l0sses. Gross carrying amount
default and a strong capacity to Where the expected lifetime of an
meet contractual cash flow asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.
F-IBR FPEARBREEGENEE RRREANESHEL -GXE SAREE
SRZRMR LT HBEERE12EAZANEE -
BHBRENEERSRF AR
& o
Stage two Receivables for which there is a Lifetime expected losses Gross carrying amount
significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition
FRBR BEAEARGEERRBEEN FEHANESRREX AREE
ol 3e: 0
Stage three Receivables for which there is Lifetime expected losses Amortised cost carrying amount
credit loss since initial recognition (net of credit allowance)
E-[ER BEAEALELEERENE THFERANESREX BHRAEREE(NREE
WesE EEL)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

130

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking

macroeconomic data.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provides
for loss allowance for other receivables as

follows:

3 BEEMEERSBMIA @)

3.1 FERERREZEF)
3.1.21 B8Rk (&)

HotofEW 558 ()
AEERBLRBARBEERS
% BT RBERGAEEER
cHEFERHNEEREX
% AEEEEREREEGR
B R 52 HB Ok R 30 50 B RE ME Y R R
RBEZUEREH A -

RZZEZZF+-_A=+—8 "
7N 52 [ By L b B SR IR O B 1 1
BT

Estimated Carrying

gross Carrying amount (net of

amount at Loss impairment

Category default allowance provision)

BOHIE IR

Bhl HREE EERE (NBRBERE)

Amount due from related parties Stage one 30,493,608 (227,417) 30,266,191
JE U BB 5 5RO B

Land auction and other deposits Stage one 41,335,820 (65,623) 41,270,197
THBRMRES KA MRS —F&E

Receivables relating to disposal of Stage one 6,764,175 (53,108) 6,711,067

subsidiaries

BRALENEA RN EKZRIE —EER

Others Stage one 27,900,745 (116,609) 27,784,136
HAh, —BEER

Others Stage three 6,585,200 (6,585,200) -
Hih E=PRER

113,079,548 (7,047,957) 106,031,591
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 HMBEMEEREMTIA @
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEREE &)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 31.2ER (B)
Other Receivables (Continued) E e W R (#E)
As at 31 December 2019, the Group provides RZZE-NF+=ZA=+—8"
for loss allowance for other receivables as N 52 [ B H A JE RURRIE Y B R
follows: (P ORNE
Estimated Carrying
gross Carrying amount (net of
amount at Loss impairment
Category default allowance provision)
ERRhE REE
Rl BIREE EERE (MRRERE)
Amount due from related parties Stage one 13,251,224 (82,280) 13,168,944
JE L R B 5 5RO E—PEER
Land auction and other deposits Stage one 18,469,876 (58,784) 18,411,092
THBEHRRESREMEZES F—HE
Receivables relating to disposal of Stage one
subsidiaries 72,760,053 (476,822) 72,283,231
BRALENEA RN EKZRIE B
Others Stage one 41,611,525 (160,870) 41,450,655
HAh, 124
146,092,678 (778,756) 145,313,922
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 H¥EMEENESMTIE@
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBEE(HE)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk 3.1.3nBEL R
Cash flow forecast is prepared by the finance RERETEATIHAR RSB
department of the Company. Group finance RE . SR BEEHAEER
monitors rolling forecast of the Group's liquidity MBESFIEITRENTER - LA
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to BREBBE MBS ENEEM
meet operational needs. %o
Surplus cash held by the Group over and above ZIKE EFEEaRNEEESHE
balance required for working capital are ﬁ%ﬁ’]&ﬁ%ﬁéfﬁﬂlﬁ"ﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁ
deposited with bank with good credit rating. As 1*, T RAERTT c RZE T F
at 31 December 2020, the Group held cash and TZA=+—H AEEFER
cash equivalent of approximately HK$443.9 ERESEBEEBEENLM39EE
million (31 December 2019: HK$82.4 million). BT(ZE-—AF+A=+—
H:824E58%8T) -
The table below analyses the Group's financial T%‘%"Tﬁzliﬁ lﬂﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁ
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based ARBBER-_ZE_FTFR=
on the remaining period as at 31 December —NE+ZA=T—HBZ&%% J
2020 and 2019 to the contractual maturity date. B ISR THRZEERE R E
The amounts disclosed in the table are the T - RNEBENSEREL
contractual undiscounted cash flows. KRR TRE o
Total
Lessthan  Between  Between Over contractual
1year 1and 2 years 2and 5 years 5years  cash flows
Crkka
PR-F -FEZWE MEZEF SREE REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT FAT
As at 31 December 2020 R=—Z=F%
TZA=t-H
Trade and other payables B % REMENFE 804,389 30,988 - - 835,377
Amount due to related parties f&{ Bk 7 2B = 50,463 - - 50,463
Borrowings TE 399,291 394,925 904,177 94,723 1,793,116
Lease liabilities HEERE 13,119 9,246 13,960 13,564 49,889
1,216,799 485,622 918,137 108,287 2,728,845
As at 31 December 2019 R=-E-R%F
+ZA=t-H
Trade and other payables & 5 REMEMNTIR 405,620 52,492 - - 458,112
Borrowings EE 370,725 82,215 45,171 - 498,111
Lease liabilities MEBR 11413 2,835 250 - 14,498
787,758 137,542 45,421 = 970,721
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings, obligations under finance lease, lease
liabilities and interest payable less restricted cash for
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December 2020
and 2019 were as follows:

3 HNEEMEERSBMIA@®

32 EXmEBRER

AEBERBEAEEREARERE
REMRES  RRRIBH DRI
RIEBREBAREE AR o

REFHFRBREALRE  AKERH
BRN FTRROBESE  BITHK
R EEE LB ETR °

AEBENEEABIRE %éK A
R AF B ER AR QB E - F
BENAER BEBEE- i‘ﬂfféﬁ
MEMMERERIREBEERAS
;RS EEBBE

AEER_F_FTFER_F-—NAF
T-A=t—BWEEA@ALEIMT :

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

R-®=—RE R-B-nF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-8

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAEIT

Total borrowings BEE 1,380,022 474,726
Total lease liabilities HEaEERE 45,279 13,975
Interest payable FET R & 600 58
Less: restricted cash for borrowings B BRSIBESEE (130,000) (114,000)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIREEMEIER (443,882) (82,415)
Net debt FEIE 852,019 292,344
Total equity M ERE 2,821,584 2,419,043
Gearing ratio EARAE® 30.2% 12.1%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 3 HREMEEREHMIA@
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREEME

The table below analyses financial instruments TRARABEEDTERAABEARK

carried at fair value by valuation method. The MERTHE - FRERNERAD

different levels have been defined as follows:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — MREEXBELERTSN®R
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). BCRERARE)(F14) °

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within — BRTEVRABENREN  Z
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or BESEBBMNBRE AHME -
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or A ABEE(BER) s EE (BR
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). BER)BABE(E2H) -

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not — BEXBBEWIFEENERMES
based on observable market data (that is, R A BE (BN IEr] Bk &
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). ABE) (B3R -

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AEEBMNEAARBEFAEGR ISR

of the Group are measured at fair value by Level 3. BEFAZEIMRAAEBEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R F2k FE3R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value DWAAEBERABEZ
through profit or loss SREE - - 46,276 46,276
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-Zf
+=A=+-8 - - 46,276 46,276
Financial assets at fair value AAREEABRZZ
through profit or loss ERMEE - - 43,480 43,480
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-h&
+=A=+-H - - 43,480 43,480

There was no transfer between level 1 and 2 during
the year.

FRAEEVREF 2R 2 0B R
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3 HNEEMEERSBMIA@®

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEMF(HF)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The instrument
is included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
technigues. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3. The following table presents the changes
in Level 3 instruments for the years ended 31
December 2020.

REBMSEENSRIAARE @
THREERBRABNTSRENE

WRZPT - RZE ~ &4~ TTRAR
BEQAXEEERAUES M LEN
RERE - AEEMHSREREE -
MAMERRRIZAFEEERRE
FETHNMSERS - Z LA AR

WIRERMBEENSRIT A (15
IZSTETR) AABEDERMGE
FEETE -  ZEMEFERENAA
BEEMAEBEEMSHE UKD
KBEEBERMT WEETIAAA
BEMR2MERE ASES THE -
ZLEBIGTAE 2 -

i — A A £ B R ¥ ABUEY IFRIZ
AEREMBEIREL - AT AA
FIW e TRDBPIFERE—FT_F
T-A=+—BLEFEFEIRTANE
) o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3

HEEREERSHM T A @)

3.3 DABEME(E)

Description

H

Quantitative information
about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3)
ERAABEFERANEE
Al sEm A B (£34%)
HEERER
Fair value at Valuation
31/12/2020 technique
R=-Z=-ZFF
+t=A=+-¢
WAREE HELZE
(HK$°000)
(F&T)

Other equity securities:

Equity instruments (Note 23)

HAOIAE S -

s T A (/a2 23)

Asset-Based
approach
46,276 BEEME
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying
the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the
provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on the expected credit losses which use
a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade
receivables. This assessment is based on the
credit history of its customers and other
debtors and the current market condition as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of
reporting period, and requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Management
reassesses the provisions at each balance
sheet date.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a
number of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

4 EETFHMEFRHER

B A VBRI AERG A BEE
ERRIENERGER - EEEREREE
SRR INBITEHIE

fhET R A S TETR S - RETDRBBEL

BLEMCEAR(BEYREBERASAEY
ERENMBTE  BBSENARRENH

FEH) M {E I TR o

4.1 BB

(a) EZEKERE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

138

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses and analyses whether
property and equipment would impair on each
balance sheet date. When the carrying value of
an asset or a group of assets exceeds the
recoverable amount (the higher of the net
amount of fair value less cost of disposal and the
present value of estimated future cash flow), it
indicates that an impairment has occurred. The
net amount of fair value less cost of disposal is
determined by reference to the agreed sales
price or the observable market price of similar
assets in arm’s length transactions, less
incremental costs that are directly attributable to
the disposal of the asset. During the estimation
of the present value of future cash flow, the
management needs to estimate the future cash
flow of the asset or group of assets, and select
an appropriate discount rate to determine the
present value of the future cash flow.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation technigues. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation technigue. Such
assessment is made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties
and might materially differ from the actual
result. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market
condition existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and actual transactions in the
market.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (Continued)

(f)

Estimated useful lives and residual values
of property and equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives, residual values and
related depreciation charges for the Group's
property and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will revise
the depreciation charges where useful lives are
different to that of previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expense in
future periods.

4.2 Critical accounting judgements

(€:))

Classification of government grants

Grants related to assets are government grants
whose primary condition is that an entity
qualifying for them should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Grants
related to income are government grants other
than those related to assets. The Group’s
management needs to examine the terms of
the respective government grants and apply
judgements to identify the related expenditures
that are intended to compensate for.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group recorded government grants amounting
to HK$ 94,452,000 in profit and loss, among
which HK$ 84,845,000 were industry support
funds. The Group's management concluded
that these industry support funds granted to
compensate for operation expenditures but not
for the land use rights the Group acquired or
subsequent plant construction expenditures.
Therefore, the Group recorded them as grants
related to income.
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5

REVENUE 5 WA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-T-ZTF HE_ZT—NF
+=A=+-H +=A=+—H
ILEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
Revenue from sales of prefabricated REHEEERER N EEANY
construction units YA 915,261 579,853
Revenue from granting licenses RERTHENEIME AR
WA 67,709 36,428
Revenue from decoration and landscaping 2 £ 2 & F1 B M 471 L AR 75
services YU 37,432 =
Revenue from sales of prefabricated REHETERERNRELE
construction equipments U A 27,985 65,032
Revenue from consulting services R B AR UA 27,210 1,317
Rental income He WA 13,687 13,271
1,089,284 695,901
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5 REVENUE (continued)

notes:

(a)

(b)

5 WA @

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (a)
The following table shows how much of the revenue

recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-

forward contract liabilities and how much relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

FHANEENKEERER
TREFINABERAMEREEINBEFE
ENNEBANABRENRERANKAS
e

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—E-Z2F —ZE-nF
t=A=+—-B +=A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Revenue recognised that was included inthe  REMBEEANBBEEHARN
contract liability balance at the beginning BRI ¢
of the year:
Sales of prefabricated construction unit FERREAREAMHHEESD
contracts 52,732 37,770
Sales of granting licenses contracts FRRMERAEEESD - 1,116
52,732 38,886

Unsatisfied long-term sales of prefabricated construction (b)

units contracts

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations
resulting from long-term sales of prefabricated construction

units contracts and granting licenses contracts.

AMETREBREBRZEAHHESH

TREAEARRKEAZEAMTHESH
R T ENEAME AR S A MELREN
BRAEE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—B-2H A
t=A=+—-B +=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHEIT

Sales of prefabricated construction TRRERAREAHHESD
units contracts 1,558,614 938,668
Sales of granting licenses contracts HRRMEAEEES L 11,882 11,164
1,570,496 949,832
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6 Government grants 6 BXAF#HEBL

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

BE-—Z-ZF HE-ZT—NF

+=A=+-H +=A=+—H

LFE IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Industry support funds EXLEFBES 84,845 14,083

Others HAm 9,607 9,412

94,452 23,495
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received BHE-Z——F+-A=+—HILHF
industry support funds amounted to HK$ 84,845,000 from & RSB T R E R
local authorities. These government grants were granted to & % 84,845,000/ 7T © % F BT B
compensate for operation expenditures but not for the land TARBESERS MAWIERASE
use rights the Group acquired or subsequent plant B FrERAS A T (S A RE SR B R 5 22
construction expenditures. Therefore, the Group recorded AT mEN - A AEEBE AR

them as grants related to income. RSB AR
7 OTHER INCOME 7 EHitilg A

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

BE-Z-ZF BE_Z—NF

+=ZA=+—-H +=-—A=+—H

IEFE HFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE&xr

Financing component from a related party & & Bl 5 0B & 205 7,932 -

Interest income on bank deposits HRITFERFE WA 3,123 5,100

Others EHAtb 696 792

11,751 5,892
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8 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET

8 Hfittlzs (BR) — B8

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

BE-Z2-FF HE_ZT—IF

+=ZA=+—-H +=ZHA=+—H

ILFE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Gains on transferring licenses (Note 35) LRI RS (M52 35) 5,035 =

Gains/(losses) on disposal of equipments  HEREN YR (BE) 529 (439)

Fair value gains on investment properties B MEMEMN A A EEK =S 279 631
Gains/(losses) on disposal of right-of-use HEFEREEENKE(EE)

assets 17 (5,235)

Net exchange gains b e 5 R (215) 258

Others EA (2,904) (667)

2,741 (5,452)
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 ERMHIASTHRAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution XX BIEEEKA « HE XD A RITH
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as X DT
follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

BE-_Z_-_ZF H=_2—hnF
+=ZA=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H

LFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Raw materials and consumables used ERARME XBFEm 439,942 273,652
Changes in inventories of finished goods, &AM ~ B &R MERSR
goods in transit and work in progress 152 13,140 5,694
Employee benefits expenses (note (a)) 8 TRMFEXZ (M @) 161,740 125,395
Labour outsourcing BN 68,855 61,321
Depreciation neE 75,897 72,454
Amortisation of right-of-use assets E S EN S 22,341 23,969
Amortisation of intangible assets | A ER 375 1,518
Short-term leases and low-value leases EEHERREBERERS
expenses 817 569
Transportation EwE A 50,844 29,385
Land use tax and value-added TR R IR E R I E
tax surcharges 37,197 15,158
Legal and professional fees FERMEEER 22,844 18,373
Utilities NEEEEH 10,278 9,458
Entertainment and travelling expenses RS RERERA 6,831 7,213
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN 5
— audit services — RERT 2,033 1,930
— non-audit services — BRI = 182
Bank charges wITIE 1,773 1,458
Office expenses FE/NEN 1,279 807
Provision for inventories impairment GFERERE 1,165 530
Registration expenses B & 277 277
Others HAh 28,839 41,462
Total of cost of sales, selling and HEKA « HE R HEFAZIA
distribution expenses and MITB A B
administrative expenses 946,467 690,805
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 9 RUEEISTHEFEZ @
notes: Hiat
(@) Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ and (@) BIRTAX(BRESRESTHASHSE)
chief executive’s emoluments)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-_ZT_ZF HE_T—IF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
WHFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Wages and salaries ITER¥® 154,664 114,920
Share option scheme MR A AT 2l 1,026
Pensions BIKRE 653 4,348
Other welfare benefit expenses Hib @A 2R 5,397 6,127
Charged to statement of profit or loss FFARIERREMEEmKERA
and other comprehensive income 161,740 125,395
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) HBERSHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the %:t?t TRF+_A=+T—HILEFE  F5E

Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 include four (year

ended 31 December 2019: two) directors whose emoluments

BeHMALS  EEEAEE=ZT-A

¢+:)5]E+—EI¢¢J§ CMB)EE  WENH

are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 11. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2020 of the

SERMENAEIND TR - BE—F—
ZE+_A=+-BHLFE  Ef—R(HEZ

remaining one (year ended 31 December 2019: three) highest —hWE+ZA=+—HBLFE: =R)NER
paid employees are as follows: HE S F IR T ¢
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-2fF HE_Z-—NF
+=—A=+—H +=A=+—H
LLEFEE LEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other short-term e REMSHIES &R
employee benefits 889 2,642
Contribution to pension scheme RIS FEIME K 18 51
Share-based compensation PARRAD RETRH B & 9 -
916 2,693

145



DIT Group Limited 2 2020 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B IS SRR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 9 BHMEISPHNEXZ @)
notes: (Continued) Mzt - ()
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) HBEZSHMALE)
The remuneration to the remaining one (year ended 31 HHp— R (HEZ-NWF+A=+—HIF
December 2019: three) highest paid employees fell within the B =) BmiMEENTINE TH&HE :
following emolument band:
Number of individuals
AH
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-2H HE_T—IF
+=A=+—8H +=—R=+—AR
WHFE EFE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/8 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7% 7T 2 2,000,000 7% 7T 0 1
10 FINANCE COSTS 10 BEERA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ﬁg-—?—?qi :t:?_jlﬁz
+=A=+-8 t-A=+—8
LEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Interest expenses on borrowings EEMEMAX 38,623 31,048
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBENBERK 1,450 1,309
Less: Interest capitalised (Note 15) W BAMEF S (HaE15) (7,125) (6,429)
32,948 25,928
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive is set out below. There is no chief executive
who is not a director of the Company.

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its

(a) EBERBSTBRAEHNME

11 ESEMRERS

BREERRSTHRABNMSED
WT - IERSTBRAEHRARATF

5%

AEEARRREMBE AR ESZHE

AR ENHENME :

subsidiaries:
For the year ended 31 December 2020: BHE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HL*F
g :
Share-hased
Fees Salary Bonus compensation Total
MR 1B 5
Name it ik & ER#ES EHA#HS &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE FET FET FET
Executive Directors BTES
Liu Weixing (Chairman) AEE (L) 726 - - 201 927
(appointed on 21 Aug 2020) (R=Z=ZF
NAZ+—BZ#E)
Wu Po Sum (Former chairman) — #&E& (i /E) 1,280 - - - 1,280
(resigned on 21 Aug 2020) (R=E-ZTF
NABZ+—HEHE)
Guo Weigiang (Chief executive — $3%E%4 (7TH42#) 1,994 800 - 96 2,890
officer)
Wang Jing I 400 548 1,930 36 2,914
(appointed on 21 Aug 2020) (R=T=ZF
NA=Z+—BZ@E)
Yang Hongwei NS 560 - - - 560
(resigned on 8 May 2020) (MZZ=ZF
A ANBET)
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Wu Wallis T 60 - - - 60
Wang Jun TE 60 - - - 60
Independent Non-Executive ~BYEHTES
Directors
Lee Chi Ming 58 240 - - - 240
Jiang Hongaing ZHE 240 - - - 240
Ma Lishan =il 240 - - - 240
5,800 1,348 1,930 333 9,411
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11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(@

148

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

11 EEEIIRES @

(@) EBERBSTRAENME (&)

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019: BHE-_Z—NF+-_A=+—HI#F
E
Fees Salary Bonus Total
Name #4 e e FRES Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET FAET
Executive Directors HTEE
Wu Po Sum (Chairman) HER(EE) - 578 = 578
(appointed on 17 Sep 2019) (R=F—h&
NA+EBEZH)
Guo Weigiang (Chief executive officer) 8% (7T B#87E) 231 289 = 520
(appointed on 17 Sep 2019) (R=Z-NF
NB+EBEZE)
Yin Jun EE - 1,732 = 1,732
(resigned on 30 Nov 2019) (RZF—N%
+—A=+HEE)
Yang Hongwei g - 1,364 - 1,364
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Peng Xiongwen T 45 - - 45
(resigned on 17 Sep 2019) (RZ2—n&
NA+EBEHME)
Wu Wallis B 17 - - 17
(appointed on 17 Sep 2019) (R=Z—h&F
NB+EBEZE)
Wang Jun B 17 - - 17
(appointed on 17 Sep 2019) (R=F—h&F
NA+EBZH)
Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES
Directors
Lee Chi Ming FEH 240 - - 240
Jiang Honggjing ZHE 240 - - 240
Ma Lishan VAl 240 - - 240
1,030 3963 - 1,993
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11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group did not provide any termination benefits, or
pay or receive any consideration to or from third
parties for making available directors’ service.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group did not have outstanding loan, quasi loan
or other dealing enter into by the Company or its
subsidiaries, in favour of directors of the Company or
its controlling shareholder, or the body corporates
controlled by such directors or entities connected
with such directors.

The emoluments of the directors are decided by the
Board of Directors, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics as well as the
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors.

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

11 EEREAREX @)

(a)

ESNBESTRAENME (&)

BE_T_TELR_T-NAFT+-A
=t E&ﬁf Kﬁllﬁﬁmﬁ
EE=RG MK E % =T R EMEE
BBE A Sk S AN S M ERAE A (R o

HE-_Z-_TFR-_T—NF+=A
=t—HLEFE AEEWERET
M BARRSKEME AR AERR
AEFYIEITRERT  BEZEES
THIMEAERNEZEESE@E
MERBASXRANHMKEEENR %
BERREMRS -

EEHEHETEELRARENE
BRE - BAARRRTELBTEG
SHEEUREFRHOEERORR
R -

ARTEF BN AL AT FLEA
SEEBAMARERANRET
—PER=F-AFT=A=+—A
LEEEABHTENEERS &
B RA 40 B E T B A B SRS
s -
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

12 FiSHiBAX

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

BE-Z-ZF HE_ZT—NHF

+=HA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H

LFE IEEE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Current income tax REFTISH

— PRC corporate income tax — B ERREH 36,602 29,218
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBMEH = -
36,602 29,218
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EIEFTIS L (BY7230) 8,123 (3,900)
Total income tax expenses for the year FEMSHR 2% 44,725 25,318
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the enacted tax rate of the home country of the companies

within the Group as follows:

12 FREHEAYX @)

AER B BARR PS5 B A # P A3
’EITT AITEBEREEMOHRERFTED
EwmTBAMTR  FEHIWT

SR A AR

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-—Z-_ZTF HE-_ZT—NF
+=B=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
LEE HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Profit before income tax KBTS 55 Bl Al 214,691 138,935
Income tax calculated at respective B BEEMERFTEMNMED
statutory rates 55,226 37,023
Preferential income tax rate BEFFHE (6,219) (15,351)
Previously unrecognised tax losses i@&ﬂiﬁﬁ% TIAEIBRANFE
recognised in current year as deferred REBELERIBEE
tax assets (8) (990)
Non-deductible expenses AR SZ 543 916
Non-taxable income BERBBA (726) (1,884)
Research and development expenditure EEINORATEE S
additional deduction (8,952) (2,9006)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax — BB KRR IEEE
losses (558) 412
Tax losses and temporary differences not R AIRERIBEETIE
recognised as deferred tax assets EEREREEE 7,148 9,917
Prior year's tax filing differences F—FERMESE (1,729) (995)
Total income tax expenses for the year FEMSHA 2% 44,725 25,318
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12

13

152

B IR RMIEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Hong Kong profits tax

The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% (year
ended 31 December 2019: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit derived in Hong Kong for the year.

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“CIT
Law"), the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries
established in mainland China is 25%, while certain
subsidiaries are applicable to the preferential tax rate of
15%.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by a PRC-
resident enterprise to its immediate holding company
outside PRC for earnings generated beginning 1 January
2008 and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1
January 2008 are exempted from such withholding tax. A
lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the
immediate holding companies are established in Hong
Kong according to the tax treaty arrangement between the
PRC and Hong Kong. The Company’s mainland China
subsidiaries did not have plan for distributing dividend to
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020, thus
no such withholding tax was accrued (year ended 31
December 2019: Nil).

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend any payment of
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020
(year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

@

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by
dividing the consolidated earnings of the Group attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

14 BREF

(@

B 98
FESREXBNDREARBESR
AFIEARRBEEBFRIAFAD %
TEBERNIETFOHTESS -

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ﬁg— - qi E«t:l:— = j-LE'E
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
LFE LEFE

Consolidated earnings attributable to RAREEA AFTREGE
owners of the Company (HK$'000) B (F8T) 158,833 110,749

Weighted average number of ordinary BT R s

shares in issue (‘000) FHE(FR) 2,802,401 2,802,401
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRREARBF CEM) 5.67 3.95

note: Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
and basic earnings per share were stated after taking into
account the effect of the share consolidation in October
2020, every 4 ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each
being consolidated into 1 share of par value HK$0.40.
Comparative figures have been retrospectively adjusted
on the assumption that the above share consolidation
had been effective in prior year.

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the calculation of diluted earnings
per share excluded the share options granted to
directors, senior management and other employees
on 30 November 2020, as their inclusion would have
been antidilutive. Therefore, diluted earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2020 is equal
to basic earnings per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, diluted
earnings per share were equal to the basic earnings
per share as the Group does not have any dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

(b)

ffet - BBITEBRONETHERSRELR
M RR_Z-_2F+AERNENE
HOFERTUEY  ZBRHEHAEL
BREERIETNRNAFAIREER
04T - LBRBFEERRKRNA
HEAEFEEREROBRRMES -

s
BRESRAN DB AFBEITHEINE
LHXE’Jﬂﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁ%fﬁjﬂﬁﬁﬁ/aﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BAREEZBMMETE RBEZ
?fyi‘f’ HI= ‘|’ HIEFE &
IREE B E &?‘EﬁA T-F
FT+—HA=+tAETE=S " =g
B & HithfE B & RERRHE - .7%2?17\32
EERETAFGREEME - ALt -
BE_ZT_THE+T_A=1+—HIF
ERSREERNENERERET -

BE_ZT-—NF+_A=+—HILF
B ARASEHEEFAEEEER
N SREEENREREARZNER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 M% - BERRE

Plants under

development

for

prefabricated

Computer Motor  Furniture & Leasehold  construction

Buildings  equipments vehicles fixtures  Equipments  improvements business Total
BREHEES
BEEHN

By BlRE RE GLRRE B HEEE ERERE a3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i i1 i Fin Fir i1 Fir i

At 1 January 2020 R=B-%£-5-H

Cost HA 826,018 4,683 7,498 25927 22977 35,563 397,702 1,570,368
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (58,815) (2,355) (2413 (7,833) (61,451) (21173) - (154,040)
Net hook amount FETE 767,203 2,328 5,085 18,094 211,526 14,390 397,702 1,416,328

Year ended 31 December 2020 HEZ-5-EE

tZRZT-BLEE

(pening net book amount EERFE 767,203 2328 5,085 18,094 21152 14,390 397,702 1,416,328
Additions HE 126 1,633 4,084 12,734 39,166 580 457,087 515,410
Transfers upon completion THEEE 299,051 - - - 66,696 - (365,747) -
Disposals i3 - (18) (588) (51) (1,144) - - (1,801)
Depreciaton charge i (27,815) (1,045) (3,055) (5782) (29.861) (8519) 5 (75,897)
Currency translation differences SEREER 63,809 181 1,204 3,663 20,462 367 34,580 124,272
(Closing net book amount FREASE 1,102,374 3,085 6,730 28,658 307,025 6,818 523,622 1978312
At 31 December 2020 R-8-8Et-A=1-H

Cost s 1,194,759 6,679 12416 44,611 400,960 29,055 523,622 2,212,102
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (92,385) (3,59) (5,636) (15,953) (93,935) (22,237) - (233,790)
Net book amount FETE 1,102,374 3,085 6,730 28,658 307,025 6,818 523,622 1,978,312
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% - BENRERE @)
(Continued)

Plants under

development

for

Drefabricated

Computer Motor Furniture & Leasehold ~ construction
Buidings  equipments vehicles fitures  Equipments  improvements business Total

RRERERES

RERHH
B¥ EHRE TE ELRRE By HERE ERAR &3t
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
T T T AT FEL AT FEL AT

At 1 January 2019 R-%F-1E-A-H

Cost B 701906 4482 9,047 23553 20721 25880 562,764 1568353
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (33220 (1.439) (2,081) (3362) (32.839) (12193 - (85,134)
Net book amount FEAE 668686 3083 6966 20,191 27882 13687 562,764 1483219

Year ended 31 December 2019 HECS-NE

tZAZt-ALEE
Opening net book amount FEAFE 668,686 3043 6966 20,191 207,882 13,687 562,764 1483219
Adaitions HE 35 708 1940 2309 A0 12423 87,060 108,241
Transfers upon completion TREER 147970 - = - 18369 - (1963%9) =
Decrease relating to disposal ERLENBLARNE)
of subsidiaries - - - - - - (49,825) (49.825)
Other disposals Hhihe (14 (50) (880) (333 (8853) - (351) (10,881)
Depreciation charge fEER (27,568) (1.314) (281 (3393 (30977) (6,388) - (72.454)
Currency translation differences NEREEE (24.9) (59 (129 (720) (5,135) (33 (5.407) 1972
(Closing net book amount EREAFE 767,203 238 5085 1809 M52 14,390 7,102 1416328
At 31 December 2019 RZ8-AETZA=1-H
Cost s 826,018 4683 749 B9 917 35,963 397,102 1,570,368
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (58.815) (2.35) (2413 18%3) (61.451) 2173 - (154,040)
Net book amount FEAE 767,203 238 508 18,094 M52 14390 37,102 1416328
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15

B IR RMIEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$75.9
million (year ended 31 December 2019: HK$72.5 million)
has all been charged to administrative expenses and cost
of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2020, property, plant and equipment
with a net book value of HK$419.7 million (31 December
2019: HK$371.8 million) were pledged as collateral for the
Group'’s borrowings HK$218.7 million (31 December 2019:
HK$193.7 million). Among the collateral, property ownership
certificate of the Group’s building with a net book value
HK$280.6 million (31 December 2019: HK$245.6 million) is
under China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.. These buildings
were pledged as collateral for two bank borrowings of
HK$164.6 million (31 December 2019: HK$154.6 million)
which was secured by China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd..

In addition, as at 31 December 2020, property, plant and
equipment with a net book value of 79.7 million and right-
of-use assets with a net book value of HK$76.3 million were
pledged as collateral for a bank borrowing of HK$65.3
million (31 December 2019. HK$44.7 million) of Drawin
Intelligent Manufacturer Technology Industry Group Limited,
which is controlled by the same ultimate controlling
shareholder.

Interest expenses of HK$7.1 million were capitalised in
plant under development for prefabricated construction
business for the year ended 31 December 2020 (year ended
31 December 2019: HK$6.4 million).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

This note provides information for leases where the Group

is a lessee.

(a

Amounts recognised in the statement of

financial position

The statement of financial position shows the

following amounts relating to leases:

16 EHESE

%o

(@

HAREREBEA - AIAHEREERHTE

RUBRRKRPERZZEHE

MBARRRINTATEBHEHE SRR ¢

Property,
plant and Land use
Right-of-use assets equipment right Total
¥ - BE
EREEE RRE  LwfERARE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZF%—-H—H 13,332 713,255 726,587
Additions NE 40,551 204,538 245,089
Disposals HE (382) - (382)
Amortisation charged into profit or loss Brisst NBs (10,276) (12,065) (22,341)
Amortisation capitalised to plant under BHENM B HEEBE
development - (4,796) (4,796)
Currency translation differences INEREEE 2,174 44,686 46,860
Balance as at 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+-A=t+-H
A 30 45,399 945,618 991,017
Property,
plant and Land use
Right-of-use assets equipment right Total
FREEE & Tin{ERRE FCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHEIT FHEIT
As at 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NE-HF—H 40,722 732,937 773,659
Additions NE 1,044 770,587 771,631
Decrease relating to disposal of subsidiaries B HEN B A TR - (759,424) (759,424)
Other disposals Hip & (13,500) - (13,500)
Amortisation charged into profit or loss Bisr ABR (14,731) (9,238) (23,969)
Amortisation capitalised to plant under BHRENCEEERBRE
development - (5,842) (5,842)
Currency translation differences INETE Z (203) (15,765) (15,968)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 R-B-NE+-A=+-H
- 13,332 713,255 726,587
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16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

16 FRHEEE @)

(@) Amounts recognised in the statement of (@) REBRRERFEIAZSHEE)
financial position (Continued)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
Lease liabilities 2020 2019
R-B-EF RZZE-NF
HEsE +=A=+-8 +-—A=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FEr
Current k2l 13,735 10,968
Non-current FEED 31,544 3,007
Total lease liabilities HeafEes 45,279 13,975
(b) Amounts recognised in the statement of (b) RESZREMZEWERDIERZ
profit or loss and other comprehensive S5

income

The statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

BakEtEERERIIRAT AR
HEZSE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

BE-Z-BF HEZ_T NF
+t=A=+—-8 +-A=+—H

LHFE LEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amortisation charge of right-of-use FREEEH#HISER
assets
— Property, plant and equipment — % - B R 10,276 14,731
— Land use right — T AR 12,065 9,238
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBEMERS 1,450 1,309
Short-term leases and low-value REAERREBEHEERS
leases expenses 817 569
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16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(c)

The Group’s leasing activities:

The Group leases various property, plant and
equipment. Rental contracts are made for fixed
periods of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions.

As at 31 December 2020, right-of-use assets, with a
net book value of HK$658.5 million (31 December
2019: HK$510.5 million) were pledged as collateral for
the Group’s borrowings of HK$926.7 million (31
December 2019: HK$161.0 million).

Among the collateral, state-owned land use
certificates of the Group’s lands with a net book value
of HK$315.4 million (year ended 31 December 2019:
HK$356.3 million) are under China Minsheng Drawin
Co., Ltd.. These lands were pledged as collateral for
two bank borrowings of HK$53.5 million (31
December 2019: HK$39.1 million) which were secured
by China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd..

16 FHEEE @)

(c)

AEEZHEES !
AEEREREYE  BER&E -
HESNEIESFNE T HR AT
3 o THE R TIFE E B EfE Lt e
WBE BB R ARSI -

R-ZE-_FEF+_A=+—0 " FH
FEABSBSEEBT(ZZE—NEF
+-_A=Z+—H:5105B&8T)H
FREEECHEBERREED26TH
BAETERNERA(ZTE-—NAF+Z
A=+—H:161.0B&8%T) °

EEEERRY  AEEE@FER
3CAEEBAT(HE_E—NF+=
A=+—HILFE :3563F&EBT)
MEzBETFERAEREFRE
REBRARINET - ZE B WK
BEAMERITENRSSHEE AT (Z
T-hE+_A=+—H:39188
BIL)MERG  YHPRERERA
AIRMIER o
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17

160

B IR RMIEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REMEME
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE_ZE-ZHF HE_T—NHF
+=ZA=+—-H +=—HA=+—H
LEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Beginning balance FERR 17,080 17,348
Disposals & (149) (763)
Fair value gains on investment properties & EWMEMN A BEWZE 260 631
Currency translation differences GNEE YT E =5 1,107 (136)
Ending balance FRERR 18,298 17,080

Investment properties held by the Group are all commercial
properties located in Shandong Province, the PRC.

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December
2020 by Graval Consulting Limited (2019: Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited), an independent professional qualified
valuer. The revaluation gains or losses are included in
‘Other gains/(losses) — net’ in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (Note 8).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of
investment properties which was determined using income
approach by reference to the value of income, cash flow or
cost savings generated by the asset.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into/out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer. The investment
properties are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2020 and 2019. There were no transfer among
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years.

AEBEFANREEFHES B F E L
REMNBEEYE

AERBEMEEHEDNBHBYEXEERME
S ECEBEERAR(ZZE—AF : F
BHAEERARAIR-_ZT_ZEF+_A
=t HETENGE ERREEERD
MAGFEEaMEtemEmEaR [l
&,/ (B1R) —F8 ] (HfE8)

%:%:%E&:%*n¢+:ﬂz+*

CREMEMENRAABEERAKA
/f WEERAEE RERENEEESE
BVERE A AN TE e

REERBR AN EHER S BERNLE
WEH BRANBESHAMNEA B
HeRZZEEFR=-_ZFT-NF+=A
=t+—HB BREUEHEER AL EBEEE

FE3MoFA - F1R - F2HREIF2ME
R AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The valuations were performed based on the income
approach (term and reversion method) or direct
comparison approach for those investment properties. The
following significant unobservable inputs for income
approach have been used:

17

KREHEHE @)

HEBARBEREAABENBR
ZERBUEFHETIRBRAE(EHRE
R WERLLBORETRE - XEHRKA
ERBATERTAIBRE AR

Relationship of

Fair value at 31 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description December 2020 technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
R-E-ZF
+=B=t-H RAER RUBEHA TUEERAYE
it MAREE /“EFE WAHE HENEE HAAEENBE
HK$’000
FET
Ccommercial 18,298 Income Term yield Term yield of 4.0% (2019: 4.0%),  The higher the term
properties (2019:17,080)  approach taking into account of yield yield, the lower the
generated from comparable fair value
properties and adjustment to
effect the certainty of term
income secured and to be
received
BmENE 18,298 W A% TR THMEEZAB(ZE—NEF: THhaEEE
(Z2—NE: 40%)  EETRAELEYE  AAEEGE
17,080) EENREE AR AR

TERERAHRGHE M
WO T 4 ) 38 2

Were the rental rate and yield rate required assumed to

1thj*”H1F$E’JTHi&Hﬁz*I?T%ﬁE’Ji‘ﬁ

increase or decrease by 10% from management’s estimate, BIBIRIZ IR 10%  RZE_TF R
the carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 - NFET+A=T—HHNEEEEHEDN
December 2020 and 2019 would have changed as follows: IREESHIRATEE) :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZB-FF —E-NF
= E=rE = EEy—E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Investment properties increase/decrease to & MR EE I, KD E
— 10 percent rental rate higher — FH£ 18 10% 20,080 18,755
— 10 percent rental rate lower — &R 10% 16,515 15,406
Investment properties increase/decrease to & MEREMAEL N, WD E
— 10 percent yield rate higher — W2 RIEHN10% 17,585 16,410
— 10 percent yield rate lower — W = A 10% 19,011 17,862
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17

18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17 REUHEME @)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

(Continued)

The following rental income amounts relating to the
investment properties have been recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income:

HERARBREAABENBER(H)

UNTERREMEHENESWRABBEER
reEm AR ER T ER

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

BE—Z-%F BE-T N7

t=A=+-A +=-A=+-~

LEFE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Rental income Hae WA 686 708

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 EREE

Computer software

SR E G
HK$'000
FHEIT

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z_ZH+-A=t+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount FYIREFHE 3,619
Additions NE 873
Amortisation charge HHER (375)
Currency translation differences SN E = 450
Closing net book amount FREREFE 4,567

At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EE5+=-A=+—H

Cost XA 5,462
Accumulated amortisation R (895)
Net book amount REDFE 4,567
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

18 | E=E @)

Computer software

£
HK$000
FET

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE-—NF+-A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYRE A 4,118
Additions NE 1,083
Amortisation charge e A (1,518)
Currency translation differences INEEATH E KR (64)
Closing net book amount FRERMEFAE 3,619

At 31 December 2019 R=Z-h&E+=A=+—H

Cost PR R 5,287
Accumulated amortisation R (1,668)
Net book amount REFE 3,619

For the year ended 31 December 2020, amortisation
charges of intangible assets were HK$375,000 (For the year

ended 31 December 2019: HK$1,518,000).

19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

REBEE-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—RILFE -
NEEELEE/NEHEE R A375000% 7T
(BE-_Z—h&E+-_A=+—BHILEE:
1,518,000 7)) ©

19 RENKEQT

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

R=ZB=TF R_ZT-IF

=0 =1:= HE === -1l

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FEr

Share of net assets Frih & EFE 222,996 192,883
Less: Provision for impairment OB = -
222,996 192,883

163



DIT Group Limited 2 2020 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B IS SRR RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

As at the 31 December 2020, the Company had indirect
interests in the following associates:

19 BRENRBZE QT (@)

R=B=BF+=A=+—0 AKERT
Bt 2 ) S P R

Place of incorporation Proportion of Issued
Name and operation ownership interest share capital Principal activities
8 MR RAEE 5 BERERLA ERIRE FEEHK
Held by the Indirectly
Company held
HAAFRE BERE

Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology ~ China =
Company Limited* (formerly
known as Zhejiang China
Minsheng Drawin Technology
Company Limited)

LR EERHRAR A A H -
(IR - AT RERRHR
BRAR)

YMCI China Minsheng Kunming China =
Technology Construction Limited*

ERARTRERMBARRF # =

49% HK$200,000,000  Construction
industrialisation

49% 200,000,000 EEEXL

30% RMB100,000,000  Construction
industrialisation
30% ARE1000000007c BEEZL

*  For identification purpose only

The financial year end dates of the above associates are
coterminous with that of the Group.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's
interests in the associates.

Summarised financial information for an
associate

The tables below provide summarised financial information
for the associate that is material to the Group. The
information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in
the financial statements of Zhejiang Anju Drawin and not
the Group’s share of those amounts. They have been
amended to reflect adjustments made by the Group when
using the equity method, including fair value adjustments
and modifications for differences in accounting policy.
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Zhejiang Anju Drawin

The Group recognised share of gains of associates of
HK$2,891,000 from Zhejiang Anju Drawin using the equity
method for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:

19 IRENVBENE (@)

HIREER

FE1G Bt A A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

BE_Z_ZTF+_A=t—HLEFE &~
SEERRENILE LR IRER
A& A1 42,891,000 T( ==&

ENERE

HK$5,664,000). — L5+ 5,664,000787T) °
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-E-EF Eé:%—ﬂi
+=—B=+—-8 +=-A=+—
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Summarised statement of financial BRI R E
position
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESEMEIER 26,733 5,867
Other current assets EtmEEE 205,838 198,488
Total current assets MBEERRE 232,571 204,355
Non-current assets EREEE 322,850 250,862
Current liabilities mENAE
Financial liabilities (excluding trade SRHAEBE(IREESH
payables) FE(3RI8) = 124,361
Other current liabilities HEimnEhasE 259,739 132,075
Total current liabilities mENA BB 259,739 256,436
Non-current liabilities ERFEE 75,232 3,783
Net assets EEFE 220,450 194,998
Group’s share in % AEBMEDE(AEDHL) 49% 47%
Group’s share in HK$ AEBFTERNEE(ET) 108,021 91,649
Goodwill and adjustments PEES kS 94,207 81,571
Carrying amount BRHEIE 202,228 173,220
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19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19 BB REAE DT (#)

Zhejiang Anju Drawin (Continued) FIZEER (4E)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

HE-T-%F UE-FT NF
+=A=+-A +=A=+-H

IEEE IEEE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue A 276,194 379,928
Profit before income tax  FT1S R B A 12,266 12,292
Income tax expenses Frig®if X (689) -
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 mEikzs _ _
Total comprehensive income ZEW B 11,577 12,292
The Group recognised share of gains of associates of HEZZ-_ZTF+_A=1+—HILFELSE
HK$2,660,000 from YMCI China Minsheng using the equity B A EERREEmMIRPREAE
method for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: losses B N B ER 2,660,000 T ( ZF— NLF -
of HK$1,173,000). E518 1,173,000787T) °
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20 INVENTORIES 20 #8

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

R=BZZF RIZT-NF

+=-—HA=+—8 +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Raw materials R A7 # 53,249 40,204
Finished goods A% 32,375 47,245
Goods in transit FHrER 237 1,412
Low value articles KESEmR 293 79
Work in progress PR 4,623 816
Inventory provision FEREE (1,321) (84)
89,456 89,672

Provisions of inventories to net realisable value amounted
to HK$1,321,000 (2019: HK$84,000). These were recognised
as an expense for the year ended 31 December 2020 in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$453,082,000
(2019: HK$279,346,000). These were included in cost of
sales.

%’é‘ﬁi—]miﬁi‘%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ‘ﬁﬁw%000;%7%
— L : 84,0008 7T) © ZFRIERER

ATE/\&E@iEH&Z ERTHRRAREE-T

“EFT A=t BHLEFENAX -

%:l: 7—7£'E+ H + Hﬁgrﬁﬁﬁg
AR T1FEE A453,082,0008 T (ZF— A1
F 1 279,346,000 7T)  FTASHENKAK -
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21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

21 ESZRHMEWRIBERFANRE

PREPAYMENTS
As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R=—ZB=-BF R-FTNF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables — third parties BIRWRIE —%F=7 756,326 353,618
Trade receivables — related parties B 5 e GIE — B 219,969 162,480
Value-added tax recoverable A Y [B] 3 (B & 71,053 61,314
Amounts due from related parties FE UK B RS 75 7018 30,494 13,251
Land auction deposits THERIRIRE S 28,348 11,173
Prepayments SEANE S 17,096 24,526
Deposits e 12,988 7,297
Notes receivable FEUE & 9,320 2,693
Receivables relating to disposal of B S B RQR A ERGRIE
subsidiaries 6,764 72,760
Government grants receivable JE U B A #58 B) 5,228 8,261
Others Hith 18,923 14,130
1,176,509 731,503
Less: Provision for impairment of trade B BB ERGRE R EAM
receivables and other receivables JE W SR TE R (B B A
(note (a)) (Htez @) (16,641) (5,914)
1,159,868 725,589
note: Hiet :
(@)  As at 31 December 2020, such balance included provision for () RIZZEZZF+-_A=+—8 Z&HEEZ

impairment of trade receivables of HK$9,593,000 and provision
for impairment of other receivables of HK$7,048,000 (31
December 2019: HK5,134,000 and HK$780,000, respectively).
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables and prepayments are denominated in the
following currencies:

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21 25 K& H{thE g s8R a4 58
PREPAYMENTS (continued) (#&)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at 31 December BoORWHTIBER - E-_EFER -_ZE—NE+=
2020 and 2019 based on the invoice issue date were as follows: B=+—BREERE[HNEROTNT :
As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZBE-EBFE R-_ZT—NF
+=—B=+—-8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Less than 1 year DR —F 772,764 355,566
110 2 years —ZEWF 199,954 149,455
Over 2 years JEB A R 3,577 11,077
976,295 516,098
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December ANZEZTFERT h¢+ A=+— EI
2020 and 2019 is the carrying value of each class of FEEx=EER MZ%L it - $8 51| FE WK T
receivables mentioned above. FIBRTEE ©
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair values of trade E’\ T EFR_TE-NF+_A=+—
and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts. B REME Hﬁl RIBEM AR EBEEER
ETE?FE a e

REBNE 5 K H b YR IR A M FE R

EREENA TIIE

MEHE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

R-ZB-EF RZZT—IF

+=A=+—-H +=-—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK dollar BT 6,540 3,890
Renminbi AR 1,153,328 721,699
1,159,868 725,589

The creation of provision for impairment of receivables has
been included in “Net impairment losses on financial
assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

e

NERERE L EREFARERER

HthzmkaikAZ [£ mﬂé?ﬂfﬁﬁﬂéé

o
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

170

@

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

22 MEQRINER

@ TRARZ—ZZE-_ZEF+_A=+—H

31 December 2020: HEZEMBARRE
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  AREREE FEREERE
HMEAY R eSS H WEBRLA WEBRLA HEBRLA
£ NREABRER  TEEH BRAREFE (A5t (A7) (BAk)
% % %
Benelux Property Development China, limited liability  Property USD5,000,000 100% 100% -
(Shanghai) Limited*"® company development 5000,000% T
ERESER(LE)BRAR®  HE BRAF NEER
South East (Shandong) Property Ching, limited liability  Property RMB15,000,000 100% 100% =
Limited*'® company development AR
RA(LR)EXERAR ME - BRAR NERR 15,000,0007C
Sunshine Universal Development BVI, limited liability Inactive UsD1 100% 100% =
Limited compary TEEK 1%
XBRIHE ER
G
Perfect Gold Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD2 100% 100% =
HRREERAR liability company &R 28T
&8 ARAA
Shangheng Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding usD1 100% 100% -
HFBRAA company RERR (E
XBRAHE ER
A7
Commit Glory Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 = 100% =
NEREBR AR liability company AR 1B
&8 ARAA
Giant Achiever Development Limited  Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 = 100% =
E8lERARAA liabilty company B E R 1T

&% ARLA



22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

ERE

ERREEERAF

i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

(Continued)

(@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2020: (Continued)

22 B ATINER @)

@ TERAR-_ZE_ZEF+-_A=+—H
MEBMBARRE : (B)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARENE FEREESE
HMRIREREE WEBRILE WEBRHA HNEBERHA
£ NREABRER  TEEH BRAREKFE (BAk) (BAt) (BAL)
% % %
Fame Glory Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 = 100% =
ERREERAR liability company &R 187
&5 ARRA
Noble Walk Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100% =
RITERAR company RERR EI
RBRIHE ER
G|
Noble Tide Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100% =
HWEERA company RERR 1%
ZERAES ER
G
Zheyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% -
MR EERAT] liability company &K 10,0007
&8 ARAT
Guiyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% =
ERBREERAR liability company ~ REER 1000077
&4 ERAR
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture China, limited liability  Construction HKD1,530,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Investment Limited*# company industrialisation 1,530,000,0007% 7T
(formerly known as China mEl - BRAA BEEEY
Minsheng Drawin Technology
Investment Limited)

EREENBRARRAA (AR
PRERMEIRARRAR)
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

22 MIBATINER @)

(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRAR-_ZE-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
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31 December 2020: (Continued)

WEEMBARBE : (8)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARENE FEREESE
ARMAIRESLE WERRLA HEBRLA HEBRLA
£ NREABRER  TEEH BRAREKFE (BAk) (BAL) (BAk)
% % %
Shenzhen Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 200,000,000 %7
(formerly known as Shenzhen HE - BRAR BEEZY
China Minsheng DIT Limited)
AR ER AR (A -
AR RERBERRERRR)
Lux Property Construction Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 = 100% =
Technology (Shanghai) Limited*® company industrialisation 200,000,000 7
FERENH (L8 BRARC ME - ARAR REEX
Nanjing Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD200,000,000 = 97% 3%
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 200,000,000 7
(formerly knownasNanjng China B - ERAR BEEZL
Minsheng DIT Limited) (note ()
HRERBEREARAR®
(RS - BRPREREENR
BRAR) (W)
Hengyang Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 - 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation 100,000,00077C
(formery known as Hengyang HEl - BRAA BEEX

China Minsheng DIT Limited)

HREREENHERAR®
(A : G RERBERR
BRAR)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

(Continued)

@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2020: (Continued)

22 B ATINER @)

@ TRAR—ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H
MEEBMBARIGE : (&)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity ~ activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  AREEE FEREERE
HMHEIRE S WEBRLA WEBRILH HEBRLA
£ NREABRER TEER BRARAEE (BAL) (AAk) (BAk)
% % %
Fosan Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  China, limited liability  Construction HKD100,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited*® (formerly company industrialisation 100,000,000 870
known as China Minsheng Drawin B - ERAT REEZY
Technology (Foshan) Limited)
BER BERBAR AR (AR -
PRERRHR (Bl BRAR)
Hefei Drawin Intelligent Manufacture ~ Ching, limited liability ~ Construction HKD95,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited*® company industrialisation 95,000,000/ 7
(formerly known as Hefei China~~ R » AR AR BEEEL
Minsheng DIT Limited)
AEEREENRBRRT(AIR
aRMREREERBERAR)
Changsha Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction HKD?1,108,000,000 - 51% 49%
Manufacture Technology Limited*® ~ company industrialisation ~1,108,000,000 %7
(formerly known as Changsha HE - ARAR BEEX

China Minsheng DIT Limited)
(note ()
ROERBENRARAA®
(AT - R RERBERE
BRAR)HE))
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEBATNER @)
(Continued)
(@) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRAR-_ZE-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
31 December 2020: (Continued) MEEMBARIEZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directlyheld  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREERE ARERE FERERRE
AMHIRESLE WEBRLA  HEBRLS AR A
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (At
% % %
Kunshan Drawin Intelligence China, limited liability  Construction RMB50,000,000 = 100% =
Construction Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation A #50,000,0007C

(formerly known as Kunshan China 8l » BRAH BEEEY
Minsheng Drawin Intelligence
Construction Technology Limited)
EEREERERRERAR®
(B8 EILLRREREEREN

RARRAR)
China Minsheng Drawin Intelligent ~ Ching, limited liability ~ Construction HKD23,650,000 - 100% -
Equipment Technology Limited*® company industrialisation 23,650,000/

TREREEEEHEERLA  FE - ARAF BEEX(

Huizhou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB60,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
(formerly known as Huizhou China Bl » BRA BEEEY 60,000,000 7
Minsheng Drawin Technology
Limited)

BMERSER AR AR (5 -
BNRRERMRAERAT)

Huidong Drawin Manufacture China, limited liability  Construction RMBA40,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Limitec*@ company industrialisation ARE
BEREREEMBER AR mE - BRAR BEER( 40,000,0007C

174



ERBENREEERAT « 2T FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR SRR MR
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEBATKNER @)
(Continued)
(@)  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRAR-_Z-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
31 December 2020: (Continued) WEZEMBARRE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREERE ARERE FEREERE
HMRIREREE WEBRILE WEBRHA HNEBERHA
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAt)
% % %
Pingdingshan Drawin Inteligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB80,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
(formerly known as China HE - ERAA BEEXL 80,000,000
Minsheng Drawin Technology
(Pingdingshan) Limited)
TRLERBEREERAR®
(I8« RRERB (FIEL)
BRAA)
Yuxi Drawin Intelligent Manufacture  China, limited liability - Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% =
Technology Limited*@ (formerly company industrialisation ARE
known as Yux China Minsheng R » BRAF BEEX 100,000,007
Drawin Technology Limited)
FEERBERHERAR (IR
EEPRERVBERAR)
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou Drawin Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB137,250,000 - 51% 49%
Intelligent Manufacture company industrialisation ARE
Technology Limitec*® (formerly B ARARF BEEZL 137,250,000 7

known as China Minsheng Drawin
Technology (Jiaozhou) Limited)
(note ()

EEMBMER BERRERARC
(BT - R REERBIH (BM)BR
AR )
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEARKER @)
(Continued)
(@) The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRAR-_ZE-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
31 December 2020: (Continued) MEEMBARIEZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREERE A5ERE FEREERE
HMRREREE WERRLA  HEBRLA LERLA
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAL)
% % %
Xiangtan Drawin Intelligent Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
(formerly known s Xiangtan China Bl » BRA BEERL 70,000,000 ¢
Minsheng Drawin Technology
Limited)
HELRBERBARAR (AR
MERRERMRBRAR)
Jiaozuo Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited®®  company industrialisation ARE
(formerly known as China mEl - BRAA BEEZY 70,000,007
Minsheng Drawin Technology
(iaozuo) Limited)

EEERBENBERAT (W
PRERN K (E(F) ARAR)

Huai'an China Minsheng DIT Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Limited*@ company industrialisation ARE

EZPRERBEMRERAR® - BRAF BEEE 70,000,0007C

Chongaing Shi Qijiang Qu Drawin China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Intelligent Manufacture Technology ~ company industrialisation AR
Limited*® (formerly known as HE - BRAA BEEX 100,000,000
Chongging Shi Qjiang Qu China
Minsheng Drawin Technology
Limited)

EETRIREREENEARLAC
(A8 ERTATEPRERM
RARLA)
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEARKER @)
(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRARZ-ZE-_ZEF+_A=+—H
31 December 2020: (Continued) MEBWBARRZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal of issued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREERE ARERE FEREERE
HMRIREREE WEBRILE WEBRHA HNEBERHA
£ NREABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BAk) (BAk) (BAt)
% % %
Wuxi China Minsheng DIT Limited*®  China, limited liabiity  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
ERPRERBERHERAR® company industrialisation ARE
TE - BRAE BEEEL 100,000,0007C
Shijiazhuang Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
(formerly known as Shijiezhuang B BRAT BEEZY 100,000,0007
China Minsheng DIT Limited)

AFREREENBERAAC
(A8« ARHEPRERBERK

BRAR)

Chengau Dayi China Minsheng Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Drawin Technology Limitec’® company industrialisation ARE

BBREFRERMBEERAR  HE FRAR BEEZL 100,000,000

Wuhan China Minsheng DIT Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Limited+@ company industrialisation ARE

REPRERBERHERAR HE FRAF BEEZ(L 100,000,000

Chengau China Minsheng DIT Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Limited+ company industrialisation ARE

RHTRERBENRERAR  HE FRAR BEEZL 70,000,000 ¢

Tianjin China Minsheng DIT Limited*® ~ China, limited liability ~ Construction RMB150,000,000 - 100% -

REPRERBERHERAA® company industrialisation ARE

HE - ERAR BEEE( 150,000,0007
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
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(Continued)

@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2020: (Continued)

22 MIBATINER @)

@ TRAR—ZE-_ZEF+-_HA=+—H
NEBHBARIRZE : (48)

Proportion of
Place of Proportionof  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARERE FERERRE
AR E MEBRLA  HEBRHA WEBERULA
£ DREAERER TEEK BRITRAFE (AAk) (B2k) (AL
% % %
Langfang Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB150,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*®  company industrialisation ARE
(formerly known as Langfang China Bl » BRA BEEXL 150,000,000
Minsheng DIT Limited)
BHERBENRARAT®
(AR : BB RER BRI
BRAR)
Qingdao China Minsheng DIT Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 60% 40%
Limited (note () company industrialisation ARE
EETRERBENZAR M BRAH REEX 100,000,000 7
AR (M)
Xuzhou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% -
Manufacture Technology Limited®®  company industrialisation ARE
(formerly known as Xuzhou Ching Bl » BRAA] BEEEY 100,000,0007%
Minsheng DIT Limiteq)
BNERBENRERAA®
(B : M REER BRI
BRAR)
Xiangxi China Minsheng Drawin China, limited liability  Construction RMB19,600,000 = 51% 49%
Technology Limitec*® (note (i) company industrialisation ARE
HETRERMRAEREARA® BB ARAF REEX 19,600,0007C
(Bt ()
Nantong China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 60% 40%
Limited~@ (note () company industrialisation AR#
HRTREREENFARLT BB ARAA REEX 100,000,000 7

(i)
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22 B ATINER @)

(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRAR-_Z-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
31 December 2020: (Continued) MEBHBRARZE: (&

Proportion of

Place of Proportionof ~ Proportion ordinary shares

incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by

operation and Principal of issued directly held  shares held non-controlling

Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests

BARERRE  ARERE FEREERE

AMHEIRERLE WEBRLA HEBRILA HEBRLA

£ DREAERER TEEK BRITRAFE (BA) (BAk) (B2L)

% % %

Znhoukou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*@ company industrialisation ARE
ARNEREERBZARAR) mEl - BRAR REEX 70,000,0007C

Zhoukou Nengda New Material China, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 = 55% 45%
Limited+@ company industrialisation ARE
RRsENERAR® mE - ARAA REEX 30,000,007

Znhengzhou Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability  Construction RMB300,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*@ company industrialisation ARE
BHERBENRARAA hE - BRAA REEX 300,000,007

Zhengzhou Drawin Construction Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB30,000,000 = 100% =
Limitec® company industrialisation ARE
BHERBERHERAR® HE - BRAH REEX 30,000,007

Drawin Garden Engineering Lim\'ted*@ Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB50,000,000 = 100% -
ERBERNTRERDA company industrialisation AR
HE - BRAR BEEZ( 50,000,007

Drawin Decoration Limw’ted*@ Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB50,000,000 = 100% -
EREEENTIRARAT company industrialisation AR
hE - BRAR REEX 50,000,000 70

Drawin Construction Limited*® Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% -
SREERRIRERDAC company industrialisation ARE
HE - BRAH BEEZY 100,000,000 7T
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEBATNER @)
(Continued)
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRAR-_ZE-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
31 December 2020: (Continued) MEEMBARIEZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportionof ~ Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARERE FERERRE
AR E MEBRLA  HEBRHA  WEBRULA
£ DREAERER TEEK BRITRAFE (BAk) (B2k) (B2t
% % %
Luoyang Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability ~ Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*@ company industrialisation ARE
REEREERBEARARA) M BRAR REEXI 100,000,000
Znumadian Drawin Intelligent China, limited liability ~ Construction RMB60,000,000 = 100% =
Manufacture Technology Limited*@ company industrialisation ARE
B ERBEN R ARAT M BRAR REEXI 60,000,0007C
Drawin Decoration and Construction  China, limited liability ~ Construction RMB50,000,000 = 100% =
Limitede company industrialisation ARE
TREERNEEIRERAR DB ARAA REEX 50,000,000 70
Henan Drawin Decoration Umited*@ Ching, limited liability  Construction RMB450,000,000 = 100% -
THERBERNEFEARAT®  company industrialisation ARHE
HE - BRAH BEEZY 450,000,000
*  For identification purpose only * g
A Registered as wholly foreign-owned enterprises under PRC N ARIERE AN EE D%
law
@ Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law @ BEFEE2EMEHNEREEAT
# Registered as a limited liability company (invested by Hong 4 BIERE LR AERE LA (B
Kong) under PRC law AE)
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2020: (Continued)

note (i): The Group holds 97%, 51%, 51%, 60%, 51% and 60%
equity interest of Nanjing DIT Limited*, Changsha DIT
Limited*, Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT Limited*, Qingdao
China Minsheng DIT Limited*, Xiangxi China Minsheng
Drawin Technology Limited* and Nantong China
Minsheng DIT Limited*, respectively. The voting right
shall be exercised in proportion to the capital
contribution, according to the Company Articles. Except
for modification of Company Article, increase or
decrease of registered capital, company merger or
division and change of corporate structure, a resolution
to be made by the shareholders general assembly shall
be subject to adoption by more than half of the voting
rights held by the shareholders. Nanjing DIT Limited*,
Changsha DIT Limited*, Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT
Limited*, Qingdao China Minsheng DIT Limited*, Xiangxi
China Minsheng Drawin Technology Limited* and
Nantong China Minsheng DIT Limited* are owned by
the Company and are accounted for as subsidiaries by
virtue of the Group's control over it.

note (ii): Shaoyang China Minsheng DIT Limited*, Jiangxi China

Minsheng DIT Limited*, and Xi‘an China Minsheng DIT
Limited* have been cancelled before 31 December 2020.

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include

22 MBATINER &)

@ TERAR-_ZE_ZEF+-_A=+—H
MEEMBARRE : (&

M) AEBARIFERRERTERNZER
AR RABRBERBZERAR
EMBMNERSENBRERAR 55
PRERDEREARAR - HAEFRR
ZRBEEREAARNERATRER
BENBEERAA7%  51%  51%
60% * 51% F160% K AR 4 - BRI R A &=
2 RESREHBREIREELHIITE
KRN - RIEHAFER - BINkER
LHMER  REEHKDLREER
ARSI BERARERZHERR =D
U ERAENRFRB - ENAE
EUHEREREERRERAR
EREERNFRERAF - EEMRBIMNE
REEREAERRAR  EBEFRERE
EREARAR  MARREREEE
REFTARMEBETRERE iﬂ&ﬁ
RARKIZERIE  ZETFTRRHAELR
BEHILEAMBRRIE -

Hia (i) - B P RER TS ERKARAR - JIH
PRERSENRERATDKAZRTR
EREERBBERARERZZ=ZZF
+—A=+—RnaE -

23 UanBEESAEBEZH AR

mNEMEE

NARBEFEAEZEHAABENESRE

the following: EBRETAIEE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R=ZB-ZF RZIZT—NF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted equity Instruments (note (a)) FLEmERTE (M @) 46,276 43,480

note (a): As at 31 December 2020, equity instruments are related to
investments in seven (2019: seven) unlisted companies in
Mainland China which are measured at fair value.

> %

Kit@: W-TB-_TF+-A=+—HB HEmIAHR
RANRARBETENTBRAREN LR (=

E—NF: LR FLTRREE -
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24 ReERK[ELFEIEH

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZBEZEF RZT—NF
+=—A=+—8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITHERNFERE
— Denominated in HKD — LAUBITEHE 4,062 5,299
— Denominated in RMB — UAREHE 439,820 77,116
443,882 82,415
25 RESTRICTED CASH 25 ARHRE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZBEZEF PRZT—HNHF
+=—A=+—8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Restricted cash BRHIRE
— Deposit for bank borrowings (note (a) ~ — $RITEERES (H15 @) 130,000 114,000
— Deposit for bank notes — RITEEREE 89,613 10,371
219,613 124,371
note (38):  As at 31 December 2020, certificate of deposit of HK$130.0 Mat@: N-T_FF+_A=+—H FHE1300
million was pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings ARETEAMMERAREETI202887%
HK$124.2 million. TUEVHEFRY) o
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26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 A
Authorised shares EERSG

Number of
authorised shares
EERGBEER
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=-A=+—H 25,000,000,000
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-_TEF+_A=+—H 6,250,000,000

Issued shares 2RITRMG
Number of Ordinary shares

issued shares

(nominal value)

(at HK$0.1 each) AR (EE)

ERTRHOEE HK$'000

(81 0.1%87T) FET

As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-—NF+=ZA=1+—H 11,209,602,920 1,120,960
Number of  Ordinary shares

issued shares

(nominal value)

(at HK$0.4 each) ZER(HE)

ERTRHOEE HK$'000

(E2R0.47%7T) FET

As at 31 December 2020 N-_EBE-_TEF+_A=+—H 2,802,400,730 1,120,960
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26 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26 BR7A (@)

All the shares issued rank pari passu in all respects.

The par value of the ordinary shares of the Company was
initially at HK$0.1 per share. With effect from 6 October
2020, four of the then existing issued shares of the
Company was consolidated into one consolidated shares of
HK$0.4 each (each defined as “Consolidated Share”), after
an ordinary resolution was passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 30 September 2020 and
with an approval obtained from the Stock Exchange (the
“Share Consolidation”). Upon the Share Consolidation
became effective, the authorised capital of the Company
became HK$2,500,000,000, divided into 6,250,000,000
Consolidated Shares of HK$0.4 each. The other rights and
terms of the shares remain unchanged as at 31 December
2020 (year ended 31 December 2019: 25,000,000,000
shares at HK$0.1 per share, which are the numbers before
the effect of the Share Consolidation).

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company was 2,802,400,730 shares
after the effect of the Share Consolidation (year ended 31
December 2019: 11,209,602,920 shares before the effect of
the Share Consolidation).
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B BRTRAES T ELEE RZES -

AAEEBREENRBSR0.1E T LR
RAABRZZEZEFNA=THBITZRE
FRIAE LRz TRk RIS AT
SRR moE-TE+ANBE 51
BARRERRBERTROHEHAE—RE
BREBEABTZAHRD (SEERA[EH
1) (TRDEH]) - RIDEHFERE - K
N REE AR A 2,500,000,0008 7T © 9 AT
fi% 0.4 7 7T 2 6,250,000,000 f& & G B 15 ©
RO EMmENRERR_E_2F+H
=t+—HREBETE(BEZZT—NF+=A
=+—HIt5FE : 25,000,000,000 A% & # 0.1
EITHIRG - BIRRGD & HERATBRREL) -

R-ZZE-ZTF+-_A=+—H  KQAaIRK
MEFEREBENEBTEBREHR
2,802,400,730 R A (B E T —NF+=
A=+—BHIEFE: ROEMHERAHD
11,209,602,920 R f& 17 ) °
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27 AEEHEE ABILFEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

WG 2PN L
Contributed
Share Exchange surplus Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R} E(E ELRE SARBEE HittfeE RitER ekl
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ki3 FET FET FET FET FET FET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE-_Z_E%£1+ZH
31 December 2020 =+-RLFE
At 1 January 2020 N_Z-ZF—f—H 863,669 (76,794) 131,166 29,439 (236,995) 710,485
Comprehensive income: 2EKE
Profit for the year FRET - - - - 158,833 158,833
Other comprehensive income:  E 2K :
Currency translation difference  SMNE3TE 2% - 164,134 - - - 164,134
Total comprehensive income for ~ ER2 Az LE
the year - 164,134 - - 158,833 322,967
Transactions with owners: HEBAETHRS
Capital injection EIN-K 236 - - (5,655) - (5,419)
Share-hased compensation MR AERNMS - - - 1,026 = 1,026
Total transactions with owners BB AETTHR S 236 - - (4,629) - (4,393)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-FF+-fA
=t—A 863,905 87,340 131,166 24,810 (78,162) 1,029,059
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27 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE GROUP (continued)

27 AEEHEEAELGEE®

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANAEEAEL
Contributed
Share Exchange surplus Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R %E ELfE SARBREE Hitt it RitESR ekl
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ki3 FET FET FET FET FET FET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BE-E-NE+ZA
31 December 2019 =+-ALEE
At 1 January 2019 R-E-n&—f—H 863,347 (26,262) 131,166 29,439 (347,744) 649,946
Comprehensive income; 2EKE
Profit for the year FERET = = - - 110,749 110,749
Other comprehensive loss: Htt2EEE
Currency translation difference  SMNEITE % - (50,532) - - - (50,532)
Total comprehensive income for ~ FR2E K= LH
the year - (50,532) - - 110,749 60,217
Transactions with owners: REFAETHRS
Capital injection EIN-En 32 - - - - 322
Total transactions with owners HERANETNR 5 32 - - - - 322
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA
== 863,669 (76,794) 131,166 29,439 (236,995) 710,485
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28 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 17 July 2020, the Group adopted a new
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, a total number of
201,850,000 share options was subsequently granted to
selected employees on 30 November 2020. Subject to
certain service and non-market performance conditions,
the granted share options can be vested in several
tranches since 30 November 2021 with a validity period of
10 years.

The Group adopted Binomial option-pricing model to
determine the fair value of share options. Significant
assumptions of share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2020 were set as below:

28 BRI

BEARGIRENR-_Z_ZF+HA+tHB
BEORER - NEERG BB IRER S
(IERESE]) - RIBERESS 5
201,850,000 17 BB IR BB 1A —TE —TF+—
A=1THERTREERS - & iﬁ%?ﬁﬁx
NIETISRBIGME - RONBRES =
——F+—A=THBEETHES ﬁ%ﬂ
HAR104F o

AEBERMMANENETBREN AT
B RBE_T-_FTF+_A=1+—HLHF
ERENBRENEANRREINNT

Year ended

31 December
2020
BE-F-%F
+=—BA=+—8H
ILEE

Risk-free interest rates 2% [ iz ) =
Expected volatility TEHR 1@
Exercise price (HK$) IEECET)
Dividend yield A% 8 =

0.21%-0.72%
61.81%-73.76%
1.09

0.00%

The fair value of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme as at 30 November 2020, the grant date,
was HK$ 27,794,000 and was determined by reference to
the market price of HK$1.09 per ordinary share on the grant
date.

The Group recognised an expense with a corresponding
increase in equity of HK$1,026,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020.

RZZE-_ZEF+—A=+HEHBEH)BE
BREAIRINERENAFES
27,794,000/ 7« L ER T ABRERE
AR 1.09B TR BETE °

AEERHE—_ZT_TF+_A=+—Hit
EEEEM\F#EJilﬁﬁi‘a‘m%ﬁntmdoo&%

I °
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 29 FEIEPRHERS

The non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

REBAFEZERERIAT ¢

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EFE R -oZT—hEF
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Changsha DIT Limited (“DIT Changsha”) BN EREERTERAR
(formerly known as Changsha China ([EAEER ] (FIE : &Y
Minsheng DIT Limited (“CM Changsha”)) AREREEREAR AR
(TRAHRER]D) 555,608 544,186
Qingdao Shi Jiaozhou DIT Limited (formerly & & BIME R 2 ERTBR
known as Jiaozhou China Minsheng DIT ~E) (A BINPRERE
Limited) ERER AR AR 61,915 37,519
Nantong China Minsheng DIT Limited MR RERSER
BRAFA 47,461 -
Nanjing DIT Limited (formerly known as BAREREERH AR AT
Nanjing China Minsheng DIT Limited) (HITE - AR REREER
BERRAR]) 6,581 5,893
671,565 587,598
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29 3JE3EpBH#EZS (&)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary BEEARFEIERESNHBLATINIEE
with material non-controlling interests R E

Set out below are the summarised financial information for TXFHINPEESFEEHAEEMSBEKX
the CM Changsha that has non-controlling interests that I FEIE AR E R I TS E R E

are material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position — HERAREBE — RAVER
DIT Changsha
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

R=ZB=-%F R-FTNF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H

HK$'000 HK$000
FETT FHET

Current TE
Assets BE 489,239 339,193
Liabilities afE (145,179) (59,780)
Total current net assets BREEEFE 344,060 279,413
Non-current eI 80
Assets BE 633,576 618,228
Liabilities afE (23,315) -
Total non-current net assets BIERBEEFE 610,261 618,228
Net assets EEFE 954,321 897,641
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29 3E}ERRHEZS (&)

Summarised statement of financial position — BB RREBE — RAER (&)
DIT Changsha (Continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

BE-_ZT-ZF BE-Z—NF
+=—HA=+—-8 +=—A=+—H

LFE IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue WA 198,480 85,178

Profit before income tax MRETEH ANRR 23,936 3,703

Income tax (expenses)/credits Frg®i (AX%), e (3,257) 316

Other comprehensive income Hi 2wz B B

Total comprehensive income 2HUREEEE 20,679 4,019
Total comprehensive income PEREFEZEREZNEZE

allocated to non-controlling interests US4 %8 10,133 1,969

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests  [a) FE3%2 A% # 28 K 1~ 9 A% 2. = =
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29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

Summarised statement of financial position —
DIT Changsha (Continued)

29 JFEIERRIERS &)

MBERRERBRE — RDER (F)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-ZE-ZF BT N%F
+=A=+—-H +=AH + H
IEEE WFE
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHEIT
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities #& < E8Fr15, (PR IR &
mE 48,002 (26,919)
Cash flows used in investing activities REFYMANRERE (3,081) (25)
Cash flows (used in)/from financing activities @& &S (FrA ), FriS3 IR &
mE (34,411) 28,787
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R4 RIREZ(EEE L INEE 10,510 1,843
30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX EEFREH
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-BZEF RZZT—hF
H=H = E = e — |
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Deferred tax assets FEIEBIEEE
— t0 be recovered after more than — ERAERE 1218 A 12 Uk =l
12 months 25,506 32,936
— to be recovered within 12 months — B 1218 A AUk E 13,561 12,037
39,067 44,973
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
— 10 be settled after more than 12 months — Y53\ BE 1218 A 12 & (12,434) (11,895)
— 10 be settled within 12 months — B 1218 A RE (1,179) (1,021)
(13,613) (12,916)
Deferred tax assets — net FEEMRIEEE — 25,454 32,057
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 30 RIEFTISH (@)
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account ELFTEFEEE A mT
is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

BE-2-%F BE_T NF
+t=A=+—-R +t=A=1—H

LEE IFFE

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FEr

At beginning of the year RED 32,057 29,432
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (Note 12) (¥1k), /&t A8 2k (HfaF 12) (8,123) 3,900
Decrease due to disposal of subsidiaries S B A F R - (455)
Currency translation differences HNEE YT B = R 1,520 (820)
At the end of the year RER 25,454 32,057
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 30 RIEFTBH @)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities RBE-_E-_ZEFR_ZT—NLE+=A
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, without =t+—HILFE BEREHREENEBEDN
taking into consideration the offsetting of balance within e (WE RER - EERANEHE
the same tax jurisdiction are as follows: HIAEER) 20T
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTEHEARs

Depreciation

Government of fixed

Grant assets Total

BE®E EBEEEEFRE FCb ]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET F#ET

At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-Z5—-HA—H 7,304 5,612 12,916

Credited to profit or loss T ABZ (393) 283 (110)

Currency translation differences HNEEITE =5 337 470 807
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EHF

+=ZBA=+—H 7,248 6,365 13,613

At 1 January 2019 R=-ZE-hF—-A—H 6,757 1,253 8,010

Charged to profit or loss MkEm 707 4,534 5,241

Currency translation differences NS E =5 (160) (175) (335)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB—h&

+=HA=+—8H 7,304 5,612 12,916
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) IRIEFREFi (®)
Deferred income tax assets BEERSHEE
Elimination of
intra-group
unrealised
Movements 28 Tax losses profit Leases Total
HEHEER
AEME
BEER KRB EF HE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-Z5-fA—H 27,800 17,028 145 44,973
Credited to profit or loss HABR (9,984) 2,632 316 (7,036)
Currency translation differences IEMEZEE 484 768 (122) 1,130
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZEF+-A=1+-H 18,300 20,428 339 39,067
At 1 January 2019 R=ZB-AF—-H-H 22,399 15,043 - 37,442
Charged to profit or loss kB 6,624 2,369 148 9,141
Decrease due to disposal of R EMBA R
subsidiaries (455) - - (455)
Currency translation differences NI E = %8 (768) (384) 3 (1,155)
At 31 December 2019 RZZB-AF+=B=t—H 27,800 17,028 145 44,973
Deferred tax assets arising from the unused tax losses have W17 1E B SRR Bl A L B IE TR IE & E AR
been recognised to the extent that it is probable that FEFR  ARDAHEBEEENERE
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow such EFHIBEEC RS W IBERER °
deferred tax assets to utilised this year in the consolidated
financial statements.
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets relating to RZZEZTF+A=1+—0 ' A&EEILHE
unused tax losses of approximately HK$155.8 million on 31 HRAEEARSARIBEENELCHIBEELN
December 2020 (31 December 2019: approximately 1558 FEBAL(ZE— N EFE+=RA=+—
HK$149.5 million). Among such tax losses HK$129.0 million H: 21495888 7T) - WEHIBEEIRFH
(31 December 2019: HK$122.7 million) have no expiry dates 129088 T (ZE—LE+A=+—
and the remaining will expire within five years. H: 127883 m) WEIHE - MK TS

RAFREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31 ES R HEHMEMSNTE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

RZBEZZEF R_Z—NF
+=—A=+—8 +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables — third parties féi%%‘ﬁmlﬁ —%=h 429,462 216,833
Trade payables — related parties B SN IA — @i 7,082 6,162
Notes payable AL 112,476 24,911
Accrued payable for property, plant and YE -~ B R EERERS
equipment construction — third parties RIE—F=H 60,531 40,965
Accrued payable for property, plant and ME - BE MR ERREN
equipment construction — related parties e — FAEg 75,585 46,194
Amounts due to related parties FE S REE: 5 3B 47,890 48,482
Accrued tax payable FEFH RS IR 44,080 28,257
Accrued payroll st TE 11,404 8,702
Deposits b 3,649 9,397
Interest payable FERTF S 600 58
Provision for onerous contract EB A A 314 =
Others HAftb 42,304 28,151
835,377 458,112
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 31 B 5 R HE =18 #)

The ageing analysis of trade payables as at 31 December BOENDTBER-_S_EFE_FT—hF
2020 and 2019 based on the invoice issue date were as + - A=+ BREEEZHHNERER O
follows: U
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

RZZE-ZEF RZZE—NF
+=—A=+—8 +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Less than 1 year PR —4F 405,556 170,503
110 2 years —EMF 30,988 52,492
436,544 222,995
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair values of trade RZEZEFER_T-NF+A=+—
and other payables approximate their carrying amounts. H B85 kEMENKENQABEERR
FEMEE o
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of RZEZEFER_TE-NF+A=+—
trade and other payables are primarily denominated in B Z5REMENFIENEAEEEZNUA
Renminbi. R¥EEHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

32 BORROWINGS 32 88
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZZB-EF —NF
+=A=+—-8B +t=-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Non-current, secured: JERNER - B
— Bank borrowings — RITERK 1,080,707 359,463
— Other financial institution borrowings — Hh R E R 25,664 12,280
Non-current, unsecured: JEBNHER - I -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 20,199 20,094
1,126,570 391,837
Less: Current portion of non-current B REEZRR B S
borrowings (133,547) (268,760)
Non-current, total JEBNER - 45t 993,023 123,077
Current, secured: BNHY - A -
— Bank borrowings — RITER 241,571 82,889
Current, unsecured: BNHR - A -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 11,881 -
253,452 82,889
Current portion of non-current borrowings & B & 2k iy B EAEE 5 133,547 268,760
Current, total BNER - 45T 386,999 351,649

notes:

(@) These bank borrowings of the Group are secured by property,
plant and equipment (Note 15), right-of-use assets (Note 16) and
restricted cash deposit (Note 25) of the Group and/or
guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company or related parties

(Note 35(C)).

izt -

@  ARELSRTEEUAKRENE - BEREE
(Fii=E15) - EREEE (HFE16) RBRHRET
K (B 7 25) 1R & sk AR 2 BB /8 2 =) ok BB
7‘7‘(MT&35 )RR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE —_Z—-F

B IR RMIEE

32 BORROWINGS (continued)

notes: (Continued)

(b)

(©)

(@

(€

198

FHZA=+—RIFE

32

BE @)

(%)

The borrowings are all denominated in RMB and their fair values (b  FAEEEHUARBIE  RAABEREED
approximate their carrying amounts. BEE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current borrowings (© R-ZE-TFE+=-—A=+—0 ' AEErREE
included borrowings with principal amounts of HK$20.7 million EREASEAN/EEAT(ZE—E+=
(31 December 2019: HK$52.7 million) which the Group has A=+—H 527888 T)NEE  aREHE
breached certain terms and conditions, as set out in the EmEMERISEEYE-_ST-_—F+_A4
respective borrowing agreements all were originally matured =+—H ' AEERZEEERE TGRS -
before 31 December 2021.
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's borrowings were (@) RZF_TFR-_F-NF+=-_A=+—H K
repayable as follows: %IE’\J%EE}E\H /RZZDT :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZB-ZF —hF
+=A=+—8H +=—A=+—~H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Within 1 year —F R 386,999 351,649
Later than 1 year but within 2 years ZR—FBILRW 375,895 78,702
Later than 2 years but within 5 years ZRMFERLRA 545,839 44,375
Later than 5 years ZRA%F 71,289 -
1,380,022 474,726
The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 December (e) HE_Z_ZFR-_ZT-NF+_A=+—HBH

2020 and 2019 were as follows:

ﬂﬂ*&?i’ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬂ@HDT :

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-B=ZF RZZE—h%F
t=A=t+-8 +-A=t+—-AH
Bank borrowings RITIERE 5.22% 5.08%
Other financial institution borrowings Hih & gl B E R 4.50% 4.40%
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 3 HFARETRERM:E
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) cash used in operations (a) REFAES
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

BE-®-RF WE-T NEF
+=A=+-8 +-A=+-8

IEFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Profit before income tax K B8 55 B e Al 214,691 138,935
Adjustments for: HER
Depreciation e 75,897 72,454
Amortisation of right-of-use assets FAEEERE 22,341 23,969
Amortisation of intangible assets A 375 1,518
Fair value gains on investment WEMEEHENDL
properties e (260) (631)
Losses on disposal of investment HEREEEERE
properties (97) -
Shares of gains from associates FEAG B & A R ES (5,551) (4,49
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR WS - (134,178)
Losses on disposal of fixed assets HERETEEERSE 546 439
Losses on disposal of right-of-use assets H & {F HEEEEIE - 5,235
Provision for impairment of inventories &R E R #&E 1,165 84
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 Kk EmEWRFIE
other receivables /Wﬁﬁéﬁ 9,673 2,837
Interest income from bank deposits THERRF BWA (3,123) (5,100)
Finance costs raﬁ‘iéﬁ)zzﬁ 32,948 25,928
Share-based payments BARR A 1 3K 1,026 -
Operating profits before changes in LEETEPRNELRN
working capital 349,631 126,999
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash BREIRE (M), SR (79,242) 12,701
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOgm), md (949) 6,339
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 Kz E th & U RIE A I
and prepayments TR FRIEIE AN (448,042) (187,266)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N EAh FE A BIE S AN 297,565 45,601
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilites & #1& & CRd) /10 (37,783) 14,796
Cash generated from operations TEEEMNRE 80,180 19,170
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33 GEHRERME @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Liabilities arising from financing activities (b) RMEETBELMNERE
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HiyEE RETHELNER
Lease Lease

Restricted  Borrowings  Borrowings liabilities liabilities
cashfor duewithin  dueafter duewithin  due after Interest

Cash  horrowings 1year 1year 1year 1year payable Total
-£ -Ef
AR -Fh - UERE  NHHE
B¢ BefE  UEMEE  IMEE af B  EfFS &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AT AT TAT AT TAT A7 TiAT AL
Net debt as at 31 December R=E-AE+=A
2019 =+-BNFER 82415 114,000 (351,649 (123,077) (10,963) (3,007) (58) (292,344
Cash flows BemeE 290,819 16,000 9,197 (915,062) 10,257 2,403 (542) (497,928)
Acquisitions — lease liabilities ~ Yiig —HER(E - - - - (14,164) (2759) - #1.756)
Foreign exchange adjustments [ 3 ;3% 70,648 - = (88,431) 3446 (5,654) - (1999
Other changes Hhg
— Reclassification fomafter ~ — B—F#&EHH
1 year to within 1 year BE-ER = = (133,547) 133547 (2.308) 2306 - =
Net debt as at 31 December R=E-F%£+-A
2020 =t-BNFEE 443882 130,000 (386,999 (993,023) (13735) (31,544) (600) (852,019
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@

(b)

ERBENREEERAT « 2T FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR I RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, capital
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as
follows:

34 EiE

(@) EXEE
RZEZZTFR_ZFE-—NFT+ZA
=+—H BEFNEHRREEMNER
R :

As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

RZBZEF RZZE—NF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—"H

HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 54,107 107,221

Non-cancellable operating lease
commitments

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases related to short-term and low-value

(b) FAHUHEEHEERRE

REAATBUHREHE - AR H
K ARER <R M MR EERERREN

leases not recognized in the financial statements as HEMERNTAT :
follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

R=R=BF R-F-NE
+=A=+-B +=A=+-A

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 year —F A 151 197
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35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35 EEAERS

(a) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BABAINEBREHRBER
Name Relationship
28 RS

Central China Real Estate Group (China)
Company Limited*
EREEER(PE)BRAR

Central China Properties Development
Limited*
BEYHEERABRAT

Zhengzhou Construction Business Services
Company Limited*
BNEXEERBREBERAA

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology
Industry Group Limited*
FEREENMBEEEBARAA

Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology
Group Co., Ltd.* (formerly known as China
Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology
Group Company Limited)

EREERERBEERERAR]

(AITE : PREKXERBMBREEFRAR])

China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd.*
FRERXEIBR AR

China Minsheng Drawin New Material

Company Limited*
P RERIMBRAR]

202

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

X A — AR AR B R AE

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

A — AR R AR A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder

IR — B AR P22 A R SR A2 )
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35 EEEtAE RS @)

(Continued)

(a) Name and relationship with related parties () BEM AW BRBKREHEBERE)
(Continued)
Name Relationship
£B [2RES

Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)
iR (B RAERAF ((52)

China Minsheng Drawin Construction Design
Co., Ltd.*
PRERBERFTARA

China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.*
FRERKBRATR

Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green
Construction Investment Limited*
M REREEZREARAT

YMCI China Minsheng Kunming Technology
Group Co., Ltd.*
TR REERBAERAR]

Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology Company
Limited* (formerly known as Zhejiang China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Company
Limited)

LR EEREHRAR QA
(RITE : IR RERRHRBERAR)

*  For Identification purpose only

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
R — B AR IR AR R A%

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
R — R AR IR AR R A

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
— B AR AR AR R AR

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder
X [A) — B AR AR AR R 2 )
An associate company of the Group

AEENBER

e
o

An associate company of the Group

ZN STk LN
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

204

(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

35 EEA RS @)

(b) HEEHINXS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, REBEZZT_EFR_ZT—NF+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—HLFEE" ZK%@HMTEQ
transactions: KR5S
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
E-EC-RF HETNF
+ZA=t-B +ZA=+-A
ILFE FEE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Supply of prefabricated construction components ZAEBEMHEERERAZERY
and products by the Group, including financing RER  BEREMKARE
component recognized in other income BHBERD
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Co., ARBEERNRERERAT
Ltd. (formerly known as China Minsheng Drawin (BI7E : PRERERBEEE
Construction Technology Group Company Limited) BRAR]) 155,002 116,411
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology Company Limited MIREERBHEBRAR
(formerly known as Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin (AU OMIPRERRH
Technology Company Limited) BRAR) 15,005 11,227
China Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Co., Ltd. FRERBERIBRA 6,376 1,388
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming Technology Group Co., EpBPRERRRE E A
Ltd. 3,347 11,751
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd.. RRERERAR 2,961 65
182,691 140,842
Leasing of properties to related parties HENETHEER
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Co., FRBERSHEERERA
Ltd. (formerly known as China Minsheng Drawin (BifE : PRERER ﬂ}ﬁz%l
Construction Technology Group Company Limited) BB AR 5,335 3,693
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural Design Limited RRERBHESR qu*ﬁBEi 3,218 3,500
China Minsheng Drawin New Material Company Limited ~ #RERFVERA 1,872 2,529
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Industry 5&&%%%4&%%%%5&@ Al
Group Limited 1,539 1,220
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., Ltd. FRERXEIBR AT 87 744
12,051 11,686
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

35 AR SE @)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EEEBEANRZ (#E)

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group has the following related party

REBEE_T_TFR=
A=+—HALFE AEEEUTHE

E N Sy gt

transactions: GRS
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-Z-2F HE_T-NF
+=ZA=+-B +=A=+-H
LFE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Supply of consulting services by the Group FEBRUEARE
Central China Real Estate Group (China) Company Limited ~ @2 ££E (hE) BRAF 4,993 -
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. HRERBRAF 2,564 -
7,557 -
Supply of transferring licenses by the Group AEEMHEEETT
China Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Co., Ltd. PREREERFTERAH 2,575 -
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Co., ARBEERNBERERAR
Ltd. (formerly know as China Minsheng Drawin (BI7E : PRERERHEEE
Construction Technology Group Company Limited) =1 YNET) 2,460 =
5,035 -
Provision of engineering, procurement and BELIRHENIE - NIIR
construction general contracting services BEARERE
by a related party
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Co., AREERANEERER AR
Ltd. ( formerly known as China Minsheng Drawin (A7 PRERERRRER
Construction Technology Group Company Limited) BRAT) 175,318 140,329
175,318 140,329
Provision of design services by a related party B A IR R AT BR AR
China Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Co., Ltd. RRERBERFERAA 1,849 2,405
1,849 2,405
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

35 EEtA RS @)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EHEBEAMRZ (E)
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, REBEZZT_EFR_ZT—NF+=
the Group has the following related party A=+—HLFEE" ZK%@HMTEQ

transactions: RS
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

BE-E-BF HE-T-NF
+=-A=+-B +=-A=1+-H

LEE FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Leasing of properties by a related party BHARHENERE
Central China Properties Development Limited BENEERBRAF 4,336 -
4,336 =
Leasing of equipment by a related party BELRERERE
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd RRERERAT 2,283 -
2,283 =
Payment on behalf of related parties by the Group ~ AEBERZEEH X
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Co., EREEESZHEEEERA
Ltd. (formerly known as China Minsheng Drawin (BI7E : PRERER ﬂ&%l
Construction Technology Group Company Limited) BRAT) 2,949 4177
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. mRERBRAR 2,139 2,135
China Minsheng Drawin Construction Design Co., Ltd. @E?&EU&&WEE& 330 =
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology Industry EREENBEXSES ﬁE
Group Limited 144 -
China Minsheng Drawin New Material Company Limited ~ mRERFM AR LA 82 50
5,644 6,362
Payment on behalf of the Group by a related party BB HFREEEEX A
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology Group Co., EREEESREEER AT
Ltd. (formerly known as China Minsheng Drawin (BT : mREREREREE
Construction Technology Group Company Limited) BRAR) 528 857
528 857
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35 AR SE @)

(c) BARET&eR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-EZEF RZZT—NF
+=-—BA=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Amount due from related parties J@H&Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ ™
Drawin Intelligent Construction SR EEER ﬂ}?z’ﬁ BEAR

Technology Group Co., Ltd. (formerly 2 & (AT#E - PRERKER

known as China Minsheng Drawin B EBAR AR

Construction Technology Group

Company Limited) 187,929 140,654
China Minsheng Drawin Construction — R RZE K BZERA AR A

Design Co., Ltd. 15,189 7,874
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology IR EEABE AR AR

Company Limited (formerly known as  (Bi# : ¥ IR RER R

Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin BRAF])

Technology Company Limited) 14,899 4,648
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. RRERKEGREA A 9,857 4,020
China Minsheng Drawin New Material s RERKHH AR AT

Company Limited 9,449 6,704
YMCI China Mingsheng Kunming EEREFREERTER

Technology Group Co., Ltd. NG| 5,332 7,360
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture E g ﬁﬂ&&%% =]

Technology Industry Group Limited BERA 4,508 2,548
Central China Properties Development E%%%%ﬁé@ﬁﬁﬁ@ )

Limited 1,426 =
Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green il RERFIEIREBR

Construction Investment Limited NE] 1,103 1,036
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., FRERXEIBER AR

Ltd. 1,057 886
Zhengzhou Construction Business NS = P TS AR S

Services Company Limited BEREAA 12 -
SRE Group Limited EEEARATA -

250,761 175,731
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35 EEtA RS @)

(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) FEREET4Eer (&)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R=BZTF R_T-NF
+=A=+-H +t=—A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Amount due to related parties FEAS BREE 5 KT
Drawin Intelligent Construction SRR ﬂﬁ% BAEREA

Technology Group Co., Ltd. (formerly =] (gif8 - Rk EHR

known as China Minsheng Drawin REBARAT)

Construction Technology Group

Company Limited) 130,770 50,001
Jiayao Global Investments Limited =R (ER)REERA A

— Current (note (a)) — 8 (f1:t @) 30,975 -

— Non-current (note (a)) — B (Mat @) 50,463 =
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture ERE iﬂ&?%% !

Technology Industry Group Limited BREA 12,295 44,877
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. EPE’;}{LE%BE” 3,249 715
China Minsheng Drawin Construction — FFRZERZERAARA

Design Co., Ltd. 3,231 2,725
Zhejiang Anju Drawin Technology MIEZEEREEBRAT

Company Limited (formerly knownas  (Bi#g : ¥ I RER B

Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin BRAT])

Technology Company Limited) 1,114 2,507
China Minsheng Drawin New Material s RERK M AR AT

Company Limited 14 13

232,111 100,838
note (a):  As at 31 December 2020, the amounts due to Jiayao Hiit@: R-—ZT=—TF+=-A=+—8  Ef
Global Investments Limited of US$10.0 million ER(ER)BEERATKIEI0H
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(equivalent to HK$77.4 million) and HK$4.0 million are
unsecured and bear no interest, of which HK$31.0
million will be matured within one year, HK$46.4
million will be matured till May 2022 and HK$4.0
million will be matured till July 2022.

Save as disclosed in note(a), all other amounts due from or due
to related parties are unsecured, bear no interest and are
repayable on demand or within one year.

B L (@) PRI EE & SN
R REER - RENA

BETEER774B8BT) R40EH
BATREEARES  HH3108
SBETHER—FARIE 46488
TR -ZZ-—FRARHKI0EE
BLHR-_ZE__F+ A58 -

H R R S AR )T
BERIN—FNEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

35 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 AR SE @)

(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) FEREEF4Eer (&)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZEZEF RZZT—NF
+=ZA=+—-H +=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Guarantee/security for borrowings BHARHNEEER ER
provided by the related party
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. mREREARAR 218,027 193,686
Drawin Intelligent Manufacture Technology ERBENBEXSEERAT
Industry Group Limited 119,369 20,094
Drawin Intelligent Construction Technology FREEREVMREEFRRA

Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as China

(17 : PRERERFREHE

Minsheng Drawin Construction Technology BRAA)
Group Company Limited) 53,467 =
390,863 213,780
(d) Key management compensation (d FEEEBAEME
Key management includes directors (executive and FTEBEBEABBREEST(MITRIEHR
non-executive), chief financial officer, vice presidents 1) - BEMBE  BIEFEREFED
and assistant presidents. The compensation paid or - REERBENKENEZEER
payable to key management for employee services is AEBHSHITRAT
shown below:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE-ZE-Z2F BRE_T—NF
=1SrSlE T=FEE
LEFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and other short-term e kHAMEEESRA
employee benefits 8,731 4,994
8,731 4,994
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE

36 ARTMNBMBHRRRRFREH

COMPANY
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZBE-ZF RZT—NF
+=ZA=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MEE 34 -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 11,307 -
Investments in subsidiaries NS NGIE SR g =) 14,933 14,271
26,274 14,271
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables and B 5 Kk EMEWFIANKRTE
prepayments (NESE 1,540,863 1,483,798
Cash and cash equivalents HehIReEEEE 3,970 4,890
1,544,833 1,488,688
Total assets HWEE 1,571,107 1,502,959
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners of KAREE AEEER
the Company
Share capital A% X 1,120,960 1,120,960
Reserves (note (a)) w16 (Hat @) 356,098 376,357
Total equity AR 1,477,058 1,497,317
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FkRBERS
Lease Liabilities HeEaE 6,589 -
Amount due to related parties JE1<F A BSE 77 SR IR 50,463 -
57,052 =
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M IR 32,046 5,642
Lease liabilities HE&E 4,951 -
36,997 5,642
Total liabilities EEHEE 94,049 5,642
Total equity and liabilities ERREEREE 1,571,107 1,502,959

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and

was signed on its behalf by:

Liu Weixing
Director

210

Guo Weigiang
Director

ARRNHBRRER ==~ = 3
“TAREEERIE LRI TEFRE
EFREE

e
EE

2EE
EFE



FEREENEEEBRAR « 22 FFR N

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 - Z T4+ _-_A=+—HIFE

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36 ARTIME IR R R R GEEEED

AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
note: B -
(@) Reserve movements of the Company (@) ZAATANFEELE
Contributed
Share surplus Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
A
R4 5 1E BERE Hith R RitER wE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 R-E-N&—A—H 815,125 157,955 - (564,680) 408,400
Loss for the year FERNEE - - - (32,043) (32,043)

Other comprehensive income/(loss):  Efs2EUA/(EE) : = = - _ _

Total comprehensive loss for the year &A% EE B = = = (32,043) (32,043)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=1+—H 815,125 157,955 - (596,723) 376,357
Loss for the year FHEE 815,125 157,955 - (596,723) 376,357
Other comprehensive loss: Hi 2 mEERE : - - - (21,285) (21,285)
Total comprehensive loss for the year  FRZEEELE 3 = = (21,285) (21,285)
Share Option Scheme ERE T2 - = 1,026 = 1,026
At 31 December 2020 NZE-_TF+_-_A=1+—H 815,125 157,955 1,026 (618,008) 356,098
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E2 —Z T4+ _A=+—HIFE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the AEERBERBEFE HEMLEE  SELE
last five years/period is as follows: BT
For the year For the year For the year Fortheyear  For the year
ended ended ended ended ended
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
BE2-Z—RF HE2-_T—tF HE-Z-/\& HEZ_Z-NF BE-E_ZF
+ZA=+—A +ZA=+—R +zZA=+—-H +zZA=+—H +=A=+-H
H&E HFE EEE EFE LEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results £
Revenue N 37,042 216,587 530,232 695,901 1,089,284
Profit before income tax [E3 =R =gl (90,409) 112,597 26,243 138,935 214,691
Income tax expense FEHiAY (10,889) 11,224 (6,903) (25,318) (44,725)
Profit for the year EEHH (101,298) 123,821 19,340 113,617 169,966
Profit attributable to ADAHAR AFTIE
owners of the Company ekl (101,136) 131,719 27427 110,749 158,833
As at As at As at As at As at
31December  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Q:Y /\¢ B/\\\:ZS_JEE E/\\\:Eﬁ‘&_)\i 73_/\:_7? j"-/i HA——\»——«ﬂE
+-A=+—-8 +ZA=t—-H +=ZA=+—-H +zZA=+—-HB +=A=+-AH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Total assets BEE 2,425,233 2,867,988 3,358,006 3,466,997 5,213,352
Total liabilities BEfE (500,045) (462,594) 949,477 1,047,954 2,391,768
Total equity g ibr] 1,925,188 2,405,394 2,378,529 2,419,043 2,821,584
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